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KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Dollars in piillions, except per share amotints 

FOR THE YEAR: 

Revenue 

Net income 

AT YEAR-END: 

Total assets 
Utility assets 
Nonutility power generation assets 

PER SHARE: 

Basic earnings 
Diluted earnings 
Dividends paid 
Annual dividend rate at year-end 
Stock price at year-end 
Book value at year-end 

FINANCIAL RATIOS: 

Dividend payout ratio (paid) 
Rate of return on common equity 
Market to book value

1999

$ 9,670 
S 623 

$36,229 
$17,657 
$15,534

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$

1998

S 8,860 
$ 668 

$24,698 
$16,947 
S 5,158 

$ 1.86 
$ 1.84 
$ 1.03 
$ 1.04 
$ 27% 
$ 14.55 

55.4% 
12.8% 

191.6%

1.79 
1.79 
1.07 
1.08 

15.01 

59.8% 
12.2% 

174.5%
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Increase 
(decrease) 

9.1% 
(6.7)

46.7 
4.2 

201.2 

(3.8) 
(2.7) 
3.9 
3.8 

(6.1) 
3.2

5-year 

compound 

annnal 

growth rate

3.0% 
(1.8) 

10.1 
(0.5) 
40.4

3.3 
3.3 

(2.4) 
1.6 

12.4 
1.8
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DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

In 1999, Edison International achieved record operating 

earnings ofC$2.()3 per share - a 9 percent increase over 

1998. More importantly, we fnrther positioned the 

company as a leader in the rapidly evolving electricity 

industry. We made record acquisitions, a total of nearls 

S 10 billion. These investments are part of our Integrated 

Growth Strategy, which looks to expand in electiicits 

markets that are privatizing, adopting performance

based regulation or deregulating.  

IFINANCIAL PERFiIOR, ANt II 

All three of our major businesses, Southern Califoirnia 

Edison, Edison Mission Energs and Edison Capital out

performed their earnings targets. Soutithern California 

Edison contributed $1.35 in operatilg earnings, S0.09 

ahead of goal and continued to recover potentially 

stranded costs on an accelerated basis. Edison Mission 

Energy achieved S0.57 per share in operating earnings, 

an increase of 54 percent over 1998. Edison Capital 

added a sixth straight record year, with operating earn

ings of S0.39 - a 34 percent increase over last year.  

Edison Enterprises, our start-tip retail c ompany, missed 

its targets, losing $553.5 million on an operating basis.  

Last fall. sse changed company management, cut over

head and central stafF, and eliminated initiatives that 

failed to shoss sufficient potential.  

Of our three major businesses, Edison Mission Energy 

and Edison Capital provided 41 percent of operating 

earnings, as compared xxith a contribution of 32 per

cent in 1998. We expect that contribution to continue 

to increase.
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During 1999, electricity stocks in general lagged the 

market. The average total return to shareholders among 

the companies making up the DIow Jones Electric Index 

xxas a negative 16 percent. Our total return xxas a nega

tive 2 percent. Over the last one, three and five years, 

our stock has outperformed the Index bx 14, 27 and 

63 percentage points, respectively,.  

INLEGRATED GROWvTH SiRATEGY 

In our continuing effort to build shareholder value, 

we adopted in 1999 a new strategy called Integrated 

Growxth. This strategy calls for growth in each of our 

businesses. It also commits us to integrate, consistent 

with applicable regulation, the experience and skills of 

all our employees for the benefit of the entire company.  

This is an evolution from our Defend and Grow Strategy 

of the last five years, which focused on rapidly recover

ing our utility generation investments xxhile growing 

Edison Mission Energy and Edison Capital.  

Commnommu'malt/h Edison Poovcr Plamts - In December, 

xxe acquired the entire non-nuclear generation port

folio of Comoionxxealth Edison of Chicago. In one 

transaction, we became one of the largest electricity 

generators in the Midwxest.We now have a regional 

power generation business xvith all the assets and capa

bilities to create significant value from our S4.9 billion 

investosent.  

These Illinois plants allow us access to multiple 

markets where power generation capacity values are 

high and nexx generation is needed. Many of the sites 

have fuel and transmission access, allowing us to quickly 

and cost effectivelx add new natural gas-based capacity.  

Our miix of base load, mid-mnerit and peaking capabili

ties enables us to fully meet the needs of customers as 

Midxxest markets continue to restructure. The plants also

geographically complement our first domestic mierchant 

plant, located in Homer Citn, Pa., which we have ovned 

for nearly a year, and xxwhich is meeting our financial 

and operating targets.  

Comtact Ememrg,- In the second quarter, we acquired a 

40 percent stake in Contact Energx, New' Zealand's first 

privatized electricity company. The other 60 percent was 

sold to the public. Contact Energi operates a portfolio 

of hydro, geothermnal and natural gas plants. It sells dec

tricity to 22 percent of New Zealand's retail market, 

and natural gas to about 100,000 customers. Led by a 

talented, energetic management team, the company is 

delivering superior results.  

Fiddler's Fen-y anid Fmeniybmide -The acquisition of 

4,000 oiegaxxatts (MW) of capacity at Fiddler's Ferry 

and Ferrybridge gives us a balanced portfolio of genera

tion plants in the England and Wales markets. In 1995, 

we acquired niore than 2,000 MW of pumped hydro 

storage peaking capacity in Wales. Comibining the First 

Hydro assets with Fiddler's Ferry and Ferrybridge base 

load and mnid-merit capabilities mneans we can fulfill the 

needs of independent distribution companies as wvell as 

large end-user customers. That capability is particularly 

important as the market evolves towvard direct sales fioni 

the current power pool-driven structure.  

Stormn Lake I- Edison Capital invested almost 

$100 mnillion in the largest wind generation project 

in the United States, located in western Iowa. All 

output of the project will be sold under a 20-year, 

fixed-price contract.

'MDPIl rp(Jort l999 3



Identifying and acquiring attractive assets is only the 

critical first step in our Integrated Growth plan. Now 

we must mnaximnize the value of our portfolio through 

superior operations, fuel acquisition, bidding, trading, 

contracting and risk management.  

Our 1999 acquisitions were all in power generation.  

We are also potentially interested in acquiring distribu

tion companies where sound performance-based regu

lation affords the opportunity for premium returns.  

Last year, we were outbid in an effort to acquire a distri

bution and electricity supply business in South Australia.  

We will, however, continue to seek out markets that 

offer well-structured incentive rewards for first-class 

reliability, safetr and customer service performance in 

distribution.
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Edison employees performed at exceptional levels in 

many areas. Among them: 

- The San Onofre nuclear plant, operating under an 

incentive regulatory structure, exceeded all operating 

and financial targets. Early in 1999, San Onofre 

employees completed - ahead of schedule and under 

budget - two refueling and upgrade outages that 

included replacing steam turbines.  

- Southern California Edison attained an historic level 

of customer satisfaction- a record 75 percent of our 

customers ranked themselves in the highest category, 

"delighted" or "completely satisfied." All other satis

faction categories improved over previous levels.  

- In '999, Southern California Edison achieved the 

fewest minutes of customer interruption in five 

years, making us a national leader in reliability 

We continue to invest in our transmission and distri

bution systems to provide continuing high reliability 

for our customers.  

- In 1999, Edison Capital's return on equity was an 

outstanding 28.5 percent based on operating earn

ings, and it has averaged 23.6 percent over the past 

five years.  

- In Australia, our 1,000-MW LoyYang B plant 

ach.eved an availability factor of more than 97 per

cent, with a forced outage rate of only .078 percent.  

This is extraordinary among coal plants w orldwide.  

LoyYang B svas the first coal-fired generating station 

in the world to qualify for ISO 14001 certification, 

a demanding international environmental standard.  

BRYANI C. 1)ANNE .  
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- The EDeigy Outlook 2000 Report selected Edison 

International as its Investor-OwYvned Utility of the 

Year. It also singled us out as the national leader 

in customer service and in distribution.  

These are a few examples of how Edison men and 

women across the company stretched themselves to 

meet and surpass demanding goals in 1999.  

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE 

At Edison International, xve seek to bring a special 

commitment to improving environmental performance 

while increasing shareholder value. Generating electricity 

by any means produces environmental impacts that are 

rightfully a concern of people around the world. We 

know of no wax to avoid those impacts altogether; but 

by looking hard for cost-effective means of mitigating 

those impacts, we sometimes do what others before 

us did not. In connection with the large coal plant 

acquisitions we made in the last year, we are now in 

the process of adding more than a half billion dollars in 

new pollution control features. This commitment was 

not required either by the terms of the purchase or by 

existing law. We believe it makes good business sense.  

MANAGEMENT CHANGES 

In April 1999, Ed Shannon,Jr., and Admiral James D.  

Watkins retired from the board of directors. Both were 

outstanding contributors, providing us the benefit of 

their extraordinary leadership experiences.  

At the end of the year, we made several important 

managenment changes. Reflecting the transformation of 

our compaiiy and the larger role of our new er businesses, 

I relinquished my Southern California Edison roles, 

and added the title of president to those of chief exec

utive officer and chairman of Edison International.

Steve Frank became chairman and chief executive officer 

of Southern California Edison, stepping up from his able 

leadership over the last four years as president and chief 

operating officer.  

Al Fohrer was elected president and chief executive 

officer of Edison Mission Energy. Throughout his 27 

years with the company, Al has made outstanding 

contributions in a series of major business and operating 

roles, including most recently, as chief financial officer 

of Edison International. Ted Craver, who has served 

with distinction as senior vice president and treasurer, 

has replaced Al as chief financial officer of Edison 

International. We are fortunate to have these accom

plished leaders and many others in position to take up 

the large new challenges that lay ahead.  

It is a pleasure and a privilege to work with the 

people of Edison. Thank you for the confidence you 

have placed in us.

C.
JOHN E. BRYSON 
Chainman of the Board, Presidenit and Chief Executive Officer 

February 18, 200o
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EDISON MISSION ENERGY

Edison Mission Energy (EME) achieved its fourth con

secutivx record-setting year xxith operating earnings of 

8197.8 million, or S0.57 per share, compared to 1998 
operating earnings of S1 32. 1 million, or S0.37 per share.  

This increase is primarily attributable to higher revenue at 
existing projects and revenue from projects acquired in 

1999. On a reported basis, including a one-time adjustment 

associated wvith in executive incentixe plan that is being 
discontinued, EME posted net income of 8130.3 million, 

oi $0.37 per share.

nni01ority interest in one poNwer project in Australia 

(Contact Energx sold its interest in a second Australian 

project, Southern Hydro, in October 1999).  

- InJalx EME completed the acquisition of the Ferrybridge 

and Fiddler's Ferry electric generating plants in northern 

England from the United Kingdom's Pow erCGen for 

"ahoot b2 billion. Each plant has a generating capacity 

of about 2,000 MW 

- In October, EIlE purchased for S16 million the 

remaining 20 percent interest in the 220-MW, gas-fired 

R<oosecote Powver Project in northern England that it 

did not already ovxn. With these txxo acquisitions, EME 

is now the fifth-largest generator in the U.K.

EME's ownershrp interest 
in generating capacity more than 

tripled in 1999.

i999 ACtIIEVEMiENTS 

Groial! Ibo•nih _Icqijisitiois - EME's ow nership interest 

in generating capacity more than tripled in 1999. The 

company's net interest in plants that are either operating or 
under construction increased from 6,485 megawatts (MW) 

at year-end 1998 to 22,7 70 MW at year-end 1999. This 
"groxxth xxas achieved through acquisitions in each of 

the global regions xxhere EME operates -- Asia Pacific; 

Americas; and Euirope, Central Asia, Middle East and 

Africa - and the company established a strong base of 

operations in key strategic markets for Edison International: 

- In March, EME completed the acquisition of the 1,884
MV/ Horner Cits Generating Station for 81.8 billion

- In May, EME acquired a 40 percent stake in Nexv Zea

land's Contact Energy Ltd. for 8635 Inillion. Contact 

Energy mxwIs and operates hydroelectric, geotheriial 

and natural gas fired gencrating plants xxith a total gen
crating capacity of2,371 MW Contact also supplies gas 

and electricity to customers in Nexx Zealand and has a

11i1i 1 ON 1 N RN\ INAIi

- [i D)ecember, EME completed its S4.9 billion acquisition 

of a package of coal-, gas- and oil-fired electricit, gen

crating facilities xxith a total capacity of 9,510 MW from 

Commoiinxxealth Edison. Those facilities, as xxell as the 

Horner City Generating Station, xxrill be managed by 
Midwx est Generation, a company established in June 1999 

for .his purpose.  

Fimoiiiig - These transactions, the total cost of xhich xxwas 

about $(10 billion, xvere funded through roughly equal 

amounts of project finance and eqiuity contributions by 

EME: the equity contributions xxere financed off EME's 

balance sheet and xxith a capital infusion from Edison 
lnternational.The necessary funds for the acquisitions were 

raised xxithout anx detriment to the credit ratings of anv 

of the Edison International companies - a testament to 

their combined financial strength.

Project Ownership 
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EDISON MISSION ENERGY

Mer/iawt Plam': - The bulk of EME's investments in 1999 
went toward acquiring merchant plant facilities, a relatively 
new emphasis for EME. In the past, facilities developed 

or acquired by EME typically included power purchase 

agreements that provided long-term certainty of electricity 

sales and cash flow. Merchant facilities do not have such 
contracts and instead sell power in the competitive markets 

where they are located. Merchant plants, combined with 
an increasing concentration of facilities in selected strate
gic geographic markets, required EME to develop new 
techniques for valuing such facilities. New approaches 

developed in conjunction with Edison International 
corporate staff provided valuable insights in this regard.

In late 1998, EME established a power marketing group 

to sell power generated from EME's U.S. facilities. Many 

of the employees came from Edison Source. The group in 

Irvine also manages fuel procurement and emissions 

allowance trading. EME's marketing/trading activities are 
not speculative, and forward sales are backed by its assets.  

In the fuels area, EME has added to its ongoing role 
as an overseer and facilitator of the procurement process 
to become an active participant in the purchasing and 
trading of fuels. Fuel, which can at times account for up to 

70 percent of a plant's operating expenses, plays a signifi

cant part in determining the price at which power can be 
sold into the market.

EME has assets totaling $15.5 billion 
and investments in more than 

75 projects worldwide.

It was also necessary to develop the new skills required 
to operate the plants and market power once the acquisi
tions were completed. EME responded by expanding its 
marketing and trading capabilities, and establishing strong 
regional teams w ith commercial and operating skills in 
key areas such as fuel procurement, operations and main
tenance, and risk management.  

Regional power marketing/trading offices operate in 
Irvine, Calif.; London, England; Melbourne, Australia; and 
"Wellington, New Zealand. EME began marketing and trad
ing power in December 1995, when it acquired First Hydro, 
the 2,088-MW pumped storage hydro facility in Wales.  

In 1997, shortly after acquiring the remaining 49 per
cent interest in LoyYang B, EME established the trading 
team in Melbourne. Since the plant's output is almost 
fully contracted until the end of 2000, most of the activi
tT has been ensuring the actual dispatch of energy into the 
power pool, establishing trading strategies and risk man
agement frameworks, and developing a regime of report
ing and measurement systems.

Plant Construction Continues - During 1999, projects 

under construction continued to advance, with the Doga 
Eneiji cogeneration project in Turkey achieving commer

cial operation in May. Both units of the coal-fired Paiton I 

project in Indonesia achieved commercial operation in 

May and July, respectively. Because of the continuing eco
nomic downturn in Indonesia, negotiations are currently 

underway to restructure Paiton's power contract.The gov

ernment is publicly committed to solving its power sector 
problems and the economy is improving. Several projects 

owned by Contact Energy recently were completed, and 
the ISAB Energy project in Sicily and EcoEl6ctrica in 

Puerto Rico also should reach commercial operation in the 

first quarter of 2000. Construction of the 700-MW, natural 
gas-fired Tri Energy project in Thailand is expected to be 
complete in May and, upon full commercial operation, the 

project sill be one of the lowest-cost electricity genera

tors in Thailand.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

Consistent with Edison International's integrated growth 
strategy, Southern California Edison (SCE) reported 

strong financial performance in 1999, largely attributable 

to higher kilomwatt-hour sales and utilityw ide operating 

excellence overall. This achievement was magnified by 

SCE's ability to overcome the substantial earnings chal

lenges presented by two scheduled refueling outages at 

San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station (SONGS) and 

the accelerated depreciation of its generating assets.  

In 1999, SCE's return on shareholder equity was more 

than 15.2 percent on operating earnings of S1.35 per 

share, compared with $1.37 per share in 1998. On a

recovery process, which must be completed in 2002, is on 

schedule. These revenues are recoverable through the 

nonbypassable competition transition charge (CTC), 

which applies to all 4.3 million SCE customer accounts

Equally important is SCE's focus on earnings growth 

through: (1) strong performance at SONGS- (2) investment 

in earning assets, such as utility transmission and distribu

tion (T&D) infrastructure; (3) operations and maintenance 

(O&M) cost reductions: and (4) revenue growth.  

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE 

In 1999, SONGS achieved a site capacity factor of 

88 percent while producing more than 12 million 

megawatt-hours of electricity. During the year, both 

SONGS Units 2 and 3 underwent scheduled refueling

SCE achieved an all-time high in customer 
satisfaction with 75% of its customers 
"delighted" or "completely satisfied."

reported basis - including a one-time adjustment 
SCE contributed $483.5 million, or $1.39 per share, 
compared with $490.5 million, or S1.37 per share, in 

1998. The one-time adjustment in 1999 was the result of 

an IRS ruling that allowed SCE to record a tax benefit.  

REALIGNED AND POSITIONED FOR GROWTH 

As SCE enters its third year of operation in California's 

restructured electric utility marketplace, it continues to 

rank among the nations largest and best-managed utilities.  
With its identity and assets realigned, SCE is well posi

tioned in the industry as a leading U.S. wires business.  

As such, the company is focused on two areas that provide 

a substantial opportunity to grow net income and con 

tribute significantly to the bottom line.  

A principal area of focus is continued recovery of 

past shareholder investments made in generation -related 

facilities as part of SCE's service obligations under a fully 

regulated market structure. These investments were put 

at risk under Califotrnia's industry restructuring. The cost

and maintenance outages that exceeded previous 
performance in eight areas, including safety and dura
tion. (The outages were scheduled for 115 davs in total 
and completed in just 100 days.) As a result of this accom
plishusent and outstanding performance overall, SONGS 

earned $97 million in net income after taxes, exceeding 

its target by 50 percent.  

I)uring the year, the California Public Utilities Com

mission (CPUC) approved an uncontested joint settle

ment that clears the sway for SCE to dismantle SONGS 

Unit 1, w hich was retired in 1991. The settlement grants 

SCE access to 90 percent of its decommissioning funds, 

which have been accumulating over the years in a trust 

fund for this purpose.
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SOUTHERN CALI FORN IA EDISON

INC NI IV1- s I1ll PIiRIMANC-I 1ASfII) REGtU ATION 

NVhil' SCE's core T&1) business continues to operate 

s ithin i rCeulated inarket structure, it also operates under 
incentiNCe-drien uiechanistlis that reward exceptional 

perCiormac1 , potentially resulting in significant earnings 
gro\ th.  

1999 iarkLed the third \Lcar that SCE has operated 
under pcrtErmancc-based iratemaking (113R) - a CPUC
approved mechanism that alloss SCE to share savings 
finOm cost-efficient operations with its customers and 
achieve rev1nue ressardi otup to S51 inillion annually lor 

Nxceedinig peiIorniance targets for service rcliabilits, 
emiployi e Sitety and cLustoinei satist-action. Converselyx the 
coiipanx call also he penalized rip to $51 million annually 

For failiug to meet thLse targets.  

Under PB13, the chiallen"e is to cOItincually improve 
operatioial perf ormance by consistentlx delivering safe, 
reliable i le'tric servsice to customers while effectivels 
inalla inig costs. IL ig terill s>uccess meains Colltiii nails 

impro\iCýl g both service and satistfction levels, ss hich 
recuires sinpliutsins processes, critically measuring petoir
maice and iLectiu increasingIs higher standards.  

Based 'in its 1999 perfiirmance, SCE expects to file For 
S17 1iilioi ill P13P< asiards in 2990(.  

Rc.li •iC'It-- hi coLntrast to the severe "El Niiso" storms that 
battered SCE's service territori in 1998 anLd resulted ii 
storm daIaii '(osts oLtS84.6 million. 1999 brought "La 
Niia,'" a w catheri pattern that resulted in the driest seaither 
conditions in more than a decade and considerabls losswer 

storl-aiIssoLiated costs ofI $40)8 million.  

In 1999. as i 1998, SCE ranked in the top quartile 

glioIIg the 47 utilities queried ll in an industrywide study 
rankinei utilities' rLliability scores based on 'average min
cites (oit cL iiilcr iterruption. and "ircnuelcn o(I outages." 

To maintain that high level o(s1rvice reliabilits SC(E must 

begin replacing its aging T&I) intiastructure. most of which 
%%as put in place shortls after V\irld aI II ii and during the 
196)>s and is reaching the end oftit> expected life.  

Beginnisg a compicieh sive replacement program sooner 
rather thall 1atei is vital to reliability, is less expensive than 
ItCiiiillg equiipilent until it fails, and is essential because of 
the rapid ccoliomic and popaitiLoi grosswth sswithill SCE's 
servicc' aiea- e \Is infrastructure replacement iinitiative also 
sustains shareholder valtie throuih kilowatt-hour growth, 
revenuce (Irowtis alnd PI < lewards.

C'ii•tomne Satisfction- SCE achieved high levels of customer 

satisfaction through service reliability anld operational 
excellence. In an annual surves conducted by an indepen
dent market research firil that measures ovcrall custonier 
satist-action with SCE's service, the citilits achieved an all
time high in customer satisfaction in 1999 with 75 percent 

of its customers "delighted" or "completely satisfied." 

Saict)' Employee safety remains a top priority and, as 

a result, the bar for safety goals continues to be raised.  

Iuri11 tIle year, the T&l) safets goal was exceeded by 

7.5 percent. Osetr a six-sear period, including 1999, SCE's 

saiety has improved bs more than 50 percent.  

Tr LE CO M UNI U CATIO0NS 

Seizing a potentially profitable opportunity. SCE created 

Edison1 Carrier Solutions us 1999 to take advantage ofthe 

utilits's vast fiber optic network. Located in densely popu
lated areas of central. coastal and Southern Caliiornia, tills 
network is one of the state's largest and is situated in anl 

area of extraordinary demand for wholesale telecommuni

catiolns services.  

Using SCE's assets and capabilities - which include 
a complete network upgrade over the last five years, 

more than 1,750 isiles of fiber optic cable, 100 percent 

fulls redundant SONET ring architecture. 5,000 miles 

of digital microwsave capacity, and field construction 

expertise - Edison Carrier Solutions set out to market 

its hi1hly desirable swholesale telecommunications access 

and transport capacits to companies that provide telephone, 

cable television. Internet and other telecommunications 

services to end-user crlstoilrs.  

Edison Carrier Solutions' suite of product and service 

o1Terings includes private line services, dark tiber, network 

construction. collocation anid wireless ifinastructure.  

To date. Edison Carrier Solutiolls has completed all 

of the necessars regcliatory steps related to the sswholesale 

transport business. In 1999, Edison Carrier Solutions signed 

master sirvice agreements with six stri tegic customers, and 

is well positioned to build on that foundation in the future.  

PP, ROI)U11CTI'V ITY I N ITF1AT I[VF-S 

SCE's T&DI) Busiess Unit has initiated nei\ progra1is to 

help reduce costs by standardizing and sutra'ilining major 

wyork processes. One such program is T&]l's swork 11anage

Ilent i>steisI, wihich combines woN k simplitication and ain
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

online data inana gensent system that tracks, monitors and 
measures all aspects of work from initiation to completion.  
Another example is E-Map, a software program developed 

by SCE that helps field employees by displaying multilavered 
circuit maps and geographical information. E-Map allows 
employees to spend more time in the field responding to 
customers by reducing administrative time.  

SCE's Customer Service Business Unit (CSBU) is testing 

and implementing new technologies such as van-based 
automated Ineter reading, wireless customer order dispatch, 
voice recognition, automated "bill exception" processes, 
and fully electronic Internet billing and payment plans.  

By year-end 1999, SCE had successfully transitioned nearly 

100 percent of its customer accounts to its state-of-the-art 
billing system. In 2000, SCE will enhance its Web site to 
allow customers to submit inquiries and service requests 
as wx elI as pay their utilitv bills online. As a result of these 
and other enhancements, Andersen Consulting ranked 
SCE's Web site sixth in a study of 34 utility Web sites.  

Additionally, SCE's metering communication system 

offers large customers the option of receiving their electric 
energy usage and bill impact in near real time via a secure 
Web site. Moreover, business customers now have more 
msetering options that wxill help them better understand 
how to control energy costs.  

In 1999, SCE's Information Technology (IT) department 
launched initiatives that will consolidate IT functions, 
obtain productivits improvements, reduce expenses, 
improve support service, improve communications and 
increase knoavledge-sharing across the company. IT also 
will launch an electronic means for conducting business 
with suppliers. Combined, these and other initiatives are 
expected to yield more than S25 million in savings.  

EDISON O&M SERIasCES 

Since the divestiture of SCE's gas-fired generating plants 
in 1998, Edison O&M Services has continued to provide 
the new plant owners with excellent operations, mainte
nance and support services under the provisions of Cali
fornia's industry restructuring legislation (AB1890).  

Although the mandated two-year term of the AB1890 

agreements will conclude during the second quarter of 
2000, Edison O&M Services has successfully negotiated 
ness; long-term operations and maintenance agreements 
with Reliant Energy.

Under these agreements, Edison O&M Services will 
continue providing quality operations, maintenance and 
support services to Reliant Energy at its Coolsswater, 
Ellwood, Etissanda, Mandalay, and Ormond Beach generat
ing plants svell past the expiration of the current AB 1890 
contracts.  

Incentive provisions in these agreements are designed to 
produce superior commercial operating results for Reliant 
while affording Edison O&M Services the opportunits to 

continue using the competencies and experience of SCE 
employees in ways that create value for Edison International 
shareholders. As such, establishing these new agreements 
with Reliant Energy marks another milestone in the evo
lution of the electric utility business resulting from industry 
restructuring.  

In March, Edison O&M employees at the 1,580-MW, 
coal-fired Mohave Generating Station in Laughlin, Nev., 
received certification for their Environmental Management 
System - a plan to control the impact of the facility's 
activities on the environment. The plan, xx hich includes 
setting environmental objectives and demonstrating that 
those objectives have been achieved, is based on the 
International Organization for Standardization (ISO) 
14001 standard.  

QUALIFYING FACILITIES (QF) CONTRACTS 

In 1999, SCE continued to enhance shareholder value 
and achieve customer savings through buyouts and 
restructurings of long-term, must-take contracts to buy 

electricity from QFs, thus creating additional opportuni
ties for competition in the marketplace and eliminating 
above-market contract payments, and ultimately further 
reducing SCE's transition costs.  

FACILITATING THE COMPETITIVE MARKETPLACE 

During 1999, electric service providers (ESPs) submitted 
direct access service requests (DASRs) to SCE at a rate of 
about 4,000 per month, primarily driven by the "green 
energy credit" available to nesv market entrants.  

Of the 87 ESPs enrolled with SCE, only 24 are actively 
submitting DASPs and only six are generating significant 
volume. ESPs serve about 15 percent of SCE's load, which 
translates to about 81,000 customers, or 1.9 percent of 
SCE's customer base. Statewide, ESPs serve 13.7 percent 

of customer load, representing nearly 192,000 customers.
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SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

As required by AB1890, the law that restructured Cali
fornia's electric utility industry, SCE began the process of 

auctioning its 56 percent interest in the Mohave Generat
ing Station late in 1999.The auction is part of SCE's con
tinuing effort, as required by AB 1890, to value all of its 
non-nuclear power generation assets.  

Meanwhile, it was with broad-based support from labor, 

ratepayer and environmental groups that SCE filed an 
application in 1999 with the CPUC to value its hydro

electric generating facilities at $993 million, or about twice 
their book value. The joint filing proposes that SCE retain

customers well into the 21st century. The partnership 

also provides long-term economic and other benefits to 

the city. Long Beach officials had considered exercising a 

unique franchise provision allowing the city to acquire 

and operate SCE's electric distribution system.  

In addition, SCE is working to expand its distribution 

system by pursuing acquisitions of the distribution facili

ties on military bases throughout the service territory, 

effectively strengthening SCE's relationship with one of 

its largest customers, the U.S. government, by helping 

them achieve their privatization goals.  

In 1999, SCE's business and economic development 

efforts have resulted in more than 75 new businesses locating 

or expanding in SCE's service territory bringing with

San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station 
achieved a site capacity factor of 88% and 

earned $97 million due to operating excellence.

those hydroelectric assets within the utility and continue 
to operate and maintain them under a PBR and revenue

sharing arrangement. Those assets consist of 36 power
houses, 79 generating units and associated damns, reservoirs 
and waterways, with a total operating capacity of about 
1,156 MW.  

SCE recently filed a proposal with the CPUC to establish 
electricity rates that would go into effect when the current 
rate freeze ends on March 31, 2002, or earlier, depending 

on the pace of SCE's stranded cost recovery. In principle, 
the proposal seeks CPUC approval to reduce electric rates 
for all customer classes at the end of the rate freeze. In 
addition, SCE proposed to redesign T&D rates to reflect the 
actual cost of delivering electricity and serving customers.  
(Under the traditional approach, T&D costs have been 
priced according to the customer's kilowatt-hour use.) 

COMMITMENT TO SOUTHERN CALIFORtNIA 

During 1999, SCE and the city of Long Beach signed 
a "Parteiship for the Future" proposal, which allows SCE 
to continue providing electric service to Long Beach

them several thousand jobs and electricity load growth, 
which contributes to shareholder earnings through 
increased revenue and accelerated CTC collection.  

YEAR 2000 AND BEYOND 

Information Technology (IT) successfully implemented 

and managed the corporate Year 2000 Program, which 
included inventorying, remediating and testing all mission
critical systems and assets - including more than 370 
softsvare applications with nearly 210 million lines of 
computer code - across Edison International to mitigate 

possible effects of the so-calledY2K bug' 

At peak, more than 500 frill- and part-time people worked 
on the Y2K effort, which was completed on time and 
under budget, thanks to careful program and asset manage
ment, and the long-standing commitment of Edison 
employees to service reliability and customer satisfaction.
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Edison Capital continued its outstanding financial perfor 
mance, posting its sixth straight record year with operating 
earnings of $136.9 millon, or 5039 per share. Growth in 
earnings from infrastructure investments and the syndication 
ofinterests in affordable housing were primarily responsible 
for this 34 percent increase over 1998 operating earnings of 
$105.3 aillion, or $0,29 per share. Edison Capital has pro
duced compounded annual earnings growth of more than 
36 percent over the last five years, and about 28 percent 
since its inception. Moreover, return on equity based on 
operating earnings for 1999 was 28.5 percent, and has 
averaged nearly 23 6 percent over the past five years. On a 
reported basis, includinig a one time adjustment associated

Edison Capital's investment strategy is to build a diversified 
portfolio of investments based on: (1) Edison International's 

core strength in the power and infrastructure arena; 

(2) positioning the company to take advantage of market 
opporvtunties in targeted sectors, regions and capital products; 
and (3) establishing multiple market entry vehicles through 

direct investment,joint ventures and active participation in 

infrastructure funds.

ESTABLISHING A GLOBAL PRESENCE 
Through strategic direct investments and acrive participation 
in leading infrastructure finds worldwide, Edison Capital 
invested $270 million in energy and infrastructure projects 
in 1999, and started 2000 with more than $600 million of 
projects in the pipeline.

Edison Capital's return on equity
has averaged 2000

since its inception 12 years ago.

with an executive incentive plan that is being discontirued, 
Edison Capital posted net income of $129.4 million, or 
$0.37 per share, a 28 percent increase over 1998 reported 
earnings of $0.29. During 1999, Edison Capital closed 
$402 tmlhon of investments, including $270 millioni in 
electricity/infrastructure and $132 niillion in affordable 
housing. The company has a pipeline ofmore than $700 
m.llion of transactions that will close in 2000 and 2001, 
strong cash flow from existing investments, and the equiv 
alent credit ratings of"A " from Standard & Poor's, Duff & 
Phelps and Moody's, all of which provide Edison Capital 
with a vibrant growth outlook.

INTEGRATION SUPPORTING GROWTH 
The pace of worldwde velctricity and ifiastrmctue develop 
ment and privatization is increasing rapidly and will require 
a significant amount of capital to support such projects.  
With a history of strong financial performance, a skilled and 
experienced team of financing experts, and an investment 
presence in each of the worlds major niarkets, Edison 
Capital is well positioned to expand Edison International's 
penetration into this growing market opportunity

Europe - Continuing its participation in the infrastructure 
leasing market, Edison Capital invested $116 nudion in a 
telecommunications duct network with Swisscom, Switzer 
land's partially privatized, goverimient majority-owned 
national telecoimnunications company. Located in northeast 
Svitzerland, the duct network carries all voice and data 
traffic, In its first participation in an Edison Mission Energy 
project, Edison Capital provided $243 million of mezza 
nine financing for the acquisition of the Ferrybridge and 
Fiddler's Ferry generating stations in northern England.  
This financing closed in Januar 2000. Edison Capital's 
participation in the capitalization ofthis project enhances 
the value of Edison International's investment and provides 
a positive illustration of the type of liikages that can be 
produced within the integrated growth strategy, Edison 
Capital has comnmtted $125 nifion to co-sponsor a new 
$525 million Emerging Europe Infrastructure Fund LP, 
which will invest in electricity and infrastructure projects 
in Central and Eastern Europe, American International
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Group Ihic.Al(;)iani (IA1XN-AMS]IKO aire the otlhei co

sponsors of ti•i utnd. IXuriig 1999. Edisou Capital closed its 

second Uit'd lKingdomi Private Finance Initiative (tIFI) 

tiraisactcon wxith ai $ ull " iion iLezzatiinC ilncstitlent ill 
King's lospital, and is currently wtoirking oi 13 additional 
projects rcti pi stingl S55 iillioi These investments provide 

EdLson C ipital with ani attacti c i eturi i and long' terii 

earningn prontie IThe PH nodel is extending into Italy.  

Span aind Portugal, providiimg Edison Capital iddituoiial 
inixestnileit oppoituiinitic.  

o 1 f/ .cýi Four wilxt-enCrgn" projects 'were placed 

into service iti which -Idison Capital has in aggregate 

iiivestie'tlt or 'S 08 million. All of the projects are located 

in the Ntidix\VCt, inCiiC dinlgi Edison Capital's most recent 

investinimnt ill Einion Wind (orp.'s Storrii Lake I. The niexly

S]13.6 million it seven projects.Together with LAIF and 

AIE. Edison C(apital committed $20 million to Mandeville, 
a $100n million cable television joint venture in Mexico.  
Mandeville xxas formed to acquire existing cable television 

sxstenis and fund the expansion of Mexico's conmtunica

tions infrastructture. Irmoig the year, Mandeville closed on 
the Ccquisition of two existing cable television systems in 
CalICtil an~d MWrida.  

Si -'i- Edison Capital entered the Asian market throutgh 

its $1(J) million conmmitment in 1998 and active partici

pation in the $1.7 billion AIG Asian Infi-astructure Fund LI.  

The fiiid had a stronig Near in 1999, with Edison Capital 

closinmg investments oti$25 million in five projects.

Since its inception, Edison Capital 
has successfully engaged in transactions 

totaling $20 billion.

coCstructcd 1 I 2.5-megaxait project, located along the 

Buitlalo Ridge in) Iiox\ai. rmak as the largest winmd project ill 
the cOIIitio rin IiU i the nix simcnt procCess Edison• Capital 

put the iiiteg' ited grix0\% tlteux to Nork bC drax ling Ciii 

Idlixi intcrtianioi al's cxteixsixc experience ili the windi 

eiier g field. li iiijunctioin wxih TIxust C CoIpaiiix Of the 
W~est (TC\V), Edison Capital conmmitted S-51) million to 

the cI-caitioi ot a iiC'W $/ Nillio1 iiitfi-axtiutiCt mezCz'ani11iilne 
tFiiiCl, expec red to close ina i ) that \\ill tfocus oii promidiin 

iczzaniic i -apita into inFiiastructurC projects iii the UClited 

States and othelCr ke i lobal ifitastructire markets.  

1.Ctiii - tINCUNl - IECisoii Capital ContiiueCd to dcevelop its 

I.itni 'Aii ricm priiCeiC' throLitgh its aCtivxe PartiCitioini 

iii the Sl billion AI(I-GE I.atin Amlerican ImfitaStitiCtUrC 

FLitid (IAI ).Tlhis tiiid is iti the latter stages oC its invest 

iiCnit cvcli, ii]ii ippiovCed inviCtiiiC its totaling 6(J perceiit 

IF Edisoni ('ipital' s origi:ia.l x8 i million conitlitment.  
'Ihrou~g] d7 tlle td Ill 1991), fdison] Capital invested

Aff•irdmblc Hiisiiig -xOver the past 12 sears, Edison Capital 

has invested more than $1 billion in iiore than 330 afford 

able lihiusimg projects a key groiwth platform for the 

companyx- representing 26(000 housing units in 35 states.  

During 1999, the company closed $132 million in invest

mieilts, representing a 31 percent increase fi-om the previous 

x e ai and coimiitteCd $161 tiillion, a 56 percent iincrease 

over 1998 coiiiitiients. Edison Capital completed five 
syndications of aff'ordablc housing properties during the 

year.These transactions bring the total number of x-sndica

tions comnpleted to 15, reflecting the quality, Value and 

liquidiv oft he connpaii 's af•lordable housing portfolio.  

The.John Stexwiart Company, the housing management 

subsidiary of Edison Capital, increased its Units Under 

maiagimce nt by 61 percent. The i company also signed a 

lease xx ith the Treasure Island DlexelopmCnt Authormtv 

(city Cf San Francisco) foi the rehabilitation, marketing 

and iianagcment of 766 housing units in conjunction 

Witli the Closiie Ct tlie Treasure Island Naval Station and 

conCe-xsion to pubtie cise.
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EDISON ENTERPRISES

Edison Enterpric e provides products and services for 

Colmerial, 1. retail and ltility Markets. lttIdInIg eItlg-N 
11111allaC111CMl SClVices Fo.r business customers, hlorle security 
sIervice t> .1.-CIed to' s, alo d 1 utilith s irtiets to 

new developments and existillg utilities.  

Iii 1999. Edison Enterprises recorded a loss oni an oper

ating basis 0F S'.16 per share, 01 '55.5 million. Po help the 

Colltany1 etStergitO buLsitiesses achieve their goals wNthii 

tie framewcork of supporting Edison International's inte

,,rated lro\Nh sitrategy, Edison Enterprises significantly 
leCt tctisCd to: I eIl)N mpower operating management NN-til1 

respotlsibilitN -'or superior custonser seNvice, groiNh and 
profitability and (2) concentrate its compat es oil strategic 
opportunities 1), traMSI-'rr1lmg Or di~scon~tl~iuing its 111-oI-cor 

I iINON Nil I L( I 

I)uring 19(l9. the comtpan integrated its acquisitions of 

\\`eIc lZc~idcntial Securito Inc. andtiVlleN Butglar & Fire 

Alarm Co. [Inc. Into Edison SecurityI achieved accelerated 

security 01N 0o\N11h o1`33 percent to more than 23 7.(() C1,u_ 

tomelrs; andl relocated tl':e securim- mIonlitorimlg center to 

its San I )imas. Calit. headquarters. II[i addition. Edison 

FnterpIrises ftlrithred its tstiLlooler serVice efforts by estabi 

lishitg, Itatt-ot -the-art customer serNice center ili Las \e aNS 

and bt dIN ltelpirg antd toplemi elitilic lNew inftormaion 

NN stein. Xle!nN hu1e, to ticus Ont its secutity b1usiiess, the 

comIpalny disconticied the Fdison OnCalltE appliance, 

heaitil ltd 1 lir conditioning repair service, and asked the 

C ali- orIt ia Public Utilities (Con t iSSiOni ior auIthorization to 

transit) r it> electrical S1arrai1t1 Iervice bintiitess to Southern 

Caflittrnia Edison.

IIS1')N" S)U IRCL 

FoCtsitmri1 on its integrated Energy Outsourcing (EOf) 

and Industrial Fast Charge (IFC) products and services, 

the cotmpany recorded a nultibcr of significant achieve

illents ill 1999. Specifically. the companly integrated its 

acquisitions of refirigeration contractorts CHV, Scott Polar 

and Kimmel-I'votz into Edison Source, and implemented 

titrimiel1o1us operating procedures to achieve profitable encrgy 

and equiprieiit Ilatlintenance e ServicCS for supermarket 

C11St iiers. As a result of its efforts, Edison Source 

received outstanlding ccustooier servicte ratings tfrom its 

stIpertiarket customers, thlus helping to develop its reputa

tion as a leading energy management company in the 

refriteration indtistIrN. Primarily targeted to the supermarket 

irdustry , [EO provides operations and mainteniance services 

for refrigeration, heatige venItilation, air conditioning.  

lighlting and other electrical systems eqlifpmIieIit.  

Confirming tile reliability and operating benefits of its 

IFE battery products, Edison Source has received long

tertil contracts from Ford Motor Co., Gap, Nestle and 

Hunt WVesson. Tareethd to iianuocifacttiring and distribution 

tacilitces. IFE' provides fast-charingl equipment. installation 

and >ervicC solutions for electric tlrk-lift applications.  

L 1)[1S:) N U I 1. 1 FY S 1;.V I C ES 

Furthering Edison Utility Services' (EUS).S reputation as a 

strategic provider of electric distribution services through 
oIt tIle United States, EUS has executed 12 lo'ng-terro 

contr:Icts to provide services to business cNttIomers in 

Calitt rnia and Florida, wNlhereby EUS NN ill design, construct, 

operate and laintain utility ilfi astrult tllr CNs SNtch as electric, 

gas. water and telecommunications. Contracted services 

also include the provisioning of0an Outage Management 

System (ONIS). Dluring 1999. EUS successfllly inlple

litcntcd ia state-of-the-art OMS tor the Orlando Utilities 

Co61)1 lissiont.
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Edison International and Subsidiaries

MANAGEMENT ' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL'CONDITION

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Earnings 
Edison International's 1999 basic earnings per share were $1.79, 

compared with $1.86 in 1998 and $1.75 in 1997. Southern 
California Edison (SCE) earned $1.39 in 1999, compared with 
$1.37 in 1998 and $1.44 in 1997. Edison Mission Energy (EME) 
earned 37$ in 1999, unchanged from 1998 and up from 29$ in 
1997. Edison Capital earned 37$ in 1999, compared with 29$ 
in 1998 and 15$ in 1997. Edison Enterprises and the parent 
company were responsible for a combined negative earnings 
impact of 34$ in 1999, compared with negative 17$ in 1998 
and negative 13$ in 1997. Edison International's 1999 earnings 
included special charges of 24$ (a 22$ charge at EME and 

Edison Capital, and a 6$ charge at Edison Enterprises, partially 
offiet by a 4$ gain at SCE).  

1999 vs. 1998 
SCE's 1999 earnings of $1.39 included a 4$ tax benefit due to 
a one-time adjustment that resulted from an Internal Revenue 
Service ruling. Excluding the gain, SCE's 1999 earnings were 
$1.35 per share, down 2$ from 1998. The decrease was mainly 
due to the accelerated depreciation of SCE's generation assets, 
partially offset by higher kilowatt-hour sales in 1999.  

EME and Edison Capital's combined earnings of 74$ in 
1999 included special charges of 20$ at EME and 2$ at Edison 
Capital to reflect anticipated changes in the phantom stock 
option programs for both companies. See discussion of phan
tom stock option programs in Note 8 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Excluding the special charges, EME's 
1999 earnings were 57$, up 20$ over 1998. The increase was 
primarily due to higher revenue from existing projects and 
revenue from projects acquired in 1999. Excluding the special 
charges, Edison Capital's 1999 earnings were 39$, up 10$ over 
1998. The increase was mostly due to higher earnings from its 

infrastructure investments and the sale of interests in affordable 
housing projects.  

Edison Enterprises and the parent company's 1999 negative 
effect on earnings of 34$ per share included a one-time 
adjustment of 6$ per share related to actions taken at Edison 
Enterprises to close five businesses. Excluding the one-time 
adjustment, Edison Enterprises and the parent company had 
a negative earnings impact of 28$ in 1999, compared to a 
negative 17$ in 1998. Increased interest expense at the parent 
company and continued investment in Edison Enterprises' 
ongoing businesses contributed to most of the 1999 decrease.

The reduced number of outstanding shares, which resulted 
from a share repurchase program initiated in 1995, benefited 
Edison International's earnings per share by 6$ in 1999.  

1998 vs. 1997 
SCE's 1998 earnings of $1.37 per share were 7$ lower than 
1997. The decrease was mainly due to reduced authorized 
returns on generating assets and a lower earning asset base, 
partially offiet by superior operating performance at the San 
Onofre Nuclear Generating Station. The lower earning asset 
base was mainly the result of the accelerated recovery of 
investments and divestiture of 12 generating plants.  

EME and Edison Capital had combined earnings of 66$ 
in 1998, up 22$ over 1997.The increase was primarily due to 

increased investments in cross-border lease transactions, afford
able housing, and infrastructure projects at Edison Capital, as 
well as improved performance of energy projects and lower net 
interest costs at EME.  

Start-up and acquisition-related costs at Edison Enterprises 
continued to negatively impact earnings in 1998.  

The reduced number of outstanding shares benefited Edison 
International's earnings per share by 19$ in 1998.  

Operating Revenue 
As a result of industry restructuring, customers have an option 
to buy power from SCE or directly from the California Power 
Exchange (PX), thus becoming direct access customers. Most 
direct access customers are continuing to be billed by SCE, 

but are also given a credit for the generation portion of their 
bills. Electric utility revenue increased by less than 1% in 1999, 
as increased kilowatt-hour sales and revenue resulting from 
maintenance work SCE is providing the new owners of the 
divested plants was almost completely offiet by the credit given 
to customers who chose direct access. Electric utility revenue 
decreased 6% in 1998 compared to 1997, reflecting lower aver
age residential rates, partially offset by an increase in revenue 
resulting from the maintenance work noted above. In 1999, 
over 93% of electric utility revenue was from retail sales. Retail 
rates are regulated by the California Public Utilities Cornnis

sion (CPUC) and wholesale rates are regulated by the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

annual report 1999
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Edison International and Subsidiaries

iMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Due to warmer weather during the summer months, elec

tric operating revenue during the third quarter of each year is 

significantly higher than other quarters.  

Legislation enacted in September 1996 provided for, among 

other things, a 10% rate reduction for residential and small 
commercial customers beginning in 1998 and other rates to 

remain frozen at June 1996 levels (system average of 10.1 g per 
kilowatt-hour). See discussion of proposed post-rate freeze 
rates in SCE's Regulatory Environment.  

The changes in electric utility revenue resulted from: 

Year ended December 31, 

In millions 1999 1998 1997 

Electric utility revenue 

Rate changes (including 
refunds) $ (65) $(498) $173 

Direct access credit (213) (29) 

Sales volume changes 191 (44) 193 
Other 110 117 4 

Total $ 23 $(454) $370 

Nonutility power generation revenue increased substantially 

in 1999, primarily due to revenue increases related to the 
Homer City, Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry, and Midwest 

Generation LLC (acquired in December 1999) generating 

facilities. Nonutility power generation revenue decreased in 
1998, mostly due to a series of new power-sales related con

tracts (where revenue is being deferred due to EME's revenue 

recognition policies) associated with EME's LoyYang B project 
and lower Australian currency exchange rates, partially offiet 

by higher energy revenue from First Hydro, as a result of 

higher energy prices.  

Due to warmer weather during the summer months, nonu

tility power generation revenue from Homer City and Midwest 

Generation is usually higher during the third quarter of each 

year. In addition, EME's third quarter revenue from energy pro

jects is materially higher than other quarters of the year due to 

a significant number of EME's domestic energy projects located 

on the western coast of the United States, which generally have 

power sales contracts that provide for higher payments during 

summer months. First Hydro, Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry, 
and Iberian Hy-Power provide for higher nonutility power 

generation revenue during the winter months.

Financial services and other revenue increased in 1999, 
mostly due to the closing of five affordable housing syndications 
and additional lease transactions at Edison Capital. Financial 
services and other revenue increased in 1998, mainly due to 
increased revenue related to Edison Capital's cross-border lease 
transactions and increased revenue at an Edison Enterprises 
subsidiary.  

Operating Expenses 
Fuel expense increased in 1999, when compared to 1998.The 
increase was primarily due to an increase at EME for expenses 
at Homer City, the Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry generating 
facilities, Midwest Generation and the Doga project in Turkey 
(which began commercial operation in 1999).This increase 
was partially offset by a decrease at SCE resulting from the sale 
of the generating plants in 1998. Fuel expense decreased in 
1998, mostly due to SCE's generating plant divestiture. EME 
also had decreased fuel expense in 1998, mainly due to lower 
fuel costs at its LoyYang B project.  

Purchased-power expense - contracts decreased in both 1999 
and 1998, primarily due to SCE entering into settlements to 
end its contractual obligations with certain nonutility genera
tors (known as qualifying facilities, or QFs) and the terms in 
some of the QF contracts reverting to a lower price basis.  
Prior to April 1998, SCE was required under federal law and 
CPUC orders to enter into contracts to purchase power from 
QFs at CPUC-mandated prices even though energy and 
capacity prices under many of these contracts are generally 
higher than other sources. In 1999, SCE paid about $1.5 billion 
(including energy and capacity payments) more for these 
power purchases than the cost of power available from other 
sources. SCE is continuing to purchase power under existing 
contracts from certain QFs and from other utilities.  

Since April 1, 1998, SCE has been required to sell all of its 
generated power through the PX and acquire all of its power 
from the PX to distribute to its retail customers. These transac
tions with the PX are reported net. In 1999, PX purchased
power expense increased 19%, mainly due to three additional 
months of PX transactions in 1999. However, when 1999 PX 
purchased-power expense is compared on the same nine-month 
basis as 1998, the increase is less than 1%, despite the fact that 
SCE experienced a significant decrease in the volume of kilo
watt-hour sales through the PX. The lower volume of sales 
through the PX in 1999 was the result of less generation at SCE 
(San Onofre refueling outages in 1999, divestiture of SCE's 12 
generating plants in 1998 and reduced hydroelectric generation) 
and fewer purchases from QFs. QF power purchases and other 
purchased power is also sold through the PX.
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Provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses decreased in 

both 1999 and 1998. The 1999 decrease was mainly due to 
undercollections related to the difference between generation

related revenue and generation-related costs and the rate-making 
treatment of the rate reduction notes. These undercollections 
were partially offset by overcollections related to the adnminis

tration of public purpose funds. The 1998 decrease was mainly 
due to the revenue deferrals related to the rate-making treat
ment of the rate reduction notes. This rate-making treatment 
has allowed for the deferral of the recovery of a portion of the 

transition-related costs, from a four-year period to a 10-year 

period. See the discussion in Revenue and Cost-Recovery 
Mechanisms.  

Other operation and maintenance expenses increased in 
1999, primarily due to: expenses incurred at EME and Edison 

Capital to reflect an anticipated exchange offer to the holders 

of outstanding phantom options at these companies; increased 
plant operating expenses at EME due to the Homer City, Fer
rybridge and Fiddler's Ferry, and Midwest Generation acquisi
tions in 1999, as well as the Doga project; additional reserves 
for five affordable housing syndications at Edison Capital; 
increases at Edison Enterprises' security subsidiary; and the 
actions taken at Edison Enterprises to close five businesses and 
refocus the ongoing businesses. In addition, SCE had a net 

increase in other operation and maintenance expenses primar
ily related to its PX and ISO costs (including grid manage
ment costs), partially offiet by a decrease related to lower 

expenses incurred at its distribution facilities. Lastly, a nonutil
ity subsidiary incurred a decrease in operating expenses in 
1999 related to the sale of real estate in 1998. Other operation 
and maintenance expenses increased in 1998, mostly due to an 
increase in mandated transmission service (known as must-run 
reliability services) expenses, direct access activities, and PX and 
Independent System Operator (ISO) costs incurred by SCE, as 
well as higher expenses at Edison Enterprises' security sub

sidiary. Also, storm damage expense resulting from the harsh 
winter in 1998 contributed to SCE's 1998 increase.

Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization expense 
increased in 1999, mainly due to EME's acquisitions of Homer 

City and the Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry generating facili
ties. In 1998, depreciation, decommissioning and amortization 
expense increased, primarily due to the further acceleration of 
recovery of San Onofre Units 2 and 3 and the Palo Verde 
Nuclear Generating Station units, accelerated recovery of 
SCE's generating plants, and the amortization of the loss on 
plant sales. The amortization of the loss on SCE's plant sales, as 

well as the accelerated recoveries implemented in 1998 are part 
of the competition transition charge (CTC) mechanism.  

Net gain on sale of utility plant resulted from the sale of 

SCE's generating plants in 1998. Gains were used to reduce 
stranded costs. Losses will be recovered from customers over 
the transition period through the CTC mechanism.  

Other Income 
Interest and dividend income decreased in 1999, primarily due 

to lower cash balances at EME. Interest and dividend income 

increased in 1998, reflecting higher investment balances due to 
the sale of SCE's generating plants, as well as increases in inter
est earned on higher balancing account undercollections.  

Other nonoperating income increased in 1999, primarily 
due to the one-time adjustment in 1999, which resulted from 
an Internal Revenue Service ruling that allowed SCE to record 
a tax benefit, and the gain on sales of equity investments at 
SCE. In 1998, other nonoperating income increased due to 
additional accruals in 1997 at SCE for regulatory matters.  

Fixed Charges and Taxes 
Interest and amortization on long-term debt increased in 
1999, reflecting additional long-term debt at EME to finance 
its Homer City, Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry generating 
facilities, and Midwest Generation acquisitions. Increased 
long-term debt at Edison International (parent company) also 

contributed to the increased interest expense.These 1999 increases 
were partially offset by a decrease at SCE due to an adjustment 
of accrued interest in first quarter 1998 related to the rate 
reduction notes issued in December 1997. Interest and amorti
zation on long-term debt increased in 1998, mainly due to an 

increase at SCE related to the issuance of the rate reduction 
notes. Interest on the rate reduction notes was $134 million in 
1999 and $148 million in 1998.
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Other interest expense increased substantially in 1999, mostly 
due to additional debt for financing EME's acquisitions of gen
erating facilities. Higher overall short-term debt balances at 
both SCE and Edison International, the parent company, also 
contributed to the increase in 1999. In 1998, other interest 
expense decreased significantly, mostly due to lower overall 
short-term debt balances, primarily at SCE and at Edison 
International, the parent company. SCE's 1998 divestiture of its 
generating plants caused a decrease in its need for short-term 
debt used to finance the plants' fuel inventories.  

Dividends on preferred securities increased in 1999, reflecting 
the additional issuance of preferred securities at ElME during 
1999, and the issuance of quarterly income securities at Edison 
International, the parent company, in July and October 1999.  
Proceeds from the issuances were used primarily to finance 
EME's 1999 acquisitions of the Contact Energy Ltd., Fiddler's 
Ferry and Ferrybridge, and Midwest Generation generating 
facilities.  

Income taxes decreased in 1999, primarily due to lower pre
tax income, and income tax benefits EME recorded in 1999.  
In 1999, EME recorded tax benefits associated with a partial 
sale of its interest in an oil and gas joint venture and the refund 
of advanced corporation tax payments from the United King
dom. Income taxes decreased in 1998, primarily due to lower 
pre-tax income at SCE, as well as additional amortization at 
SCE related to the CTC mechanism, partially offiet by higher 
pre-tax income at Edison Capital related to its increased invest
ments in cross-border lease transactions, affordable housing, and 
infrastructure projects.  

FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Edison International's liquidity is primarily affected by debt 
maturities, dividend payments, capital expenditures, and invest
ments in partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries. Capital 
resources include cash from operations and external financings.  

Edison International's board of directors has authorized the 
repurchase of up to $2.8 billion of its outstanding shares of 
common stock. Edison International repurchased approxi
mately 101 million shares ($2.4 billion) between January 1995 
and February 1999, funded by dividends from its subsidiaries 
and the proceeds of the rate reduction notes. See the discus
sion in Cash Flows from Financing Activities.  

Edison International's dividend payout ratio for 1999 
was 59.8%.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Net cash provided by operating activities totaled $2.1 billion 
in 1999, $1.5 billion in 1998 and $2.1 billion in 1997. Edison 
International's cash flow coverage of dividends for 1999 was 
5.7 times compared to 3.9 times in 1998 and 5.2 times in 
1997. The rate-making treatment of the gains on sales of SCE's 
generating plants caused an increase in 1999, as well as the 
decrease in 1998.  

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
At December 31, 1999, Edison International and its subsidiaries 
had $572 million of borrowing capacity available under lines 
of credit totaling $3.8 billion. SCE had total lines of credit of 
$1.25 billion, with $39 million available for short-term debt 
and $515 million available for the long-term refinancing of its 
variable-rate pollution-control bonds. The parent company had 
total lines of credit of $590 million, with $108 million available.  
The nonutility subsidiaries had total lines of credit of $2.0 billion, 
with $425 million available to finance general cash require
ments. These unsecured lines of credit are at negotiated or 
bank index rates with various expiration dates.  

Both EME's short-term and long-term debt are used for 
general corporate purposes as well as acquisitions. SCE's 
short-term debt is used to finance fuel inventories and general 
cash requirements. SCE's long-term debt is used mainly to 
finance capital expenditures. SCE's external financings are 
influenced by market conditions and other factors, including 
limitations imposed by its articles of incorporation and trust 
indenture. As of December 31, 1999, SCE could issue approxi
mately $11.1 billion of additional first and refunding mortgage 
bonds and $2.8 billion of preferred stock at current interest 
and dividend rates.  

EME has firm commitments of $186 million to make equity 
and other contributions for the ISAB project in Italy, the 
EcoEl6ctrica project in Puerto Rico and the Tri Energy pro
ject in Thailand. EME also has contingent obligations to make 
additional contributions of $159 million, primarily for equity 
support guarantees related to the Paiton project in Indonesia.  

EME may incur additional obligations to make equity and 
other contributions to projects in the future. ElME believes it 
will have sufficient liquidity to meet these equity requirements 
from cash provided by operating activities, proceeds from the 
repayment of loans to energy projects and funds available from 
EME's revolving line of credit.
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Edison Capital has firm commitments of $364 million to fund 
affordable housing, and energy and infrastructure investments.  

California law prohibits SCE from incurring or guarantee
ing debt for its nonutility affiliates. Additionally, the CPUC 
regulates SCE's capital structure, limiting the dividends it may 

pay Edison International. At December 31, 1999, SCE had 
the capacity to pay $433 million in additional dividends and 
continue to maintain its authorized capital structure. These 
restrictions are not expected to affect Edison International's 

ability to meet its cash obligations.  

In December 1997, $2.5 billion of rate reduction notes were 
issued on behalf of SCE by SCE Funding LLC, a special pur

pose entity. These notes were issued to finance the 10% rate 
reduction mandated by state law. The proceeds of the rate 

reduction notes were used by SCE Funding LLC to purchase 
from SCE an enforceable right known as transition property.  
Transition property is a current property right created by the 

restructuring legislation and a financing order of the CPUC 
and consists generally of the right to be paid a specified 
amount from non-bypassable rates charged to residential and 
small commercial customers.The rate reduction notes are 
being repaid over 10 years through these non-bypassable resi
dential and small commercial customer rates which constitute 
the transition property purchased by SCE Funding LLC. The 
remaining series of outstanding rate reduction notes have 
scheduled maturities beginning in 2000 and ending in 2007, 
with interest rates ranging from 6.14% to 6.42%. The notes 
are secured by the transition property and are not secured by, 
or payable from, assets of SCE or Edison International. SCE 

used the proceeds from the sale of the transition property to 
retire debt and equity securities.  

Although, as required by generally accepted accounting 
principles, SCE Funding LLC is consolidated with SCE and 

the rate reduction notes are shown as long-term debt in the 
consolidated financial statements, SCE Funding LLC is legally 
separate from SCE. The assets of SCE Funding LLC are not 
available to creditors of SCE or Edison International and the 
transition property is legally not an asset of SCE or Edison 
International.  

On January 24, 2000, SCE issued $250 million of 7 %% 
notes, due 2010.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Cash flows from investing activities are affected by additions to 
property and plant, purchases and sales of assets, the nonutility 
companies' investments in partnerships and unconsolidated 
subsidiaries, and funding of nuclear decommissioning trusts.  
Decommissioning costs are accrued and recovered in rates over 
the term of each nuclear generating facility's operating license.  
SCE estimates that it will spend approximately $8.6 billion 
through 2060 to decommission its nuclear facilities.This esti
mate is based on SCE's current-dollar decommissioning costs 
($2.0 billion), escalated at rates ranging from 0.3% to 10.0% 
(depending on the cost element) annually. These costs are 
expected to be funded from independent decommissioning 
trusts which receive SCE contributions of approximately 
$25 million per year.  

Cash used for the nonutility subsidiaries' investing activities 
was $9.0 billion in 1999, $1.2 billion in 1998 and $383 million 
in 1997.The 1999 increase is primarily due to EME's acquisi
tion of Homer City in March 1999, Contact Energy in May 

1999, the Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry generating facilities 
in July 1999, and the Midwest Generation plants in December 

1999. The 1998 increase was primarily related to EME's own
ership purchase in the EcoElkctrica project in Puerto Rico 
and Edison Capital's investment in leveraged leases in 1998.  

Market Risk Exposures 
Edison International's primary market risk exposures arise 
from fluctuations in energy prices, interest rates and foreign 
exchange rates. Edison International's risk management policy 
allows the use of derivative financial instruments to manage its 
financial exposures, but prohibits the use of these instruments 

for speculative or trading purposes.  

A 10% increase in market interest rates would result in a 
$36 million increase in the fair value of Edison International's 
interest rate hedge agreements. A 10% decrease in market 
interest rates would result in a $36 million decline in the fair 
value of interest rate hedge agreements. A 10% increase in 

pool prices would result in a $130 million decrease in the fair 
market value of electricity rate swap agreements. A 10% 
decrease in pool prices would result in a $130 million increase 
in the fair market value of electricity rate swap agreements. A 

10% increase in natural gas prices would result in a $20 mil
lion increase in the fair market value of gas call options. A 10% 
decrease in natural gas prices would result in an $11 million 
decline in the fair market value of gas call options. A 10% 
change in market rates is expected to have an immaterial effect 

on Edison International's other financial instruments.
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SCE Issues 
As a result of the rate freeze established in the restructuring 
legislation, SCE's transition costs are recovered as the residual 
component of rates once the costs for distribution, transmis
sion, public purpose programs, nuclear decommissioning and 
the cost of supplying power to its customers through the PX 
and ISO have already been recovered. Accordingly, more rev
enue will be available to cover transition costs when market 
prices in the PX and ISO are low than when PX and ISO 
prices are high. The PX and ISO market prices to date have 
generally been consistent, although some irregular price spikes 
have occurred. The ISO has responded to price spikes in the 
market for reliability services (referred to as ancillary services) 
by imposing a price cap on the market for such services until 
certain actions have been completed to improve the function
ing of those markets. Similarly, the ISO currently maintains a 
cap on its market for imbalance energy until adequate measures 
to improve the efficient operation of the market have been 
implemented. The caps in these markets mitigate the risk of 
costly price spikes that would reduce the revenue available to 
SCE to pay transition costs. The price cap instituted by the 
ISO in the summer of 1998 was $250/MWh. In October 1999, 
that cap was raised to $750/MWh and will remain at that level 
through the summer of 2000, unless certain identified market 
improvements do not occur. Under such circumstances, the 
price cap can be reduced to $500/MWh. SCE has entered into 
gas call options to mitigate high natural gas prices, since increases 
in natural gas prices tend to raise the price of electricity.  

In July 1999, SCE began participating in forward purchases 
through a PX block forward market. In the PX block forward 
market, SCE can purchase monthly blocks of energy for six 
days a week (excluding Sundays and holidays) for 16 hours a 
day. These purchases can be made up to 12 months in advance 
of the delivery date. The CPUC has currently limited SCE's 
use of the PX block forward market to a maximum of approx
imately 2,000 MW in any month. The PX has requested 
authority from the FERC to sell other forward products 
including a peak product, six days a week, for eight hours a 
day. SCE has requested rate-making treatment from the CPUC 
for its use of these additional products, and has requested an 
expansion of the limits from all forward PX products up to 
5,200 MW in summer months. SCE requested permission 
from the CPUC to begin a demand responsiveness program 
that would allow customers to be paid to curtail their load 
during times of very high prices. SCE expects a CPUC reso
lution on these issues by the end of March 2000.

mt

EME Issues 
Changes in interest rates, electricity pool pricing and fluctua
tions in foreign currency exchange rates can have a significant 
impact on EME's results of operations. EME has mitigated a 
portion of the risk of interest rate fluctuations by arranging for 
fixed rate or variable rate financing with interest rate swaps or 
other hedging mechanisms for the majority of its project financ
ings. Interest expense includes $25 million in 1999, $23 million 
in 1998 and $21 million in 1997, as a result of interest rate swap 
and collar agreements. Several of EME's interest rate swap and 
collar agreements mature prior to their underlying debt. EME 
does not believe that interest rate fluctuations will have a material 
adverse effect on its results of operations or financial position.  

Projects in the U.K. sell their electric energy and capacity 
through a centralized electricity pool, which establishes a half
hourly clearing price, or pool price, for electric energy. The 
pool price is extremely volatile, and can vary by a factor of 10 
or more over the course of a few hours due to large differen
tials in demand according to the time of day. First Hydro and 
Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry mitigate a portion of the mar
ket risk of the pool by entering into contracts for differences 
(electricity rate swap agreements), related to either the selling 
or purchasing price of power, where a contract specifies a 
price at which the electricity will be traded, and the parties to 
the agreements make payments, calculated on the difference 
between the price in the contract and the pool price for the 
element of power under contract. These contracts are sold in 
various structures. These contracts act as a means of stabilizing 
production revenue or purchasing costs by removing an ele
ment of their net exposure to pool price volatility. A proposal 
to replace the current structure of the forward-contracts mar
ket and the pool has been made by the Director General of 
Electricity Supply, at the request of the Minister for Science, 
Energy and Industry in the U.K. The Minister has recom
mended that the proposal be implemented by October 2000.  
Further definition of the proposal will be required before the 
effects of the changes can be evaluated. Legislation is being 
introduced to allow for the implementation of new trading 
arrangements.
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Electric power generated at Homer City is sold under bilat
eral arrangements with domestic utilities and power marketers 
under short-term contracts (two years or less) or to the Penn
sylvania-New Jersey-Maryland Power Pool (PJM) or the New 
York Independent System Operator (NYISO). The PJM pool 
has a market that establishes an hourly clearing price. Homer 
City is located in the PJM pool area and is physically con
nected to high-voltage transmission lines serving both the PJM 
and NYISO markets. Power can also be transmitted to the 
mid-western United States. EME has developed risk manage
ment policies and procedures which, among other matters, 
address credit risk. It is EME's policy to sell to investment 
grade counterparties or counterparties that have an investment 
grade guarantor. EME hedges a portion of the electric output 
of the plant in order to lock in desirable outcomes. EME also 
manages the margin between electric prices and fuel prices 
when deemed appropriate. EME uses forward contracts, swaps, 
futures or option contracts to achieve these objectives.  

Midwest Generation and Commonwealth Edison (CornEd) 
entered into purchase power agreements in which CornEd will 
purchase capacity and have the right to purchase energy gen
erated by the Midwest Generation units (see discussion under 
EME Acquisitions). The agreements, which began on Decem
ber 15, 1999, and have a term of up to five years, provide for 
capacity and energy payments. CornEd will be obligated to 
make a capacity payment for the units under contract and an 
energy payment for the electricity produced by these units.  
The capacity payment will provide Midwest Generation rev
enue for fixed charges, and the energy payment will compen
sate Midwest Generation for variable costs of production. If 
CornEd does not fully dispatch the units under contract, Mid
west Generation may sell, subject to certain conditions, the 
excess energy at market prices to neighboring utilities, munici
palities, third party electric retailers, large consumers and 
power marketers on a spot basis.  

LoyYang B sells its electrical energy through a centralized 
electricity pool, which provides for a system of generator bid
ding, central dispatch and a settlements system based on a 
clearing market for each half-hour of every day. The Victorian 
Power Exchange, operator and administrator of the pool, 
determines a system marginal price each half-hour. To mitigate 
the exposure to price volatility of the electricity traded in the 
pool, LoyYang B has entered into a number of financial 
hedges. From May 8, 1997, to December 31, 2000, 53% to 
64% of the plant output sold is hedged under vesting con
tracts, with the remainder of the plant capacity hedged under 
the State Government of Victoria, Australia (State) hedge 
described below. Vesting contracts were put into place by the

State, between each generator and each distributor, prior to 
the privatization of electric power distributors in order to pro
vide more predictable pricing for those electricity customers 
that were unable to choose their electricity retailer. Vesting 
contracts set base strike prices at which the electricity will be 
traded, and the parties to the agreement make payments, calcu
lated based on the difference between the price in the contract 
and the half-hourly pool clearing price for the element of 
power under contract. These contracts are sold in various 
structures. These contracts are accounted for as electricity rate 
swap agreements. The State hedge is a long-term contractual 
arrangement based upon a fixed price commencing May 8, 
1997, and terminating October 31, 2016. The State guarantees 
the State Electricity Commission of Victoria's obligations 
under the State hedge.  

EME's electric revenue increased by $61 million, $108 mil
lion and $96 million, respectively, for the years ended Decem
ber 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, as a result of electricity rate swap 
agreements and other hedging activities.  

As EME continues to expand into foreign markets, fluctua
tions in foreign currency exchange rates can affect the amount 
of its equity contributions to, distributions from and results of 
operations of its foreign projects. At times, EME has hedged a 
portion of its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange 
rates where it deems appropriate through financial derivatives, 
offsetting obligations denominated in foreign currencies, and 
indexing underlying project agreements to U.S. dollars or 
other indices reasonably expected to correlate with foreign 
exchange movements. Statistical forecasting techniques are 
used to help assess foreign exchange risk and the probabilities 
of various outcomes. There can be no assurance, however, that 
fluctuations in exchange rates will be fully offset by hedges or 
that currency movements and the relationship between macro
economic variables will behave in a manner that is consistent 
with historical or forecasted relationships.  

Paiton Project 
A wholly owned subsidiary of EME owns a 40% interest in the 
Paiton project, a 1,230-MW coal-fired power plant in Indonesia.  
The tariff is higher in the early years and steps down over time.  
The tariff for the Paiton project includes infrastructure to be 
used in common by other units at the Paiton complex. The 
plant's output is fully contracted with the state-owned electricity 
company for payment in Indonesian Rupiah, with the portion 
of such payments intended to cover non-Rupiah project costs
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(including returns to investors) indexed to the Indonesian 
Rupiah/U.S. dollar exchange rate established at the time of the 
power purchase agreement in February 1994. The state-owned 
electricity company's payment obligations are supported by the 
Indonesian government. The project received substantial finance 
and insurance support from the Export-Import Bank of the 
United States, The Export-Import Bank ofJapan, the U.S.  
Overseas Private Investment Corporation and the Ministry of 
International Trade and Industry of Japan. The projected rate 
of growth of the Indonesian economy and the exchange rate 
of Indonesian Rupiah into U.S. dollars have deteriorated 
significantly since the Paiton project was contracted, approved 
and financed. The Paiton project's senior debt ratings have been 
reduced from investment grade to speculative grade based on 
the rating agencies' perceived increased risk that the state-owned 
electricity company might not be able to honor the electricity 
sales contract with Paiton. The Indonesian government has 
arranged to reschedule sovereign debt owed to foreign govern
ments and has entered into discussions about rescheduling 
sovereign debt owed to private lenders. Certain events have 
occurred (including those discussed in the subsequent para
graph) which, with the passage of time or upon notice, may 
mature into defaults of the project's debt agreement. On Octo
ber 15,1999, the project entered into an interim agreement 
with its lenders, in which the lenders waived such defaults until 
July 31, 2000. However, such waiver may expire on an earlier 
date if additional defaults (other than those specifically waived) 
or certain other specified events occur.  

One of the Paiton units began commercial operation in 
May 1999 and the other unit in July 1999. Because of the 
economic downturn, the state-owned electricity company is 
experiencing low electricity demand and has therefore ordered 
no power from the Paiton plant; however, under the terms of 
the power purchase agreement, the state-owned electricity 
company is required to continue to pay for capacity and fixed 
operating costs once each unit and the plant achieve commercial 
operation. An invoice for these charges for May 1999 has been 
submitted and a partial payment, based on an arbitrary exchange 
rate that does not comply with the terms of the power purchase 
agreement, was received. Additional invoices for capacity charges 
and fixed operating costs have been submitted; no payment has 
been received. In addition, the state-owned electricity company 
and the project have begun discussions to renegotiate the power 
supply contract. However, it is not yet known what form the 
renegotiation may take. Any material modifications of the 
contract could also require a renegotiation of the Paiton pro
ject's debt agreement. The impact of any such renegotiations

with the state-owned electricity company, the Indonesian gov
ernment or the project's creditors on EME's expected return 
on its investment in Paiton is uncertain at this. time; however, 
EME believes that it will ultimately recover its investment in 
the project.  

Projected Capital Requirements 
Edison International's projected construction expenditures for 
the next five years are: 2000 - $1.4 billion; 2001 - $1.3 billion; 
2002 - $1.1 billion; 2003 - $1.0 billion; and 2004 - $945 mil
lion.  

Long-term debt maturities and sinking fund requirements 
for the next five years are: 2000 - $940 million; 2001 
$1.4 billion; 2002 - $1.6 billion; 2003 - $616 million; and 
2004 - $2.3 billion.  

Preferred stock redemption requirements for the next five 
years are: 2000 and 2001 - zero; 2002 - $105 million; 2003 
$9 million; and 2004 - $9 million.  

EME ACQUISITIONS 

In March 1999, EME completed the acquisition of the 
1,884-MW Homer City Generating Station for approximately 
$1.8 billion. Homer City was jointly owned by subsidiaries 
of GPU, Inc. and NewYork State Electric & Gas Corporation.  
The coal-fired facility has the rights to direct, high-voltage 
interconnections to both the NYISO and the PJM. The plant 
is located near Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. EME is operating the 
plant, which is one of the lowest-cost generation facilities in 
the region. EME financed the acquisition with a combination 
of debt secured by the project, EME corporate debt and cash.  

In May 1999, EME completed its acquisition of a 40% 
interest in New Zealand's government-owned Contact Energy 
Ltd. for approximately $635 million. The New Zealand gov
ernment sold the remaining 60% of Contact Energy to the 
public through an initial public offering. Contact Energy owns 
and operates hydroelectric, geothermal and natural gas-fired 
generating plants primarily in New Zealand with a total gen
erating capacity of 2,626 MW. EME financed the acquisition 
with subsidiary debt, an equity contribution from Edison 
International and cash.  

In July 1999, EME completed its acquisition of two electric 
generating plants, Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry, located in 
the United Kingdom from PowerGen U. K. plc, for approxi
mately $2 billion. Each of the plants has a generating capacity 
of about 2,000 MW The acquisition was financed primarily 
through a combination of debt secured by the project and 
equity from Edison International.
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In October 1999, EME acquired the remaining 20% interest 
in the Roosecote project, a 220-MW gas-fired power station 
located in northern England, for approximately $16 million.  

In December 1999, EME completed its acquisition of 
the fossil-fueled generating assets of CoinEd. The $4.9 billion 
transaction included amounts paid by a third party lessor in 
connection with a lease transaction. The coal-, gas- and oil
fired generating facilities have a total capacity of 9,510 MW.  
In conjunction with the acquisition, EME, who will operate 

the facilities through a subsidiary, Midwest Generation, will 
invest additional capital in the plants to upgrade pollution 
controls, extend plant life, improve reliability and reduce 
generation costs.  

SCE'S REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT 

SCE currently operates in a highly regulated environment 
in which it has an obligation to deliver electric service to cus
tomers in return for an exclusive franchise within its service 
territory. This regulatory environment is changing as a result of 
a 1995 CPUC decision on restructuring and state legislation 
enacted in 1996. The Statute substantially adopted the CPUC's 
restructuring decision by addressing stranded-cost recovery for 
utilities and providing a certain cost-recovery time period for 
the transition costs associated with generation-related assets.  
The Statute also included provisions to finance a portion of 
the stranded costs that residential and small commercial cus
tomers would have paid between 1998 and 2001, which allowed 
SCE to reduce rates by at least 10% to these customers, 
effective January 1, 1998. The Statute mandated other rates 
to remain frozen at June 1996 levels (system average of 10.10 
per kilowatt-hour), including those for large commercial and 
industrial customers, and included provisions for continued 

funding for energy conservation, low-income programs and 
renewable resources. Despite the rate freeze, SCE expects to be 
able to recover its revenue requirement during the 1998-2001 
transition period. In addition, the Statute mandated the imple
mentation of the CTC (see the detailed discussion in Revenue 

and Cost-Recovery Mechanisms) that provides utilities the 
opportunity to recover costs made uneconomic by electric 
utility restructuring.

Revenue and Cost-Recovery Mechanisms 
Revenue is determined by various mechanisms depending on 
the utility operation. Revenue related to distribution operations 
is being determined through a performance-based rate-making 
(PBR) mechanism and the distribution assets have the opportu
nity to earn a CPUC-authorized 9.49% return. The distribution 
PBR will extend through December 2001. Key elements of 
the distribution PBR include: distribution rates indexed for 
inflation based on the Consumer Price Index less a productivity 
factor; adjustments for cost changes that are not within SCE's 
control; a cost-of-capital trigger mechanism based on changes 
in a bond index; standards for customer satisfaction; service 
reliability and safety; and a net revenue-sharing mechanism that 
determines how customers and shareholders will share gains 
and losses from distribution operations. Transmission revenue 
is being determined through FERC-authorized rates that are 
subject to refund.  

SCE's transition costs are being recovered through a non
bypassable CTC.This charge applies to all customers who were 
using or began using utility services on or after the CPUC's 
December 1995 restructuring decision date. At the beginning 
of the transition period, SCE estimated its transition costs to 
be approximately $10.6 billion (1998 net present value) from 
1998 through 2030.This estimate was based on incurred costs, 
forecasts of future costs and assumed market prices. However, 
changes in the assumed market prices could materially affect 
these estimates. Transition costs related to power-purchase con
tracts are being recovered through the terms of their contracts 
while most of the remaining transition costs will be recovered 
through 2001. The potential transition costs are comprised of 
$6.4 billion from SCE's QF contracts, which are the direct 
result of prior legislative and regulatory mandates, and $4.2 bil
lion from costs pertaining to certain generating assets (includ
ing the 1998 sale of SCE's generating plants) and regulatory 
commitments consisting of costs incurred (whose recovery has 
been deferred by the CPUC) to provide service to customers.  
Such commitments include the recovery of income tax bene

fits previously flowed through to customers, postretirement 
benefit transition costs, accelerated recovery of San Onofre 
Units 2 and 3 and the Palo Verde units, and certain other costs.  
During 1998, SCE sold all of its gas- and oil-fueled generation 
plants for $1.2 billion, over $500 million more than the com

bined book value. Net proceeds of the sales were used to 
reduce stranded costs, which otherwise were expected to be 
collected through the CTC mechanism. If events occur during 

the restructuring process that result in all or a portion of the 
transition costs being improbable of recovery, SCE could have 
write-offs associated with these costs if they are not recovered 
through another regulatory mechanism.

t r
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Revenue from generation-related operations is being 
determined through the competitive market and the CTC 
mechanism, which now includes the nuclear rate-making 
agreements. The portion of revenue related to fossil and 
hydroelectric generation operations that is made uneconomic 
by electric industry restructuring is recovered through the 
CTC mechanism. The portion that is economic is recovered 
through the market. SCE's costs associated with its hydroelec
tric plants are being recovered through a performance-based 
mechanism. The mechanism sets the hydroelectric revenue 
requirement and establishes a formula for extending it through 
the duration of the electric industry restructuring transition 
period, or until market valuation of the hydroelectric facilities, 
whichever occurs first. The mechanism provides that power 
sales revenue from hydroelectric facilities in excess of the 
hydroelectric revenue requirement be credited against the 
costs to transition to a competitive market. In 1999, fossil and 
hydroelectric generation assets had the opportunity to earn 
a 7.22% return. SCE has filed an application with the CPUC 
regarding the market valuation of its hydroelectric facilities.  
See further discussion below.  

SCE is recovering its investment in its nuclear facilities on.  
an accelerated basis in exchange for a lower authorized rate 
of return. SCE's nuclear assets are earning an annual rate of 
return of 7.35%. In addition, the San Onofre plan authorizes a 
fixed rate of approximately 40 per kilowatt-hour generated for 
operating costs including incremental capital costs, and nuclear 
fuel and nuclear fuel financing costs. The San Onofre plan 
commenced in April 1996, and ends in December 2001 for 
the accelerated recovery portion and in December 2003 for 
the incentive-pricing portion. Palo Verde's operating costs, 
including incremental capital costs, and nuclear fuel and nuclear 
fuel financing costs, are subject to balancing account treatment.  
The PaloVerde plan commenced in January 1997 and ends in 
December 2001. Beginning January 1, 1998, both the San 
Onofre and Palo Verde rate-making plans became part of the 
CTC mechanism.  

In March 1997, SCE filed its first FERC transmission rate 
case. In March 1999, a proposed FERC decision was issued 
which recommended a reduced rate of return on equity 
of 9.68% (compared to SCE's current CPUC rate for distrib
ution of 11.6%) and a reduced return on transmission assets of 
8.41% (compared to the current rate of 9.43% being earned 
on transmission assets). SCE filed comments opposing the 
proposed decision in May 1999. In response to a recent FERC 
ruling, on November 1, 1999, SCE filed additional evidence

regarding return on equity. A final FEPC decision is expected 
during first quarter 2000. SCE does not expect the final deci
sion to have a material effect on its results of operations or 
financial position.  

As a further requirement of the law that restructured Cali
fornia's electric utility industry, in October 1999, SCE filed an 
application with the CPUC to approve an auction process for 
its 56% interest in the Mohave Generating Station. A CPUC 
decision on the auction process is expected in early 2000.  

In order to comply with the restructuring legislation, on 
December 15, 1999, SCE filed an application with the CPUC 
establishing a market value for its hydroelectric generation
related assets at approximately $1.0 billion (almost twice the 
assets' book value) and proposing to retain and operate the 
hydroelectric assets under a performance-based and revenue
sharing mechanism. The application had broad-based support 
from labor, ratepayer and environmental groups. If approved by 
the CPUC, SCE would be allowed to recover an authorized, 
inflation-index operations and maintenance allowance, as well 
as a reasonable return on capital investment. A revenue-sharing 
arrangement would be activated if revenue from the sale of 
hydroelectricity exceeds or falls short of the authorized rev
enue requirement. SCE would then refund 90% of the excess 
revenue to ratepayers or recover 90% of any shortfalls from 
ratepayers. A final CPUC decision is expected by the end of 
2000.  

On January 7,2000, SCE filed an application with the CPUC 
proposing rates that would go into effect when the current 
rate freeze ends on March 31, 2002, or earlier, depending on 
the pace of CTC recovery. The proposal seeks CPUC approval 
of a rate redesign that will result in reduced rates for most cus
tomers when SCE completes the first phase of recovery of its 
transition costs. The proposed new rates are expected to reduce 
SCE's system average rates by about 17% from current frozen 
rate levels, based on certain assumptions about competitive 
energy prices. In addition, SCE's filing proposes to redesign 
and establish separate transmission and distribution rates to 
better reflect the actual costs to deliver electricity and serve 
customers. This pricing approach is consistent with CPUC 
policies requiring California's major utilities to move toward 
cost-based transmission and distribution rates.
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Restructuring Implementation Costs 
In May 1998, SCE filed an application with the CPUC to 
identify the categories of restructuring implementation costs 
(including costs related to the start-up and development of 

both the PX and ISO, and related to the implementation of 
direct access) and to establish the reasonableness of those costs 
incurred in 1997. In September 1999, the CPUC approved a 
settlement agreement between SCE, the CPUC's Office of 
Ratepayer Advocates and several other parties allowing SCE to 
recover substantially all (approximately $300 million) of its 

restructuring implementation costs (incurred and estimated) 
for the period 1997-2001. In addition, the settlement provides 
that up to $210 million of generation-related costs (transition 
costs) that are displaced by recovery of the restructuring 
implementation costs during the rate freeze may be recovered 
after December 31,2001, the date SCE would cease to recover 
these transition costs under restructuring legislation.  

Accounting for Utility Generation-Related Assets 
If the CPUC's electric industry restructuring plan continues as 

described above, SCE will be allowed to recover its transition 
costs through non-bypassable charges to its distribution cus
tomers (although its investment in certain generation assets is 
subject to a lower authorized rate of return). In 1997, SCE dis
continued application of accounting principles for rate-regu
lated enterprises for its generation assets based on new 
accounting guidance. The new guidance did not require SCE 
to write off any of its generation-related assets, including 
related regulatory assets. SCE has retained these assets on its 
balance sheet because the Statute and restructuring plan 
referred to above make probable their recovery through a non
bypassable charge to distribution customers. The regulatory 
assets relate primarily to the recovery of accelerated income 
tax benefits previously flowed through to customers, purchased 
power contract termination payments and unamortized losses 
on reacquired debt. The new accounting guidance also permits 
the recording of new generation-related regulatory assets dur
ing the transition period that are probable of recovery through 
the CTC mechanism.  

During the second quarter of 1998, additional guidance 
was developed related to the application of asset impairment 
standards to these assets. Using this guidance, SCE reduced its 

remaining nuclear plant investment by $2.6 billion (as of 
June 30, 1998) and recorded a regulatory asset on its balance 
sheet for the same amount. For this impairment assessment, 

the fair value of the investment was calculated by discounting 
expected future net cash flows. This reclassification had no 
effect on SCE's results of operations.

If during the transition period events were to occur that 
made the recovery of these generation-related regulatory assets 
no longer probable, SCE would be required to write off the 
remaining balance of such assets (approximately $2.6 billion, 
after tax, at December 31, 1999) as a one-time, non-cash 

charge against earnings. At this time, SCE cannot predict what 
other revisions will ultimately be made during the restructur
ing process in subsequent proceedings or the effect, after the 

transition period, that competition will have on its results of 
operations or financial position.  

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

Edison International is subject to numerous environmental 
laws and regulations, which require it to incur substantial costs 
to operate existing facilities, construct and operate new facili
ties, and mitigate or remove the effect of past operations on 
the environment.  

As further discussed in Note 11 to the Consolidated Finan

cial Statements, Edison International records its environmental 
liabilities when site assessments and/or remedial actions are 
probable and a range of reasonably likely cleanup costs can be 

estimated. Edison International's recorded estimated minimum 
liability to remediate its 45 identified sites is $163 million.  
One of SCE's sites, a former pole-treating facility is considered 
a federal Superfund site and represents 40% of its recorded ha
bility. Edison International believes that, due to uncertainties 
inherent in the estimation process, it is reasonably possible 

that cleanup costs could exceed its recorded liability by up to 
$284 million. In 1998, SCE sold all of its gas- and oil-fueled 
power plants but has retained some liability associated with the 
divested properties.  

The CPUC allows SCE to recover environmental-cleanup 
costs at 42 of its sites, representing $90 million of its recorded 
liability, through an incentive mechanism, which is discussed in 
Note 11. SCE has recorded a regulatory asset of $126 million 
for its estimated minimum environmental-cleanup costs 
expected to be recovered through customer rates.  

Edison International's identified sites include several sites for 
which there is a lack of currently available information. As a 

result, no reasonable estimate of cleanup costs can be made for 
these sites. Edison International expects to clean up its identi
fied sites over a period of up to 30 years. Remediation costs in 
each of the next several years are expected to range from $5 mil
hon to $15 million. Recorded costs for 1999 were $14 million.
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Based on currently available information, Edison Interna
tional believes it is unlikely that it will incur amounts in excess 
of the upper limit of the estimated range and, based upon the 
CPUC's regulatory treatment of environmental-cleanup costs, 
Edison International believes that costs ultimately recorded 
will not materially affect its results of operations or financial 
position. There can be no assurance, however, that future 
developments, including additional information about existing 
sites or the identification of new sites, will not require material 
revisions to such estimates.  

The 1990 Federal Clean Air Act requires power producers 
to have emissions allowances to emit sulfur dioxide. Power 
companies receive emissions allowances from the federal gov
ernment and may bank or sell excess allowances. SCE expects 
to have excess allowances under Phase II of the Clean Air Act 
(2000 and later). A study was undertaken to determine the 
specific impact of air contaminant emissions from the Mohave 
Generating Station on visibility in Grand Canyon National 
Park. The final report on this study, which was issued in March 
1999, found negligible correlation between measured Mohave 
station tracer concentrations and visibility impairment. The 
absence of any obvious relationship cannot rule out Mohave 
station contributions to haze in Grand Canyon National Park, 
but strongly suggests that other sources were primarily respon
sible for the haze. In June 1999, the Environmental Protection 
Agency issued an advanced notice of proposed rulemaking 
regarding assessment of visibility impairment at the Grand 
Canyon. SCE filed comments on the proposed rulemaking in 
November 1999. In 1998, several environmental groups filed 
suit against the co-owners of the Mohave station regarding 
alleged violations of emissions limits. In order to accelerate res
olution of key environmental issues regarding the plant, the 
parties filed, in concurrence with SCE and the other station 
owners, a consent decree, which was approved by the court in 
December 1999. The Environmental Protection Agency has 
notified SCE that the visibility concerns can be resolved by 
revising the Mohave station's Federal Implementation Plan to 
include the relevant provisions in the consent decree.  

Edison International's projected environmental capital 
expenditures are $1.5 billion for the 2000-2004 period, mainly 
for undergrounding certain transmission and distribution lines.

SAN ONOFRE STEAM GENERATOR TUBES 

The San Onofre Units 2 and 3 steam generators have per
formed relatively well through the first 15 years of operation, 
with low rates of ongoing steam generator tube degradation.  
The steam generator design allows for the removal of up to 
10% of the tubes before the rated capacity of the unit must be 
reduced. As a result of the increased degradation found during 
a 1997 inspection, a mid-cycle inspection -outage was con
ducted in early 1998 for Unit 2. Continued degradation was 
found during this inspection. A favorable or decreasing trend 
in degradation was observed during inspection in the sched
uled refueling outage in January 1999 and as a result, a mid
cycle inspection outage in early 2000 was unnecessary. With 
the results from the January 1999 outage, 7.5% of the tubes 
have now been removed from service.  

During Unit 3's refueling outage, which was completed in 
May 1999, a complete inspection of the steam generator tubes 
was performed. Results obtained were within expectations. To 
date, 5.4% of Unit 3's tubes have been removed from service.  

NEW ACCOUNTING RULES 

An accounting rule which requires that costs related to start-up 
activities be expensed as incurred became effective January 1, 
1999. Although this new accounting rule did not materially 
affect Edison International's results of operations or financial 
position, EME wrote off approximately $14 million in previ
ously capitalized start-up costs in first quarter 1999.  

In June 1998, a new accounting standard for derivative 
instruments and hedging activities was issued. The new stan
dard, which as amended will be effective January 1, 2001, 
requires all derivatives to be recognized on the balance sheet at 
fair value. Gains or losses from changes in fair value would be 
recognized in earnings in the period of change unless the 
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument. Gains or 
losses from hedges of a forecasted transaction or foreign cur
rency exposure would be reflected in other comprehensive 
income. Gains or losses from hedges of a recognized asset or 
liability or a firm commitment would be reflected in earnings 
for the ineffective portion of the hedge. SCE anticipates that 
most of its derivatives under the new standard would qualify 
for hedge accounting. SCE expects to recover in rates any 
market price changes from its derivatives that could potentially 
affect earnings. Edison International is studying the impact of 
the new standard on its nonutility subsidiaries, and is unable to 
predict at this time the impact on its financial statements.
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YEAR 2000 ISSUE 

Edison International implemented a comprehensive program 
to address potentialYear 2000 computer system impacts, con
sisting of five phases: inventory, impact assessment, remediation, 
testing and implementation. Edison International met its goal 
to have 100% of its critical systems Year 2000-ready by July 1, 
1999. A critical system was defined as those applications and 
systems, including embedded processor technology, which if 
not appropriately remediated, may have had a significant 
impact on customers, the health and safety of the public 
and/or personnel, the revenue stream, or regulatory compli
ance. A system, application or physical asset was deemed to be 
Year 2000-ready if it was determined by Edison International 
to be suitable for continued use through 2028 (or through the 
last year of the anticipated life of the asset, whichever occurred 
first), even if not fUllyYear 2000-compliant (able to accurately 
process date/time data, between the 20th and 21st centuries, 
1999 and 2000, and leap-year calculations).  

Included among SCE's critical applications were the finan
cial, customer information and billing, material management, 
and human resource systems.Work was also completed on 
critical physical assets in the areas of information technology 
infrastructure, and embedded processor technology in genera
tion, transmission, distribution and facilities assets.  

The other essential component of theYear 2000 program 
was to identify and assess vendor products and business part
ners forYear 2000 readiness, as these external parties may have 
had the potential to impact Edison International's Year 2000 
readiness. Edison International implemented a process to iden
tify and contact vendors and business partners to determine 
theirYear 2000 status. This process included appropriate fol
low-up and contingency activities.  

Edison International's Year 2000 costs through December 31, 
1999, were $68 million, of which 35% was for capital costs.  
SCE's current rate levels for providing electric service were 
sufficient to provide funding for utility-related modifications.  

Edison International developed contingency plans, which 
included provisions for monitoring, validating and managing 
the continued performance of Edison International's Year 
2000-sensitive systems and assets during critical transition peri
ods, development of work-arounds and expedited fix-on-fail
ure strategies.  

SCE's Year 2000 contingency plans, whose initial develop
ment was completed in June 1999, were in place for year-end 
1999. None of SCE's critical applications or assets have 
encountered significant problems on or since January 1, 2000, 
and they continue to operate as expected. SCE expects busi
ness as usual in 2000, as it relates to its Year 2000 computer 
system issues.

EME's Year 2000 contingency plans were completed and in 
place for the end of the year rollover event. In addition, an early 
warning and information database was in place that received 

input from all EME plants and corporate offices worldwide 
during the millennium event. There were no Year 2000-related 
problems or events of any material nature detected.  

Edison Capital's Year 2000 contingency plan was completed 
and in place as of November 1999. None of Edison Capital's 
systems have encountered significant problems on or since Jan
uary 1, 2000, and they continue to operate as expected.  

Edison Enterprises' Year 2000 contingency plans were com
pleted and in place by year-end 1999. Edison Enterprises' 
rollover period was uneventful. All operating conditions were 
normal and no significant events were reported.  

Edison International will continue to maintain the readiness 

of its contingency plans throughout 2000. Ongoing efforts 
include monitoring of systems over the February 29 leap-day 
period. Edison International does not expect the Year 2000 
issue to have a material adverse effect on its results of opera
tion or financial position.  

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

In the preceding Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Results of Operations and Financial Condition and elsewhere 
in this annual report, the words estimates, expects, anticipates, 
believes, and other similar expressions are intended to identify 
forward-looking information that involves risks and uncertainties.  
Actual results or outcomes could differ materially as a result of 
such important factors as further actions by state and federal 
regulatory bodies setting rates and implementing the restruc
turing of the electric utility industry; the effects of new laws 
and regulations relating to restructuring and other matters; the 
effects of increased competition in the electric utility business 
and other energy-related businesses, including direct customer 
access to retail energy suppliers and the unbundling of revenue 
cycle services such as metering and billing; changes in prices of 
electricity and fuel costs; changes in market interest or currency 
exchange rates; risks of doing business in foreign countries, such 
as political changes and currency devaluations; power plant con
struction and operation risks; new or increased environmental 
liabilities; the ability to create and expand new businesses, such 
as telecommunications; and other unforeseen events.
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RESPONS!IBILITY FOR 

FINANCIAý:L REPORTING

The management of Edison International is responsible for the 
integrity and objectivity of the accompanying financial statements.  
The statements have been prepared in accordance with gener
ally accepted accounting principles and are based, in part, on 
management estimates and judgment.  

Edison International and its subsidiaries maintain systems of 
internal control to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance 
that assets are safeguarded, transactions are executed in accordance 
with management's authorization and the accounting records 
may be relied upon for the preparation of the financial state
ments. There are limits inherent in all systems of internal control, 
the design of which involves management's judgment and the 
recognition that the costs of such systems should not exceed the 
benefits to be derived. Edison International believes its systems 
of internal control achieve this appropriate balance. These systems 
are augmented by internal audit programs through which the ade
quacy and effectiveness of internal controls and policies and pro
cedures are monitored, evaluated and reported to management.  
Actions are taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified.  

Edison International's independent public accountants, Arthur 
Andersen LLP, are engaged to audit the financial statements in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States and to express an informed opinion on the fair
ness, in all material respects, of Edison International's reported 
results of operations, cash flows and financial position.  

As a further measure to assure the ongoing objectivity of finan
cial information, the audit committee of the board of directors, 
which is composed of outside directors, meets periodically, both 
jointly and separately, with management, the independent pub
lic accountants and internal auditors, who have unrestricted access 
to the conrnittee.The committee recommends annually to the 
board of directors the appointment of a firm of independent 
public accountants to conduct audits of its financial statements; 
considers the independence of such firm and the overall adequacy 
of the audit scope and Edison International's systems of internal 
control; reviews financial reporting issues; and is advised of man
agement's actions regarding financial reporting and internal 
control matters.  

Edison International and its subsidiaries maintain high stan
dards in selecting, training and developing personnel to assure 
that their operations are conducted in conformity with applicable 
laws and are committed to maintaining the highest standards of 
personal and corporate conduct. Management maintains pro
grams to encourage and assess compliance with these standards.

THOMAS M. NOONAN 

Vice President and Controller

JOHN E. BRYSON 

Chairman of the Board, President 
and Chief Executive Officer

February 2, 2000

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT 

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS, EDISON INTERNATIONAL: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets 
of Edison International (a California corporation) and its sub
sidiaries as of December 31, 1999, and 1998, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash 
flows and common shareholders' equity for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 1999. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of Edison International's man
agement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stan
dards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Edison International and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 
1999, and 1998, and the results of their operations and their 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States.  

)JA4Wba4L,4tA zLAix
ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

Los Angeles, California 
February 2, 2000
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Edison International and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

In millions, except per share amounts Year ended December 31, 1999 1998 1997 

Electric utility $7,522 $7,499 $7,953 
Nonutility power generation 1,642 894 975 
Financial services and other 506 467 307 

Total operating revenue 9,670 8,860 9,235 

Fuel 675 501 1,074 
Purchased power - contracts 2,419 2,626 2,854 
Purchased power - power exchange - net 760 636 
Provisions for regulatory adjustment clauses - net (764) (473) (411) 
Other operation and maintenance 2,921 2,533 2,191 
Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization 1,794 1,662 1,362 
Property and other taxes 124 133 134 
Net gain on sale of utility plant (3) (542) (4) 

Total operating expenses 7,926 7,076 7,200 

Operating income 1,744 1,784 2,035 

Interest and dividend income 96 108 85 
Other nonoperating income (deductions) - net 33 (19) (140) 

Total other income (deductions) - net 129 89 (55) 

Income before fixed charges and taxes 1,873 1,873 1,980 

Interest and amortization on long-term debt 734 652 584 
Other interest expense - net 149 50 115 
Dividends on preferred securities 44 13 14 
Dividends on utility preferred stock 26 25 29 

Totalfixed charges 953 740 742 

Minority interest 3 3 39 

Income before taxes 917 1,130 1,199 

Income taxes 294 462 499 

Net income $ 623 $ 668 $ 700 

Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 348 359 400 
Basic earnings per share $ 1.79 $ 1.86 $ 1.75 
Weighted-average shares, including effect of dilutive securities 349 364 405 
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.79 $ 1.84 $ 1.73 

Dividends declared per common share $ 1.08 $ 1.04 $ 1.00 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

In millions Year ended December 31, 1999 1998 1997 

Net income $ 623 $ 668 $ 700 
Cumulative translation adjustments - net (19) - (34) 
Unrealized gain on securities - net 23 12 27 
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (46) (18) -

Comprehensive income $ 581 $ 662 $ 693
L 4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesefinandal statements. annual report 1999



Edison International and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

In millions December 31, 1999 1998 

ASSETS 
Cash and equivalents $ 508 $ 584 
Receivables, including unbilled revenue, less allowances of $34 and $24 

for uncollectible accounts at respective dates 1,378 1,316 
Fuel inventory 241 51 
Materials and supplies, at average cost 199 116 
Accumulated deferred income taxes - net 191 275 
Regulatory balancing accounts - net - 287 
Prepayments and other current assets 153 138 

Total current assets 2,670 2,767 

Nonutility property - less accumulated provision for depreciation 
of $446 and $297 at respective dates 12,352 3,072 

Nuclear decommissioning trusts 2,509 2,240 
Investments in partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries 2,505 1,980 
Investments in leveraged leases 1,885 1,621 
Other investments 180 208 

Total investments and other assets 19,431 9,121 

Utility plant, at original cost: 
Transmission and distribution 12,439 11,772 
Generation 1,718 1,690 

Accumulated provision for depreciation and decommissioning (7,520) (6,897) 
Construction work in progress 562 517 
Nuclear fuel, at amortized cost 132 172 

Total utility plant 7,331 7,254 

Unamortized nuclear investment - net 1,366 2,162 
Income tax-related deferred charges 1,273 1,463 
Regulatory balancing accounts - net 1,715 362 
Unamortized debt issuance and reacquisition expense 340 349 
Other deferred charges 2,103 1,220 

Total deferred charges 6,797 5,556 

Total assets $36,229 $24,698

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Edison International and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

In millions, except share amounts December 31, 1999 1998 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Short-term debt $ 2,553 $ 565 

Current portion of long-term debt 962 920 
Accounts payable 625 490 

Accrued taxes 407 630 
Accrued interest 189 147 
Dividends payable 101 92 
Regulatory balancing accounts - net 76 

Deferred unbilled revenue and other current liabilities 1,929 1,442 

Total current liabilities 6,842 4,286 

Long-term debt 13,391 8,008 

Accumulated deferred income taxes - net 5,757 4,591 

Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 225 271 

Customer advances and other deferred credits 2,094 1,425 
Power purchase contracts 563 130 
Other long-term liabilities 478 337 

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 9,117 6,754 

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 and 11) 

Minority interest 9 16 

Preferred stock of utility: 
Not subject to mandatory redemption 129 129 
Subject to mandatory redemption 256 256 

Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiaries 
holding solely parent company debentures 948 150 

Other preferred securities 326 

Total preferred securities of subsidiaries 1,659 535 

Common stock (347,207,106 and 350,553,197 shares outstanding at respective dates) 2,090 2,109 
Accumulated other comprehensive income: 

Cumulative translation adjustments - net 11 30 
Unrealized gain in equity securities - net 31 54 

Retained earnings 3,079 2,906 

Total common shareholders' equity 5,211 5,099 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $36,229 $24,698

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. annual report 1999



Edison International and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

In millions Year ended December 31, 1999 1998 1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net income $ 623 $ 668 $ 700 
Adjustments for non-cash items: 

Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization 1,794 1,662 1,362 
Other amortization 112 96 88 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 525 348 115 
Equity in income from partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries (244) (190) (190) 
Income from leveraged leases (214) (213) (86) 
Other long-term liabilities 32 (13) 56 
Regulatory balancing accounts - long-term (1,354) (361) 
Regulatory asset related to the sale of utility generating plants - (220) 
Net gain on sale of utility generating plants (1) (565) 
Other - net 44 38 2 

Changes in working capital: 
Receivables (75) (235) (8) 
Regulatory balancing accounts 363 (94) (375) 
Fuel inventory, materials and supplies (5) 24 36 
Prepayments and other current assets (75) (19) 10 
Accrued interest and taxes (151) 68 47 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 526 283 195 

Distributions from partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries 213 185 182 

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,113 1,462 2,134 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long-term debt issued 6,685 981 1,646 
Long-term debt repaid (1,071) (1,544) (2,219) 
Common stock repurchased (92) (714) (1,173) 
Preferred securities issued 1,124 -
Preferred stocks redeemed - (74) (100) 
Rate reduction notes issued - - 2,449 
Rate reduction notes repaid (246) (252) 
Short-term debt issued - net 1,931 236 (68) 
Dividends paid (373) (374) (408) 
Other - net (37) 17 (14) 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 7,921 (1,724) 113 

CASH FLOWS. FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Additions to property and plant (1,231) (963) (783) 
Purchase of nonutility generating plants (7,958) -
Proceeds from sale of assets 115 1,215 211 
Funding of nuclear decommissioning trusts (116) (163) (154) 
Investments in partnerships and unconsolidated subsidiaries (853) (659) (131) 
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities - net (23) (6) 27 
Investments in leveraged leases (99) (458) (327) 
Other - net 55 (27) (80) 

Net cash used by investing activities (10,110) (1,061) (1,237) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents (76) (1,323) 1,010 
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 584 1,907 897

Cash and equivalents, end of year $ 508 $ 584 $ 1,907

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.EDISON INTERNATIONAL



Edison International and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN 

COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Accumulated Other Total Common 
Comprehensive Shareholders' 

In millions, except share amounts Common Stock Income Retained Earnings Equity 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1996 $2,547 $ 97 $3,753 $6,397 

Net income 700 700 
Stock repurchase and retirement 

(48,992,365 shares) (294) (879) (1,173) 

Long-term incentive compensation plan 
(232, 616 shares) 5 5 

Dividends declared on common stock (395) (395) 

Unrealized gain on securities 45 45 

Tax effect (18) (18) 

Cumulative translation adjustment (38) (38) 

Tax effect 4 4 

Capital stock expense 3 3 

Stock option appreciation (3) (3) 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997 2,261 90 3,176 5,527 

Net income 668 668 

Stock repurchase and retirement 
(25,211,232 shares) (152) (562) (714) 

Dividends declared on common stock (371) (371) 

Unrealized gain on securities 18 18 

Tax effect (6) (6) 

Reclassified adjustment for gain included 
in net income (30) (30) 

Tax effect 12 12 

Stock option appreciation (5) (5) 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1998 2,109 84 2,906 5,099 

Net income 623 623 
Stock repurchase and retirement 

(3,350,500 shares) (20) (72) (92) 
Dividends declared on common stock (375) (375) 

Unrealized gain on securities 39 39 

Tax effect (16) (16) 
Reclassified adjustment for gain included 

in net income (77) (77) 

Tax effect 31 31 

Cumulative translation adjustment (21) (21) 

Tax effect 2 2 

Capital stock expense 1 1 
Stock option appreciation (3) (3) 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 $2,090 $ 42 $3,079 $5,211

Authorized common stock is 800 million shares with no par value.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. annual report 1999



Edison International and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED

NOTE I 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Operations 
Edison International's wholly owned subsidiaries include: 
Southern California Edison Company (SCE), a rate regulated 
electric utility which supplies electric energy for its 4.3 million 
customers in central, coastal and Southern California; Edison 
Mission Energy (EME), a producer of electricity engaged in the 
development, ownership and operation of electric power gener
ation facilities worldwide; Edison Capital, a provider of capital 
and financial services; and Edison Enterprises, the retail business 
arm of Edison International. EME and Edison Capital have 
domestic and foreign projects, primarily in Europe, Asia and 
Africa.  

EME's plants are located in different geographic areas, which 
mitigates the effects of regional markets, economic downturns 
or unusual weather conditions. EME's domestic projects, other 
than Homer City and Midwest Generation, generally sell power 
to a limited number of electric utilities under long-term (15 years 
to 30 years) contracts. Projects in both the United Kingdom and 
Australia sell their energy and capacity through a centralized 
electricity pool. A project in New Zealand sells its power 
through a voluntary pool system. Other electric power gener
ated overseas is sold primarily through long-term contracts to 
electric utilities in the country where the power is generated.  

SCE also produces electricity. The regulatory environment in 
which SCE operates is changing as a result of a 1995 California 
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) decision on electric util
ity industry restructuring and state legislation enacted in 1996.  

Basis of Presentation 
The consolidated financial statements include Edison Interna
tional and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Edison International's 
subsidiaries use the equity method to account for significant 
investments in partnerships and subsidiaries in which they own 
50% or less. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated, 
except EME's profits from energy sales to SCE, which are 
allowed in utility rates.  

SCE's accounting policies conform with generally accepted 
accounting principles, including the accounting principles for 
rate-regulated enterprises which reflect the rate-making policies 
of the CPUC and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(FERC). As a result of industry restructuring state legislation 
and related changes in the rate-recovery of generation-related 
assets, SCE accounts for its investment in generation facilities

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in accordance with accounting principles applicable to enter
prises in general. Application of such accounting principles to 
SCE's generation assets began in 1997 and did not result in 
any adjustment of their carrying value; however, in the second 
quarter of 1998, the carrying value of SCE's nuclear investments 
(excluding decommissioning) was reduced by $2.6 billion and 
a regulatory asset was established for the same amount.  

Certain prior-year amounts were reclassified to conform to 
the December 31, 1999, financial statement presentation.  

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding. In determin
ing net income, dividends on preferred securities and preferred 
stock have been deducted. For the diluted EPS calculation, 
dilutive securities (employee stock options) are added to the 
weighted average shares.  

Estimates 
Financial statements prepared in compliance with generally 
accepted accounting principles require management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in 
the financial statements and disclosure of contingencies. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Certain significant 
estimates related to regulatory matters, decommissioning and 
contingencies are further discussed in Notes 10 and 11 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.  

Cash Equivalents 
Cash equivalents include tax-exempt investments and time 
deposits and other investments with original maturities of three 
months or less.  

Fuel Inventory 
Fuel inventory is valued under the last-in, first-out method for 
fuel oil and natural gas, and under the first-in, first-out method 
for coal.  

Revenue 
Electric utility revenue includes amounts for services rendered 
but unbilled at the end of each year. Some nonutility power 
generation revenue from power sales contracts is deferred and 
amortized to income over the life of the contracts.  

Investments 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on equity securities are recorded 
as a separate component of shareholders' equity under the cap
tion: Accumulated other comprehensive income. Unrealized 
gains and losses on decommissioning trust funds are recorded 
in the accumulated provision for decommissioning.  

All investments are classified as available-for-sale.
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Edison International and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Regulation of Utility Business 
SCE, which is subject to rate-regulation by the CPUC and the 
FERC, operates in a highly regulated environment in which it 
has an obligation to deliver electric service to customers in 
return for an exclusive franchise within its service territory.  

Effective January 1, 1998, SCE's rates were unbundled into 
separate charges for energy, transmission, distribution, the non
bypassable competition transition charge (CTC), public benefit 
programs and nuclear decommissioning. The transmission com
ponent is being collected through FERC-approved rates, subject 
to refund. SCE's costs associated with its hydroelectric plants are 
being recovered through a performance-based mechanism. This 
mechanism sets the hydroelectric revenue requirement and estab
lishes a formula for extending it through the duration of the 
electric industry restructuring transition period (March 31,2002), 
or until market valuation of the hydroelectric facilities, whichever 
occurs first (see Hydroelectric MarketValue Filing discussion in 
Note 11). Revenue from hydroelectric facilities in excess of the 
hydroelectric revenue requirement is credited against the costs 
to transition to a competitive market. Decommissioning costs 
are being recovered through a CPUC-authorized non-bypass
able charge.  

The CTC provides SCE the opportunity to recover its costs 
to transition to a competitive market (approximately $10.6 bil
lion 1998 net present value). Transition costs related to power
purchase contracts are being recovered through the terms of 
the contracts while most of the remaining transition costs will 
be recovered through 2001. A portion of the stranded costs that 
residential and small commercial customers would have paid 
between 1998 and 2001 has been financed by the issuance of 
rate reduction notes, allowing SCE to reduce rates by at least 
10% to these customers, effective January 1, 1998. The notes 
allow for the rate reduction by lowering the carrying cost on a 
portion of the transition costs and by deferring recovery of a 
portion of these transition costs until after the transition period.  
Additionally, the state legislation contained provisions for the 
recovery (through 2006) of reasonable employee-related transi
tion costs, incurred and projected, for retraining, severance, 
early retirement, outplacement and related expenses.  

The CPUC regulates SCE's capital structure, limiting the 
dividends it may pay Edison International. At December 31, 1999, 
SCE had the capacity to pay $433 million in additional divi
dends and continue to maintain its authorized capital structure.  

Since April 1, 1998, when the new market structure began, 
SCE has been selling all of its generation through the California 
Power Exchange (PX), as mandated by the CPUC's 1995 restruc
turing decision. Through the PX, SCE satisfies the electric

energy needs of customers who did not choose an alternative 
energy provider. These transactions with the PX are reported as 
Purchased power - power exchange - net.  

Transactions through the PX were: 

Year ended December 31, 

In millions 1999 1998 

Purchases $2,479 $1,984 
Generation sales 1,719 1,348 

Purchased power - PX - net $ 760 $ 636 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
In accordance with accounting principles for rate-regulated 
enterprises, SCE records regulatory assets, which represent 
probable future revenue associated with certain costs that will 
be recovered from customers through the rate-making process, 
and regulatory liabilities, which represent probable future reduc
tions in revenue associated with amounts that are to be credited 
to customers through the rate-making process. SCE's discontin
uance of accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises to 
its generation assets did not result in a write-off of its genera
tion-related regulatory assets since the CPUC has approved 
recovery of these assets through the CTC.  

Regulatory assets and liabilities included in the consolidated 
balance sheets are:

December 3 1, 

In millions 1999 1998 

Generation-related: 
Unamortized nuclear 

investment - net $1,366 $2,162 
Flow-through taxes 306 614 
Rate reduction notes 

transition cost deferral 707 315 
Unamortized loss on sale 

of plant 122 183 
Purchased-power settlements 531 130 
Environmental remediation 16 16 
Regulatory balancing accounts 

and other 1,075 354 

Subtotal 4,123 3,774 

Other: 
Flow-through taxes 967 849 
Unamortized loss on 

reacquired debt 295 308 
Environmental remediation 111 125 
Regulatory balancing accounts 

and other (36) 110 

Subtotal 1,337 1,392 

Total $5,460 $5,166
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Generation-related regulatory assets and liabilities are being 
recovered through the CTC through March 31, 2002, except 
for the rate reduction notes regulatory asset, which will be 
recovered over the terms of the rate reduction notes. The other 
regulatory assets and liabilities are being recovered through 
other components of the unbundled rates.  

The unamortized nuclear investment regulatory asset was 
created during the second quarter of 1998. SCE reduced its 
remaining nuclear plant investment by $2.6 billion (as ofJune 
30, 1998) and recorded a regulatory asset on its balance sheet 
for the same amount in accordance with asset impairment 
accounting standards. For this impairment assessment, the fair 
value of the investment was calculated by discounting expected 
future net cash flows. This reclassification had no effect on 
SCE's results of operations.  

If during the transition period events were to occur that 
made the recovery of these generation-related regulatory assets 
no longer probable, SCE would be required to write off the 
remaining balance of such assets (approximately $2.6 billion, 
after tax, at December 31, 1999) as a one-time, non-cash 
charge against earnings.  

Regulatory Balancing Accounts 
Beginning January 1, 1998, the difference between generation
related revenue and generation-related costs is being accumulated 
in the transition cost balancing account, effectively eliminating 
all other balancing accounts except those used to assist in the 
administration of public purpose funds. Additionally, gains 
resulting from the sale of SCE's generating plants during 1998 
were credited to the transition cost balancing account; the losses 
are being amortized over the remaining transition period and 
accumulated in the transition cost balancing account. These 
transition costs are being recovered from utility customers 

(With interest) through the CTC mechanism.  

Prior to January 1, 1998, the differences between CPUC
authorized and actual base-rate revenue from kilowatt-hour 
sales and CPUC-authorized and actual energy costs were 
accumulated in balancing accounts until they were refunded 
to, or recovered from, utility customers through authorized rate 
adjustments (with interest). On January 1, 1998, the balances 
in these balancing accounts were transferred to the transition 
cost balancing account.  

Income tax effects on all balancing account changes are 
deferred.

Nuclear 
SCE is recovering its investment in San Onofre Nuclear Gen
erating Station Units 2 and 3 and Palo Verde Nuclear Generat
ing Station on an accelerated basis, as authorized by the CPUC.  
The accelerated recovery will continue through December 2001, 
earning a 7.35% fixed rate of return. San Onofre's operating 
costs, including nuclear fuel and nuclear fuel financing costs, 
and incremental capital expenditures, are recovered through an 
incentive pricing plan which allows SCE to receive about 4g 
per kilowatt-hour through 2003. Any differences between these 
costs and the incentive price will flow through to shareholders.  
Palo Verde's accelerated plant recovery, as well as operating costs, 
including nuclear fiuel and nuclear fuel financing costs, and incre
mental capital expenditures, are subject to balancing account 
treatment through 2001.  

Beginning January 1, 1998, San Onofre's incentive pricing 
plan and accelerated plant recovery and the Palo Verde balanc
ing account became part of the transition cost balancing account.  
SCE will be required to share equally with ratepayers the net 
benefits received from operation of Palo Verde, beginning in 
2002, and from the operation of the San Onofre units in 2004.  
Palo Verde's existing nuclear unit incentive procedure will con
tinue only for purposes of calculating a reward for performance 
of any unit above an 80% capacity factor for a fuel cycle.  

Property and Plant 
Utility plant additions, including replacements and betterments, 
are capitalized. Such costs include direct material and labor, 
construction overhead and an allowance for funds used during 
construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents the estimated cost 
of debt and equity funds that finance utility-plant construc
tion. AFUDC is capitalized during plant construction and 
reported in current earnings. AFUDC is recovered in rates 
through depreciation expense over the useful life of the related 
asset. Depreciation of utility plant is computed on a straight
line, remaining-life basis.  

Replaced or retired property and removal costs less salvage 
are charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation.  
Depreciation expense stated as a percent of average original 
cost of depreciable utility plant was 3.6% for 1999, 4.2% for 
1998 and 5.2% for 1997.  

SCE's net investment in generation-related utility plant was 
$1.0 billion at December 31,1999, and $1.1 billion at Decem
ber 31, 1998.  

Nonutility property is capitalized at cost, including interest 
incurred on borrowed funds that finance construction. Depre
ciation of nonutility properties is primarily computed on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation 
expense stated as a percent of average original cost of depre
ciable nonutility property was, on a composite basis, 2.2% for 
1999, 3.6% for 1998 and 3.2% for 1997.
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Supplemental Cash Flows Information 
Edison International's supplemental cash flows information was: 

Year ended December 31, 

In millions 1999 1998 1997 

Cash payments for interest 
and taxes: 

Interest - net of amounts 
capitalized $689 $474 $579 

Taxes 27 87 298 

Non-cash investing and 
financing activities: 

Obligation to fund investments 
in partnerships and 
unconsolidated subsidiaries $278 $ 7 $159 

Liabilities assumed 
(of companies acquired) 539 - 603 

NOTE 2 

ACQUISITIONS 

In March 1999, EME completed its acquisition of Homer City 
Electric Generating Station for approximately $1.8 billion.  
The purchase was partially financed by $1.5 billion of new 
loans, combined with corporate revolver borrowings and 

existing cash.  

In May 1999, EME completed a transaction with the New 
Zealand government to acquire 40% of the shares of Contact 
Energy Ltd. The remaining 60% of Contact Energy's shares 
were sold in a public offering resulting in widespread owner
ship among the citizens of New Zealand and offshore 
investors. Contact Energy owns and operates hydroelectric, 

geothermal and natural gas-fired generating plants primarily 
in New Zealand. EME paid a cash payment of approximately 
$635 million (1.2 billion New Zealand dollars), which was 
financed by a $120 million preferred stock issuance by an 
indirect, wholly owned affiliate of EME, a $214 million 
(400 million New Zealand dollars) EME credit facility, a 
$300 million equity contribution from Edison International 
and existing cash.  

In July 1999, EME completed its acquisition of Ferrybridge 
and Fiddler's Ferry coal-fired electric generating plants located 
in the United Kingdom. Each plant has generating capacity of 
approximately 2,000 MW. EME paid approximately $2.0 bil
lion (C 1.3 billion) for the two plants. The acquisition was

funded primarily with a combination of net proceeds from an 
EME bond issuance, cash and an equity contribution from 
Edison International. The bonds were issued to a special pur
pose entity, which sold the variable rate coupons portion of the 

bonds to a special purpose entity that borrowed $1.3 billion 
under a Term Loan Facility to finance the purchase.  

In October 1999, EME completed the acquisition of the 
remaining 20% of the 220-MW natural gas-fired Roosecote 
project located in England. EME paid approximately $16 million 

(C 9.6 million).  

In December 1999, EME through its wholly owned sub
sidiary, Midwest Generation LLC, completed the acquisition 

of Commonwealth Edison's (ComEd) fossil-fueled generating 
plants in Chicago. The $4.9 billion transaction was funded pri
marily with a combination of debt secured by a pledge of the 
stock of certain subsidiaries, EME corporate debt, equity 
contributions from Edison International and amounts paid by 
a third party lessor in connection with a lease transaction.  

These acquisitions were accounted for utilizing the purchase 
method. Edison International's 1999 consolidated income 
statements reflect the operations of Homer City, Contact 
Energy, Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry, Roosecote and Mid
west Generation as of the date of their respective acquisitions.  

NOTE 3 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Derivative Financial Instruments 
Edison International's risk management policy allows the use 

of derivative financial instruments to manage financial exposure 
on its investments and fluctuations in interest rates, but prohibits 
the use of these instruments for speculative or trading purposes.  

Edison International uses the hedge accounting method to 
record its derivative financial instruments, except for gas call 
option, block forward purchases and power call options. Hedge 
accounting requires an assessment that the transaction reduces 
risk, the derivative be designated as a hedge at the inception of 
the derivative contract, and the changes in the market value of a 
hedge move in an inverse direction to the item being hedged.  

Under hedge accounting, the derivative itself is not recorded on 
Edison International's balance sheet. Mark-to-market accounting 
would be used if the hedge accounting criteria were not met.  
Interest rate differentials and amortization of premiums for inter
est rate caps are recorded as adjustments to interest expense. If the 
derivatives were terminated before the maturity of the corre
sponding debt issuance, the realized gain or loss on the transac
tion would be amortized over the remaining term of the debt.
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SCE has gas call options that mitigate its exposure to increases 
in natural gas prices. Increases in natural gas prices tend to 
increase the price of electricity purchased from the PX. The 
options cover various periods from 1998 through 2001. Addi
tionally, SCE participates in the PX block forward market. The 
PX block forward market allows SCE to purchase monthly 
blocks of energy for six days a week (excluding Sundays and 
holidays) for 16 hours a day. These purchases can be made up 
to 12 months in advance of the delivery date. The CPUC has 
currently limited SCE's use of the PX block forward market to 
a maximum of approximately 2,000 MW in any month.  

SCE uses the mark-to-market accounting method for its gas 
call option and block forward purchases. Gains and losses from 
monthly changes in market prices are recorded as income or 
expense. However, costs of the options and the market price 
changes are included in the transition cost balancing account.  
As a result, the mark-to-market gains or losses have no effect 
on earnings.  

EME enters into electricity rate swap agreements to manage 
its exposure to the United Kingdom and Australia market 
(pool) price volatilities. The related price differentials to be 
paid or received are currently recorded as adjustments to elec
tric revenue or fuel expense. Projects in the United Kingdom 
sell their electrical energy and capacity through a centralized 
electricity pool, which establishes a half-hourly clearing price, 
or pool price, for electrical energy. The pool price is extremely 
volatile, and can vary by a factor of 10 or more over the course 
of a few hours due to large differentials in demand according 
to the time of day. First Hydro and Ferrybridge and Fiddler's 
Ferry mitigate a portion of the market risk of the pool by 
entering into electricity rate swap agreements, related to either 
the selling or purchasing price of power. These contracts are 
sold in various structures and act as a means of stabilizing pro
duction revenue or purchasing costs by removing an element 
of their net exposure to pool price volatility.  

Electric power at Homer City is sold under bilateral arrange
ments with domestic utilities and power marketers under 
short-term contracts (two years or less) or to the Pennsylvania
New Jersey-Maryland Power Pool (PJM) or the New York 
Independent System Operator (NYISO). The PJM pool has a 
market which establishes an hourly clearing price. Homer City 
is located in the PJM pool area and is physically connected to

high-voltage transmission lines serving both the PJM and the 
NYISO markets. Power can also be transmitted to the mid
western United States. EME has developed risk management 
policies and procedures which, among other matters, address 
credit risk. It is EME's policy to sell to investment grade coun
terparties or counterparties that have an investment grade 
guarantor. EME hedges a portion of the electric output of the 
plant in order to lock in desirable outcomes. EME also manages 
the margin between electric prices and fuel prices when deemed 
appropriate. EME uses forward contracts, swaps, futures or option 
contracts to achieve these objectives.  

Midwest Generation and CornEd entered into purchase power 
agreements in which CornEd will purchase capacity and have 
the right to purchase energy generated by the Midwest Gener
ation units. The agreements, which began on December 15, 
1999, and have a term of up to five years, provide for capacity 
and energy payments. CornEd will be obligated to make a 
capacity payment for the units under contract and an energy 
payment for the electricity produced by these units. The capacity 
payment will provide Midwest Generation revenue for fixed 
charges, and the energy payment will compensate Midwest 
Generation for variable costs of production. If CornEd does 
not fully dispatch the units under contract, Midwest Genera
tion may sell, subject to certain conditions, the excess energy 
at market prices to neighboring utilities, municipalities, third 
party electric retailers, large consumers and power marketers 
on a spot basis.  

LoyYang B sells its electrical energy through a centralized 
electricity pool, which provides for a system of generator bid
ding, central dispatch and a settlements system based on a 
clearing market for each half-hour of every day. To mitigate 
the exposure to price volatility of the electricity traded in the 
pool, LoyYang B has entered into a number of financial hedges.  
Between May 1997 and December 2000,53% to 64% of the 
plant output sold is hedged under a long-term contractual 
agreement based upon a fixed price commencing in May 1997 
and terminating in October 2016.Vesting contracts set base 
strike prices at which the electricity will be traded, and the 
parties to the agreement make payments, calculated based on 
the difference between the price in the contract and the half
hourly pool clearing price for the element of power under the 
contract. These contracts are sold in various structures. These 
contracts are accounted for as electricity rate swap agreements.  

Interest rate swaps are used to reduce the potential impact of 
interest rate fluctuations on floating-rate long-term debt. At the 
balance sheet dates of December 31, 1999, and December 31, 
1998, SCE had an interest rate swap agreement which fixed
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the interest rate at 5.585% for $196 million of debt due 2008; 
it expires February 28, 2008. The interest rate swap agreement 
requires the parties to pledge collateral according to bond rat
ing and market interest rate changes. At December 31, 1999, 
SCE had pledged $11 million as collateral due to a decline in 
market interest rates. SCE is exposed to credit loss in the event 
of nonperformance by the counterparty to the agreement, but 
does not expect the counterparty to fail to meet its obligation.  

Edison Capital has foreign currency contracts in effect to 
reduce the potential impact of changes in foreign exchange 
rates and future foreign currency denominated cash flows. At 
December 31, 1999, Edison Capital also had interest rate swap 
agreements converting $70 million of floating rate debt to 
fixed rates of approximately 6.3%. The swaps expire in 2000.

Edison International had the following interest rate and 
foreign currency hedges:

Edison International is subject to concentrations of credit 
risk as the result of elements involved in EME's financial 
instruments and power-sales contracts. Credit risk relates to the 
risk of loss that EME would incur as a result of nonperfor
mance by counterparties (major financial institutions and 
domestic foreign utilities) under their contractual obligations.  
EME attempts to mitigate this risk by contracting with coun
terparties that have a strong capacity to meet their contractual 
obligations and by monitoring their credit quality. In addition, 
EME seeks to secure long-term power-sales contracts for its 
projects that are expected to result in adequate cash flow under 
a wide range of economic and operating circumstances. To 
accomplish this, EMIE attempts to structure its long-term con
tracts so that fluctuations in fuel costs will produce similar 
fluctuations in electric and/or steam revenue by entering into 
long-term fuel supply and transportation agreements. Accord
ingly, EME does not anticipate a material effect on its results 
of operations or financial condition as a result of counterparty 
nonperformance.

December 31, 

In millions 1999 1998 

Notional Contract Notional Contract 
Amount Expires Amount Expires 

Swaps: 
Fixed to variable $ 200 2000 $ 245 1999 -2002 
Variable to fixed 2,148 2000- 2008 1,163 1999- 2008 

Collar - - 82 1999 

Foreign Currency Contract 9 2001 9 2001 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Fair values of financial instruments were: 

December 31, 

In millions 1999 1 1998

Financial assets: 

Decommissioning trusts 
Electricity rate swaps 
Equity investments 

Gas call options 

Power call options 

PX block forward power contracts 

Financial liabilities: 

DOE decommissioning and decontamination fees 

Interest rate hedges 

Long-term debt 

Utility preferred stock subject to mandatory redemption 

Other preferred securities subject to mandatory redemption

Cost 
Basis

$ 1,650 

28 

4 

118 

$ 40 

13,391 

256 

359

Fair 
Value

$ 2,509 
(37) 

33 

20 

120 

$ 35 
20 

13,281 

"259 
360

Cost 
Basis

$1,534 

7 

39 

$ 45 

8,008 

256 
150

Fair 
Value

$2,240 

19 
72 

31 

$ 40 
111 

8,187 

274 

158
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Financial assets are carried at their fair value based on quoted 
market prices for decommissioning trusts, equity investments 
and power contracts and on financial models for gas call options, 
power call options and electricity rate swaps. Financial liabili
ties are recorded at cost. Financial liabilities' fair values are based 
on: termination costs for the interest rate hedges; brokers' quotes 
for long-term debt and preferred securities; and discounted 
future cash flows for U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) decom
missioning and decontamination fees. Due to their short maturi
ties, amounts reported for cash equivalents and short-term debt 
approximate fair value.  

Gross unrealized holding gains on debt and equity invest
ments were: 

December 3 1, 

In millions 1999 1998 

Decommissioning trusts: 
Municipal bonds $239 $196 
Stocks 454 365 
U.S. government issues 119 115 
Short-term and other 47 30 

859 706 
Equity investments 33 65 

Total $892 $771 

There were no unrealized holding losses for the years pre
sented.  

In 1998, a new accounting standard for derivative instruments 
and hedging activities was issued. The new standard, which as 
amended will be effective January 1, 2001, requires all deriva
tives to be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Gains 
or losses from changes in fair value would be recognized in 
earnings in the period of change unless the derivative is desig
nated as a hedging instrument. Gains or losses from hedges of 
a forecasted transaction or foreign currency exposure would be 
reflected in other comprehensive income. Gains or losses from 
hedges of a recognized asset or liability or a firm commitment 
would be reflected in earnings for the ineffective portion of 
the hedge. SCE anticipates that most of its derivatives under 
the new standard would qualify for hedge accounting. SCE 
expects to recover in rates any market price changes from its 
derivatives that could potentially affect earnings. Edison Inter
national is studying the impact of the new standard on its 
nonutility subsidiaries, and is unable to predict at this time the 
impact on its financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 
LONG-TERM DEBT 

California law prohibits SCE from incurring or guaranteeing 
debt for its nonutility affiliates.  

Almost all SCE properties are subject to a trust indenture 
hen. SCE has pledged first and refunding mortgage bonds as 
security for borrowed funds obtained from pollution-control 
bonds issued by government agencies. SCE uses these proceeds 
to finance construction of pollution-control facilities. Bond
holders have limited discretion in redeeming certain pollution
control bonds, and SCE has arranged with securities dealers to 
remarket or purchase them if necessary.  

Debt premium, discount and issuance expenses are amor
tized over the life of each issue. Under CPUC rate-making 
procedures, utility debt reacquisition expenses are amortized 
over the remaining life of the reacquired debt or, if refinanced, 
the life of the new debt.  

Commercial paper intended to be refinanced for a period 
exceeding one year and used to finance nuclear fuel scheduled 
to be used more than one year after the balance sheet date is 
classified as long-term debt.  

Long-term debt maturities and sinking-fund requirements 
for the next five years are: 2000 - $940 million; 2001 
$1.4 billion; 2002 - $1.6 billion; 2003 - $616 million; and 
2004 - $2.3 billion.  

In December 1997, $2.5 billion of rate reduction notes were 
issued on behalf of SCE by SCE Funding LLC, a special pur
pose entity. These notes were issued to finance the 10% rate 
reduction mandated by state law. The proceeds of the rate 
reduction notes were used by SCE Funding LLC to purchase 
from SCE an enforceable right known as transition property.  
Transition property is a current property right created by the 
restructuring legislation and a financing order of the CPUC 
and consists generally of the right to be paid a specified amount 
from non-bypassable rates charged to residential and small 
commercial customers. The rate reduction notes are being 
repaid over 10 years through these non-bypassable residential 
and small commercial customer rates which constitute the 
transition property purchased by SCE Funding LLC. The notes 
are secured by the transition property and are not secured by, 
or payable from, assets of SCE or Edison International. SCE 
used the proceeds from the sale of the transition property to 
retire debt and equity securities.
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Although, as required by generally accepted accounting 
principles, SCE Funding LLC is consolidated with SCE and 
the rate reduction notes are shown as long-term debt in the 
consolidated financial statements, SCE Funding LLC is legally 
separate from SCE. The assets of SCE Funding LLC are not 
available to creditors of SCE or Edison International and the 
transition property is legally not an asset of SCE or Edison 

International.  

Long-term debt consisted of:

In millions

First and refunding mortgage 
bonds: 2000 - 2026 
(5.625% to 7.25%) 

Rate reduction notes: 
2000 - 2007 (6.14% to 6.42%) 

Pollution-control bonds: 
2008 - 2031 (5.125% to 7.2% 
and variable) 

Funds held by trustees 
Debentures and notes: 

2000 - 2029 (5.875% to 9.408%) 
Subordinated debentures: 

2044 (8.375%) 
Commercial paper for nuclear fuel 
Capital lease obligation 
Current portion of 

capital lease obligation 
Long-term debt due 

within one year 
Unamortized debt discount - net

December 31,

1999

$ 1,400 

1,970 

1,196 
(2) 

9,633 

100 

71 

23 

(22)

(940) 

(38)

1998

$1,550 

2,217 

1,201 

(2) 

3,732 

100 

108 

48 

(22)

(898) 
(26)

Total $13,391 1 $8,008

On January 24, 2000, SCE issued $250 million of 7 %% 
notes, due 2010.

NOTE 5 
SHORT-TERM DEBT 

Short-term debt consisted of.

December 31, 

In millions 1999 1998

Commercial paper 
Other short-term debt 
Amount reclassified as long-term 
Unamortized discount

Total

Weighted-average interest rate

$2,413 

225 

(71) 

(14)
-1�

$2,553

6.5%

$670 

6 
(108) 

(3)

$565

5.3%

Commercial paper intended to finance nuclear fuel scheduled 
to be used more than one year after the balance sheet date is 
classified as long-term debt in connection with refinancing 
terms under five-year term lines of credit with commercial banks.  

At December 31, 1999, Edison International and its sub
sidiaries had $572 million of borrowing capacity available 

under lines of credit totaling $3.8 billion. SCE has lines of 
credit totaling $1.25 billion (can be used at negotiated or bank 
index rates) with $39 million available for short-term debt and 
$515 million available for the long-term refinancing of certain 
variable-rate pollution-control debt. The nonutility subsidiaries 
had lines of credit of $425 million available to finance general 

cash requirements. The parent company had available lines of 

credit totaling $108 million. Edison International's unsecured 
revolving lines of credit are at negotiated or bank index rates 
with various expiration dates (the majority have five-year terms).  

NOTE 6 
PREFERRED SECURITIES 

Preferred Stock of Utility 
SCE's authorized shares of preferred and preference stock are: 
$25 cumulative preferred - 24 million; $100 cumulative pre

ferred - 12 million; and preference - 50 million. All cumulative 
preferred stock is redeemable.  

Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock is subject to sink
ing-fund provisions. When preferred shares are redeemed, the 
premiums paid are charged to common equity.  

Preferred stock redemption requirements for the next five 

years are: 2000 and 2001 - zero; 2002 - $105 million; 2003 
$9 million; and 2004 - $9 million.
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SCE's cumulative preferred stock consisted of: 

December 31, 1999 

Shares Redemption December 3 1, 
Dollars in millions, except per share amounts Outstanding Price 1999 1998 

Not subject to mandatory redemption: 

$25 par value: 
4.08% Series 1,000,000 $ 25.50 $ 25 $ 25 
4.24 1,200,000 25.80 30 30 
4.32 1,653,429 28.75 41 41 
4.78 1,296,769 25.80 33 33 

Total $129 $129 

Subject to mandatory redemption: 

$100 par value: 
6.05% Series 750,000 $100.00 $ 75 $ 75 
6.45 1,000,000 100.00 100 100 
7.23 807,000 100.00 81 81 

Total $256 $256

In 1998, 193,000 shares of Series 7.23% and 2.2 million 
shares of Series 5.8% preferred stock were redeemed. There 
were no preferred stock issuances for the years presented.  

Company- Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Securities 
of Subsidiary 
EME issued, through a limited partnership, 3.5 million shares 
of 9.875% cumulative monthly income preferred securities 
in 1994, at a price of $25 per security. These securities are 
redeemable at the option of the partnership in whole or in 
part, beginning November 1999 with mandatory redemption 
in 2024 at a redemption price of $25 per security plus accrued 
and unpaid distributions.  

EME also issued, through the limited partnership, 2.5 mil
lion shares of 8.5% cumulative monthly income preferred 
securities, at a price of $25 per security during 1995. These 
securities are redeemable at the option of the partnership, in 
whole or in part, beginning August 2000 with mandatory 
redemption in 2025 at a redemption price of $25 per security 
plus accrued and unpaid distributions.  

During 1999, Edison International issued, through an affiliate, 
$500 million of 7.875% cumulative quarterly income preferred 
securities, at a price of $25 per security. These securities have a 
stated maturity ofJuly 2029, but are redeemable at the option 
of Edison International, in whole or in part, beginning July 2004.

During 1999, Edison International also issued, through an 
affiliate, $325 million of 8.6% cumulative quarterly income 
preferred securities, at a price of $25 per security. These secu
rities, which are guaranteed by Edison International, have a 
stated maturity of October 2029, but are redeemable at the 
option of Edison International, in whole or in part, beginning 
October 2004.  

Other Preferred Securities 
During 1999, EME issued, through an indirect, wholly owned 
affiliate, $120 million of flexible money market cumulative 
preferred stock. The stock issuance consisted of 600 Series A 
shares and 600 Series B shares, with a dividend rate of 5.74% 
until May 2004. These securities are redeemable, in whole or 
in part, at the option of EME's affiliate, beginning May 2004, 
at $100,000 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends.  

During 1999, EME issued through an indirect, wholly owned 
affiliate, $84 million of Class A redeemable preferred shares 
(16,000 shares priced at 10,000 New Zealand dollars per share 
with dividend rates between 6.19% and 6.86%).The shares are 
redeemable at their issuance price in June 2003.  

During 1999, EME also issued, through an indirect, wholly 
owned affiliate, $125 million of retail redeemable preference 
shares (240 million shares priced at one New Zealand dollar 
per share with dividend rates between 5.0% and 6.37%). The 
shares are redeemable at their issuance price, according to the 
following schedule:June 2001 (64 million shares);June 2002 
(43 million shares); and June 2003 (133 million shares).
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NOTE 7 
INCOME TAXES 

Edison International's subsidiaries are included in Edison 

International's consolidated federal income tax and combined 

state franchise tax returns. Under income tax allocation agree

ments, each subsidiary calculates its own tax liability.  

Income tax expense includes the current tax liability from 

operations and the change in deferred income taxes during the 

year. Investment tax credits are amortized over the lives of the 

related properties.  

The components of the net accumulated deferred income 

tax liability were:

December 31, 

In millions 1999 1 1998

Deferred tax assets: 

Property-related 

Unrealized gains or losses 

Investment tax credits 

Regulatory balancing accounts 

Decommissioning-related 

Unbilled revenue 

Deferred income 

Operating reserves 

Loss carryforwards 

Accrued charges 

Other

$ 184 

453 

113 

68 

127 

122 

185 

214 

69 

247 

137

$ 197 

386 

152 

96 

126 

117 

188 

136 

42 

188 

219

Total $1,919 j $1,847

Deferred tax liabilities: 

Property-related 

Leveraged leases 

Capitalized software costs 

Regulatory balancing accounts 

Decommissioning 

Unrealized gains or losses 

Investment tax credit 

Other

$4,562 

1,280 

225 

448 

23 

357 

19 

571

$3,982 

964 

196 

162 

17 

309 

23 

526

Total $7,485 $6,179

Accumulated deferred income 
taxes - net

Classification of accumulated 
deferred income taxes: 

Included in deferred credits 
Included in current assets

$5,566

$5,757 

191

$4,332

$4,607 

275

The current and deferred components of income tax expense 

were:

Year ended December 31, 

In millions 1999 1998 1997 

Current: 

Federal $(111) $121 $244 

State 3 18 55 

Foreign (34) 15 103 

(142) 154 402

Deferred -federal and state: 

Accrued charges 

Depreciation and basis 
differences 

Investment and energy 
tax credits - net 

Leveraged leases 

Loss carryforwards 

Regulatory balancing 
accounts 

State tax-privilege year 

Other

(147) 

(57) 

(46) 

315 

371 

4 

(4)

(43) 

(14) 

(80) 

346 

(33) 

177 

(1) 

(44)

(33) 

(8) 

(22) 

87 

121 

141 

2 

(191)

436 308 97 

Total income tax expense $ 294 $462 $499

The composite federal and state statutory income tax rate was 

40.551% for all years presented.  

The federal statutory income tax rate is reconciled to the effec

tive tax rate below:

Year ended December 3 1, 

In millions .1999 1 998 1 9V97

Federal statutory rate 

Foreign earnings reinvestment 

Capital loss utilization 

Capitalized software 

Housing credits 

Property-related and other 

Investment and energy 
tax credits 

State tax - net of federal 
deduction

Effective tax rate

35.0% 

(4.4) 

(4.7) 

(2.5) 

(6.9) 

9.7 

(4.7) 

10.4

31.9%

35.0% 

(0.6) 

(5.7) 

10.0 

(5.7) 

7.5

40.5%

35.0% 

(0.8) 

(4.3) 

5.9 

(1.6) 

6.3

40.5%
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NOTE 8 Most employees retiring at or after age 55 with at least 10 
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT PLANS years of service are eligible for postretirement health and den

Employee Savings Plan tal care, life insurance and other benefits.  

Edison International has a 401(k) defined contribution savings In 1998, Edison International adopted a new accounting 
plan designed as a source of employees' retirement income, standard that revises the disclosure requirements for pension 
The plan received employer contributions of $31 million in and postretirement benefit plans. Prior years have been 
1999, $18 million in 1998 and $16 million in 1997. restated.  

Pension Plan and Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions In 1999, EME acquired the Homer City generating plant 
Edison International has a noncontributory, defined-benefit and the fossil-fueled generating plants formerly owned by 
pension plan that covers most employees meeting minimum CornEd (see Note 2). The obligations and expenses for 
service requirements. Edison International's utility operations employees at these plants are reflected below.  
recognize pension expense as calculated by the actuarial Information on plan assets and benefit obligations is shown 
method used for ratemaking. In April 1999, Edison Interna- below: 
tional adopted a cash balance feature for its pension plan.  

Year ended December 31, 

Other 

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 

In millions 1999 1998 1999 1998 

Change in benefit obligation 
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $2,281 $2,116 $1,563 $1,546 
Service cost 70 63 49 43 
Interest cost 149 143 111 100 
Plan amendment (26) - (5) 

Acquisition 10 - 81 

Actuarial loss (gain) (221) 92 (198) (72) 
Benefits paid (142) (133) (54) (54) 

Benefit obligation at end of year $2,121 $2,281 $1,547 $1,563 

Change in plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $2,576 $2,316 $1,029 $ 815 
Actual return on plan assets 627 338 186 147 
Employer contributions 51 55 122 121 

Benefits paid (142) (133) (54) (54) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $3,112 $2,576 $1,283 $1,029 

Funded status $ 991 $ 295 $ (264) $ (534) 
Unrecognized net loss (gain) (1,019) (372) (218) 87 
Unrecognized transition obligation 29 34 350 378 
Unrecognized prior service cost 128 169 (3) 

Recorded asset (liability) $ 129 $ 126 $ (135) $ (69) 

Discount rate 7.75% 6.75% 8.0% 6.75% 
Rate of compensation increase 5.0% 5.0% -

Expected return on plan assets 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5%
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Expense components were:

Year ended December 31, 

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits 

In millions 1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997 

Service cost $70 $ 63 $ 46 $ 49 $ 43 $31 

Interest cost 149 143 140 111 100 100 

Expected return on plan assets (190) (172) (161) (80) (62) (50) 

Net amortization and deferral 12 14 13 27 28 32 

Expense under accounting standards 41 48 38 107 109 113 

Regulatory adjustment - deferred 14 11 17 - -

Total expense recognized $ 55 $ 59 $ 55 $107 $109 $113

The assumed rate of future increases in the per-capita cost 
of health care benefits is 11.75% for 2000, gradually decreasing 
to 5.0% for 2008 and beyond. Increasing the health care cost 
trend rate by one percentage point would increase the accumu
lated obligation as of December 31, 1999, by $248 million and 
annual aggregate service and interest costs by $29 million. Decreas
ing the health care cost trend rate by one percentage point would 
decrease the accumulated obligation as of December 31, 1999, 
by $199 million and annual aggregate service costs by $23 million.  

Phantom Stock Options 
Phantom stock option performance awards were developed for 
two affiliate companies, EME and Edison Capital, as part of the 
Edison International long-term incentive compensation program 
for senior management. Each phantom stock option may be 
exercised to realize any appreciation in the deemed value of 
one hypothetical share of EME or Edison Capital stock over 
exercise prices. Exercise prices for EME and Edison Capital 
phantom stock are escalated on an annually compounded basis 
over the grant price by 9% and 7.75%, respectively. The deemed 
values of the phantom stock are recalculated annually as deter
mined by a formula linked to the value of its portfolio of 
investments, less general and administrative costs. The options 
have a 10-year term with one-third of the total award vesting 
in each of the first three years of the award term. For options 
awarded in 1998 and 1999, one-fourth of the total award vests 
in each of the first four years of the award term.  

Compensation expense recorded with respect to the phan
tom stock options was $157 million in 1999, including the 
one-time charge discussed below, $53 million in 1998 and 
$79 million in 1997.  

Edison International has elected to not issue additional 
phantom options after 1999. In January 2000, the board of 
directors preliminarily approved an exchange offer to the 
holders of outstanding phantom options. Edison International 
has taken a one-time charge of $75 million, after tax, in antici
pation of this offer. The charge reflects the substantial values 
created by EME and Edison Capital over the last six years 
since the phantom option programs began.

Stock Option Plans 
In 1998, Edison International shareholders approved the Edison 
International Equity Compensation Plan. The plan replaces the 
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Program, consisting of officer, 
director, and management plans, which was adopted by Edison 
International shareholders in 1992. No new awards will be made 
under the prior program; however, it will remain in effect as 
long as any awards remain outstanding under the prior program.  

The prior program participated in the use of 8.2 million 
shares of common stock reserved for potential issuance under 
various stock compensation programs to directors, officers and 
senior managers of Edison International and its affiliates. Under 
these programs, options on 3.5 million shares of Edison Inter
national common stock are currently outstanding to officers 
and senior managers.  

The new plan authorizes the annual issuance of shares equal 
to 1% of the issued and outstanding shares of Edison Interna
tional common stock as of December 31 of the prior year. This 
authorization is cumulative so that to the extent shares are not 
needed to meet new plan requirements in any year, the excess 
authorized shares will carry over to subsequent years until plan 
termination. One percent of the issued and outstanding Edison 
International common stock on December 31, 1998, and 1997, 
was 3.5 million and 3.8 million shares, respectively. Under the 
new plan, options on 4.7 million shares of Edison International 
common stock are currently outstanding to officers and senior 
managers.  

Each option may be exercised to purchase one share of Edison 
International common stock, and is exercisable at a price equiv
alent to the fair market value of the underlying stock at the date 
of grant. Edison International stock options include a dividend 
equivalent feature. Generally, for options issued before 1994, 
amounts equal to dividends accrue on the options at the same 
time and at the same rate as would be payable on the number 
of shares of Edison International common stock covered by 
the options. The amounts accumulate without interest.
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For Edison International stock options issued after 1993, divi- Edison International measures compensation expense related 
dend equivalents are subject to reduction unless certain share- to stock-based compensation by the intrinsic value method.  
holder return performance criteria are met. Beginning with the Compensation expense recorded under the stock-compensa
1999 Edison International stock option awards, only some stock tion program was $5 million, $9 million and $6 million for 
options include a dividend equivalent feature. Future stock 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.  

option awards under the plan are not expected to include the 
dividend equivalent feature. Additionally, awards of performance Stock-based compensation expense under the far-value 
shares, comprising a combination of Edison International corn- method of accounting would have resulted in pro forma earn

mon stock and cash, are anticipated under the plan. ings of $621 million, $668 million and $696 million for 1999, 
1998 and 1997, respectively, and in pro forma basic earnings 

The new plan's stock options have a 10-year term with one- per share of $1.79, $1.86 and $1.74 for 1999, 1998 and 1997, 
fourth of the total award vesting after each of the first four respectively.  
years of the award term. The prior program's stock options have 
a 10-year term with one-third of the total award vesting after The fair value for each option granted, reflecting the basis 
each of the first three years of the award term. If an optionee for the above pro forma disclosures, was determined on the 
retires, dies or is permanently and totally disabled during the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.  
vesting period, the unvested options will vest and be exercis- The following assumptions were used in determining fair 
able to the extent of 1/36 (prior program) or 1/48 (the new value through the model: 
plan) of the grant for each full month of service during the 
vesting period. Decmber 31, 

1999 1998 
Unvested options of any person who has served in the past 

on the Edison International or SCE Management Committee Expected life 7 years 7 years 
(which was dissolved in 1993) will vest and be exercisable Risk-free interest rate 5.0i--5.5% 4.7%-5.6% 
upon the member's retirement, death or permanent and total Expected volatility 18% 17% 
disability. Upon retirement, death or permanent and total dis- The application of fair-value accounting to calculate the pro 
ability, the vested options may continue to be exercised within forma disclosures above is not an indication of future income 
their original terms by the recipient or beneficiary If an optionee statement effects. The pro forma disclosures do not reflect the 
is terminated other than by retirement, death or permanent effect of fair-value accounting on stock-based compensation 

and total disability, options which had vested as of the prior awar rante priornto 1995.  

anniversary date of the grant are forfeited unless exercised awards granted prior to 1995.  

within 180 days of the date of termination. All unvested A summary of the status of Edison International's stock 
options are forfeited on the date of termination, options is as follows: 

Weighted-Average 

Share Exercise Exercise Fair Value Remaining 
Options Pice Price at Grant Life

Outstanding, December 31, 1996 
Granted 
Expired 
Forfeited 
Exercised 

Outstanding, December 31, 1997 
Granted 
Expired 
Forfeited 
Exercised 

Outstanding, December 31, 1998 
Granted 
Expired 
Forfeited 
Exercised 

Outstanding, December 31, 1999

3,554,756 

1,350,809 

(33,599) 
(460,300) 

4,411,666 

1,639,300 

(46,171) 

(573,527) 

5,431,268 

3,045,949 

(6,805) 

(368,264) 

8,102,148

$14.56 - $24.44 

$19.75 - $ 25.94 

$14.56 - $ 19.75 

$14.56 - $ 23.28 

$14.56 - $ 25.19 

$26.78 - $ 29.34 

$17.63 - $ 29.88 

$14.56 - $ 29.88 

$14.56 - $ 29.34 

$24.81 - $ 28.13 

$28.13 - $ 28.80 

$14.56 - $ 25.75 

$14.56 - $ 29.34

$18.68 
$20.19 

$17.76 

$19.06 

$18.76 

$27.25 

$26.07 

$ 17.33 

$21.52 

$28.10 

$28.65 

$ 18.72 

$24.04

$7.62 

$6.42 

$6.45

7 years 

7 years 

7 years 

7 years
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The number of options exercisable and their weighted
average exercise prices at December 31, 1999, 1998 and 
1997 were 5,018,556 at $21.63,3,805,755 at $19.72 and 
3,218,189 at $18.48, respectively.  

NOTE 9 
JOINTLY OWNED UTILITY PROJECTS 

SCE owns interests in several generating stations and trans
mission systems for which each participant provides its own 
financing. SCE's share of expenses for each project is included 
in the consolidated statements of income.  

The investment in each project, as included in the consol

idated balance sheet as of December 31, 1999, was:

Accumulated 
Original Cost Depreciation and Under Ownership 

In millions of Facility Amortization Construction Interest 

Transmission systems: 

Eldorado $ 39 $ 6 $ 3 60% 
Pacific Interde 241 78 6 50 

Generating stations: 

Four Corners Units 4 and 5 (coal) 459 325 3 48 
Mohave (coal) 323 217 2 56 
Palo Verde (nuclear)"' 1,609 1,153 19 16 
San Onofre (nuclear)") 4,275 3,269 16 75 

Total $6,946 $5,048 $49

(1) Reported as "Unamortized nuclear investment - net."

NOTE 10 

COMMITMENTS 

Leases 

Leveraged Leases 

Edison Capital is the lessor in several leveraged-lease agree
ments with terms of 13 years to 38 years. All operating, 
maintenance, insurance and decommissioning costs are the 
responsibility of the lessees. The total cost of these facilities 
was $5.5 billion and $4.8 billion at December 31, 1999, and 
1998, respectively.

The equity investment in these facilities is 21.3% of the 
purchase price. The remainder is nonrecourse debt secured by 
first liens on the leased property. The lenders have accepted 
their security interests as their only remedy if the lessee defaults.  

The net investment in leveraged leases consisted of: 

December 31, 

In millions 1999 1998 

Rentals receivable (net of 
principal and interest on 
nonrecourse debt) $ 2,990 $ 2,635 

Unearned income (1,145) (1,062) 

Investment in leveraged leases 1,845 1,573 
Estimated residual value 58 58 
Deferred income taxes (1,280) (964) 

Net investment in leveraged leases $ 623 $ 667
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Operating and Capital Leases 
Edison International has operating leases, primarily for property 
and equipment (with varying terms, provisions and expiration 
dates) and a capital lease ($22 million) for a nonutility power
production facility.  

Estimated remaining commitments for noncancelable leases 
at December 31, 1999, were: 

Operating Capital 
In millions Leases Lease 

Year ended December 31, 
2000 $ 87 $24 
2001 81 
2002 75 

2003 71 
2004 69 
Thereafter 1,506 1 

Total future commitments $1,889 25 
Amount representing 
interest (10.56%) (2) 

Net commitments $23 

Nuclear Decommissioning 
Decommissioning is estimated to cost $2.0 billion in current
year dollars, based on site-specific studies performed in 1998 
for San Onofre and PaloVerde. Changes in the estimated costs, 
timing of decommissioning, or the assumptions underlying 
these estimates could cause material revisions to the estimated 
total cost to decommission in the near term. SCE estimates 
that it will spend approximately $8.6 billion through 2060 to 
decommission its nuclear facilities. This estimate is based on 
SCE's current dollar decommissioning costs, escalated at rates 
ranging from 0.3% to 10.0% (depending on the cost element) 
annually. These costs are expected to be funded from indepen
dent decommissioning trusts, which effective June 1999, 
receive contributions of approximately $25 million per year.  
SCE estimates annual after-tax earnings on the decommission
ing funds of 3.9% to 4.9%.

SCE plans to decommission its nuclear generating facilities 
by a prompt removal method authorized by the Nuclear Reg
ulatory Conmmission. Decommissioning is expected to begin 
after the plants' operating licenses expire. The operating 
licenses expire in 2013 for San Onofre Units 2 and 3, and 
2025-2027 for Palo Verde. Decommissioning costs, which are 
accrued and recovered through non-bypassable customer rates 
over the term of each nuclear facility's operating license, are 
recorded as a component of depreciation expense.  

In June 1999, the CPUC authorized SCE to access its nuclear 
decommissioning trust funds to start decommissioning San 
Onofre Unit 1 (shut down in 1992 per a CPUC agreement) 
effective immediately.  

Decommissioning expense was $124 million in 1999, 
$164 million in 1998 and $154 million in 1997. The accumu
lated provision for decommissioning, excluding San Onofre 
Unit 1, was $1.3 billion at December 31, 1999, and $1.2 billion 
at December 31, 1998. The estimated costs to decommission 
San Onofre Unit 1 (approximately $360 million) are recorded 
as a liability.  

Decommissioning funds collected in rates are placed in inde
pendent trusts, which, together with accumulated earnings, will 
be utilized solely for decommissioning.  

Trust investments (cost basis) include: 

Maturity December 31, 

In millions Dates 1999 1998 

Municipal bonds 2000 - 2033 $ 684 $ 547 

Stocks - 482 550 

U.S. government issues 2000 - 2030 351 355 
Short-term and other 2000 - 2040 133 82 

Total $1,650 $1,534 

Trust find earnings (based on specific identification) increase 
the trust find balance and the accumulated provision for decom
missioning. Net earnings were $58 million in 1999, $63 mil
lion in 1998 and $54 million in 1997. Proceeds from sales of 
securities (which are reinvested) were $2.6 billion in 1999, $1.2 
billion in 1998 and $595 million in 1997. Approximately 90% 
of the trust fund contributions were tax-deductible.

.t. _______________________________________________________________
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Other Commitments 
SCE and EME have fuel supply contracts which require pay
ment only if the fuel is made available for purchase. SCE's gas 
and coal fuel contracts require payment of certain fixed charges 
whether or not gas or coal is delivered.  

SCE has power-purchase contracts with certain qualifying 
facilities (cogenerators and small power producers) and. other 
utilities. These contracts provide for capacity payments if a facility 
meets certain performance obligations and energy payments based 
on actual power supplied to SCE. There are no requirements 
to make debt-service payments. As a result of the utility industry 
restructuring, SCE has entered into settlements to end its contract 
obligations with certain qualifying facilities. The settlements are 
reported as long-term liabilities. Settlement payments are being 
recovered through the CTC.  

SCE has unconditional purchase obligations for part of a 
power plant's generating output, as well as firm transmission 
service from another utility. Minimum payments are based, in 

part, on the debt-service requirements of the provider, whether 
or not the plant or transmission line is operable. SCE's minimum 
commitment under both contracts is approximately $166 million 
through 2017. The purchased-power contract (approximately 

$30 million) is expected to provide approximately 5.5% of cur
rent or estimated future operating capacity, and is reported as a 
long-term liability. The transmission service contract requires a 
minimum payment of approximately $6 million a year.  

Certain commitments for the years 2000 through 2004 are 
estimated below:

In millions 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 

Projected 
construction 
expenditures $1,365 $1,271 $1,115 $1,027 $945 

Fuel supply 
contracts 918 697 520 384 296 

Purchased
power capacity 
payments 793 783 683 668 678 

EME has firm commitments to make equity and other con
tributions to its projects of $186 million for the ISAB project in 

Italy, the EcoEl&trica project in Puerto Rico and the Tri Energy 
project in Thailand. EME also has contingent obligations to 
make additional contributions of $159 million, primarily for 
equity support guarantees related to the Paiton project in 

Indonesia.  

Edison Capital has commitments of $364 million to fund 

affordable housing and energy/infrastructure investments.

NOTE II 

CONTINGENCIES 

In addition to the matters disclosed in these notes, Edison 
International is involved in other legal, tax and regulatory 
proceedings before various courts and governmental agencies 
regarding matters arising in the ordinary course of business.  
SCE believes the outcome of these other proceedings will not 
materially affect its results of operations or liquidity.  

Environmental Protection 
Edison International is subject to numerous environmental laws 
and regulations, which require it to incur substantial costs to 
operate existing facilities, construct and operate new facilities, 

and mitigate or remove the effect of past operations on the 
environment.  

Edison International records its environmental liabilities when 
site assessments and/or remedial actions are probable and a range 

of reasonably likely cleanup costs can be estimated. Edison 
International reviews its sites and measures the liability quarterly, 
by assessing a range of reasonably likely costs for each identi
fied site using currently available information, including existing 
technology, presently enacted laws and regulations, experience 
gained at similar sites, and the probable level of involvement 

and financial condition of other potentially responsible parties.  
These estimates include costs for site investigations, remediation, 
operations and maintenance, monitoring and site closure. Unless 
there is a probable amount, Edison International records the 
lower end of this reasonably likely range of costs (classified as 
other long-term liabilities at undiscounted amounts).  

Edison International's recorded estimated minimum liability 
to remediate its 45 identified sites is $163 million. The ultimate 
costs to clean up Edison International's identified sites may vary 
from its recorded liability due to numerous uncertainties inher
ent in the estimation process, such as: the extent and nature of 
contamination; the scarcity of reliable data for identified sites; 
the varying costs of alternative cleanup methods; developments 
resulting from investigatory studies; the possibility of identifying 
additional sites; and the time periods over which site remedia
tion is expected to occur. Edison International believes that, 
due to these uncertainties, it is reasonably possible that cleanup 
costs could exceed its recorded liability by up to $284 million.
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The upper limit of this range of costs was estimated using 
assumptions least favorable to Edison International among a 
range of reasonably possible outcomes. In 1998, SCE sold all 
of its gas- and oil-fueled generation plants and has retained 
some liability associated with the divested properties.  

The CPUC allows SCE to recover environmental-cleanup 
costs at 42 of its sites, representing $90 million of its recorded 
liability, through an incentive mechanism (SCE may request to 
include additional sites). Under this mechanism, SCE will 
recover 90% of cleanup costs through customer rates; share
holders fund the remaining 10%, with the opportunity to 
recover these costs from insurance carriers and other third 
parties. SCE has successfully settled insurance claims with all 
responsible carriers. Costs incurred at SCE's remaining sites are 
expected to be recovered through customer rates. SCE has 
recorded a regulatory asset of $126 million for its estimated 
minimum environmental-cleanup costs expected to be recov
ered through customer rates.  

Edison International's identified sites include several sites for 
which there is a lack of currently available information, includ
ing the nature and magnitude of contamination, and the extent, 
if any, that Edison International may be held responsible for 
contributing to any costs incurred for remediating these sites.  
Thus, no reasonable estimate of cleanup costs can now be 
made for these sites.  

Edison International expects to clean up its identified sites 
over a period of up to 30 years. Remediation costs in each of 
the next several years are expected to range from $5 million to 
$15 million. Recorded costs for 1999 were $14 million.  

Based on currently available information, Edison International 
believes it is unlikely that it will incur amounts in excess of the 
upper limit of the estimated range and, based upon the CPUC's 
regulatory treatment of environmental-cleanup costs, Edison 
International believes that costs ultimately recorded will not 
materially affect its results of operations or financial position.  
There can be no assurance, however, that future developments, 
including additional information about existing sites or the 
identification of new sites, will not require material revisions 
to such estimates.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERC Transmission Rate Case 
SCE filed its first FEPC transmission rate case in March 1997.  
The filing proposed a transmission revenue requirement of 
$211 million. In March 1999, a proposed FERC decision was 
issued recommending a return on equity of 9.68% (compared 
to SCE's current CPUC rate for distribution of 11.6%) and a 
lower revenue requirement. SCE filed comments opposing the 
proposed decision in May 1999. In response to a recent FERC 
ruling, on November 1, 1999, SCE filed additional evidence 
regarding return on equity. A final FERC decision is expected in 
the first quarter of 2000. SCE does not expect the final deci
sion to have a material effect on its results of operations or 
financial position.  

Hydroelectric Market Value Filing 
In order to comply with the restructuring legislation passed in 
1996, on December 15, 1999, SCE filed an application with 
the CPUC establishing a market value for its hydroelectric 
generation-related assets at approximately $1.0 billion (almost 
twice the assets' book value) and proposing to retain and operate 
the hydroelectric assets under a performance-based and revenue
sharing mechanism. The application had broad-based support 
from labor, ratepayer and environmental groups. If approved by 
the CPUC, SCE would be allowed to recover an authorized, 
inflation-index operations and maintenance allowance, as well 
as a reasonable return on capital investment. A revenue-sharing 
arrangement would be activated if revenue from the sale of 
hydroelectricity exceeds or falls short of the authorized revenue 
requirement. SCE would then refund 90% of the excess revenue 
to ratepayers or recover 90% of any shortfalls from ratepayers.  
A final CPUC decision is expected by the end of 2000.  

Nuclear Insurance 
Federal law limits public liability claims from a nuclear incident 
to $9.5 billion. SCE and other owners of San Onofre and Palo 
Verde have purchased the maximum private primary insurance 
available ($200 million). The balance is covered by the indus
try's retrospective rating plan that uses deferred premium 
charges to every reactor licensee if a nuclear incident at any 
licensed reactor in the U.S. results in claims and/or costs which 
exceed the primary insurance at that plant site. Federal regula
tions require this secondary level of financial protection. The 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission exempted San Onofre Unit 1 
from this secondary level, effective June 1994. The maximum 
deferred premium for each nuclear incident is $88 million per 
reactor, but not more than $10 million per reactor may be
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charged in any one year for each incident. Based on its owner
ship interests, SCE could be required to pay a maximum of 
$175 million per nuclear incident. However, it would have to 
pay no more than $20 million per incident in any one year.  
Such amounts include a 5% surcharge if additional funds are 
needed to satisfy public liability claims and are subject to 
adjustment for inflation. If the public liability limit above is 
insufficient, federal regulations may impose further revenue-rais
ing measures to pay claims, including a possible additional 
assessment on all licensed reactor operators.  

Property damage insurance covers losses up to $500 million, 
including decontamination costs, at San Onofre and PaloVerde.  
Decontamination liability and property damage coverage 
exceeding the primary $500 million also has been purchased 
in amounts greater than federal requirements. Additional insur
ance covers part of replacement power expenses during an 
accident-related nuclear unit outage. These policies are issued 
by a mutual insurance company owned by utilities with 
nuclear facilities. If losses at any nuclear facility covered by the 
arrangement were to exceed the accumulated funds for these 
insurance programs, SCE could be assessed retrospective pre
mium adjustments of up to $19 million per year. Insurance 
premiums are charged to operating expense.  

Paiton Project 
A wholly owned subsidiary of EME owns a 40% interest in the 
Paiton project, a 1,230-MW coal-fired power plant in Indonesia.  
The tariff is higher in the early years and steps down over 
time.The tariff for the Paiton project includes infrastructure 
to be used in common by other units at the Paiton complex.  
The plant's output is fully contracted with the state-owned elec
tricity company for payment in Indonesian Rupiah, with the 
portion of such payments intended to cover non-Rupiah project 
costs (including returns to investors) indexed to the Indonesian 
Rupiah/U.S. dollar exchange rate established at the time of the 
power purchase agreement in February 1994. The state-owned 
electricity company's payment obligations are supported by the 
Indonesian government. The project received substantial finance 
and insurance support from the Export-Import Bank of the 
United States, The Export-Import Bank of Japan, the U.S.  
Overseas Private Investment Corporation and the Ministry of 
International Trade and Industry of Japan. The projected rate 
of growth of the Indonesian economy and the exchange rate 
of Indonesian Rupiah into U.S. dollars have deteriorated sig
nificantly since the Paiton project was contracted, approved 
and financed. The Paiton project's senior debt ratings have been

reduced from investment grade to speculative grade based on 
the rating agencies' perceived increased risk that the state-owned 
electricity company might not be able to honor the electricity 
sales contract with Paiton. The Indonesian government has 
arranged to reschedule sovereign debt owed to foreign govern
ments and has entered into discussions about rescheduling 
sovereign debt owed to private lenders. Certain events have 
occurred (including those discussed in the paragraph below) 
which, with the passage of time or upon notice, may mature 
into defaults of the project's debt agreement. On October 15, 
1999, the project entered into an interim agreement with its 
lenders, in which the lenders waived such defaults until July 31, 
2000. However, such waiver may expire on an earlier date if 
additional defaults (other than those specifically waived) or 
certain other specified events occur.  

One of the Paiton units began commercial operation in 
May 1999 and the other unit in July 1999. Because of the 
economic downturn, the state-owned electricity company is 
experiencing low electricity demand and has therefore ordered 
no power from the Paiton plant; however, under the terms of 
the power purchase agreement, the state-owned electricity 
company is required to continue to pay for capacity and fixed 
operating costs once each unit and the plant achieve commer
cial operation. An invoice for these charges for May 1999 has 
been submitted and a partial payment, based on an arbitrary 
exchange rate that does not comply with the terms of the power 
purchase agreement, was received. Additional invoices for 
capacity charges and fixed operating costs have seen submitted; 
no payment has been received. In addition, the state-owned 
electricity company and the project have begun discussions to 
renegotiate the power supply contract. However, it is not yet 
known what form the renegotiation may take. Any material 
modifications of the contract could also require a renegotiation 
of the Paiton project's debL agreement. The impact of any such 
renegotiations with the state-owned electricity company, the 
Indonesian government or the project's creditors on EME's 
expected return on its investment in Paiton is uncertain at this 
time; however, EME believes that it will ultimately recover its 
investment in the project.  

Spent Nuclear Fuel 
Under federal law, the DOE is responsible for the selection 
and development of a facility for disposal of spent nuclear fuel 
and high-level radioactive waste. Such a facility was to be in 
operation by January 1998. However, the DOE did not meet 
its obligation. It is not certain when the DOE will begin 
accepting spent nuclear fuel from San Onofre or from other 
nuclear power plants.
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SCE has primary responsibility for the interim storage of its 
spent nuclear fuel at San Onofre. Current capability to store 
spent fuel is estimated to be adequate through 2005. Meeting 
spent-fuel storage requirements beyond that period would 
require new and separate interim storage facilities, the costs for 
which have not been determined. Extended delays by the DOE 
could lead to consideration of costly alternatives involving siting 
and environmental issues. SCE has paid the DOE the required 
one-time fee applicable to nuclear generation at San Onofre 
through April 6, 1983, (approximately $24 million, plus interest).  
SCE is also paying the required quarterly fee equal to one mill 
per kilowatt-hour of nuclear-generated electricity sold after 
April 6, 1983.  

Palo Verde on-site spent fuel storage capacity will accommo
date needs until 2003 for Unit 2, and until 2004 for Units 1 
and 3. Arizona Public Service Company, operating agent for 
PaloVerde, is constructing an interim fuel storage facility that 
is expected to be completed in 2002.  

SCE and other owners of nuclear power plants may be able 
to recover interim storage costs arising from DOE delays in 
the acceptance of utility spent nuclear fuel by pursuing relief 
under the terms of the contracts, as directed by the courts, or 
through other court actions.

T

NOTE 12 

INVESTMENTS IN PARTNERSHIPS AND 

UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

Edison International's nonutility subsidiaries have equity inter

ests in energy projects and real estate investment partnerships.  

Summarized financial information of these investments was: 

Year ended December 3 1, 

In millions 1999 1998 1997 

Revenue $ 2,338 $1,848 $1,946 

Expenses 1,872 1,525 1,578 

Net income $ 466 $ 323 $ 368 

December 3 1, 

In millions 1999 1998 

Current assets $ 854 $ 655 

Other assets 9,487 6,811 

Total assets $10,341 $7,466 

Current liabilities $ 1,644 $1,190 
Other liabilities 6,029 4,493 
Equity 2,668 1,783 

Total liabilities and equity $10,341 $7,466 

NOTE 13 

BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

Edison International's reportable business segments include its 
electric utility operation segment (SCE), a nonutility power 
generation segment (EME) and a capital and financial services 
provider segment (Edison Capital). Its segments are based on 
Edison International's internal organization. They are separate 
business units and are managed separately. Edison International 
evaluates the segments' performance based on net income.  

SCE is a rate-regulated electric utility which produces and 
supplies electric energy in central, coastal and Southern Califor
nia. SCE's regulatory environment is changing, as discussed in 
Note 1 to the Consoldiated Financial Statements. EME is a pro
ducer of electricity engaged in the development, ownership 
and operation of electric power generation facilities world
wide. Edison Capital is a provider of capital and financial ser
vices with investments worldwide.  

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those 
described in the summary of significant accounting policies.
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Edison International's business segment information was: 

Nonutility Capital & Corporate & Consolidated 
In millions Electric Utility Power Ceneration Financial Services Other" Edison International 

1999 

Operating revenue $ 7,522 $ 1,6 42") $ 282 $224 $ 9,670 

Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization 1,546 190 22 36 1,794 

Interest and dividend income 69 42 4 (19) 96 

Interest expense - net 472 353 41 17 883 

Income tax expense 438 (40) (25) (79) 294 

Net income 509 130 129 (145) 623 

Total assets 17,657 15,534 2,712 326 36,229 

Additions to property and plant 984 8,310 - (105)-S 9,189 

1998 

Operating revenue $ 7,500 $ 894- S 235 $231 $ 8,860 

Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization 1,546 87 20 9 1,662 

Interest and dividend income 67 50 4 (13) 108 

Interest expense-net 477 183 50 (8) 702 

Income tax expense 442 70 (15) (35) 462 

Net income 515 132 105 (84) 668 

Total assets 16,947 5,158 2,276 317 24,698 

Additions to property and plant 861 73 - 29 963 

1997 

Operating revenue $ 7,953 $ 975(2) $ 138 $169 $ 9,235 

Depreciation, decommissioning and amortization 1,240 103 17 2 1,362 

Interest and dividend income 45 27 10 3 85 

Interest expense-net 435 210 29 25 699 

Income tax expense 520 57 (44) (34) 499 

Net income 606 115 61 (82) 700 

Total assets 18,059 4,985 1,783 274 25,101 

Additions to property and plant 685 88 - 10 783

(1) Includes amounts from nonutility subsidiaries not significant as a reportable segment.  
(2) Includes equity in income from investments of $244 million in 1999 and 

$189 million in both 1998 and 1997.  
(3) Includes liabilities assumed and deferred credits of projects acquired in 1999.  

Geographic Information 
Electric power and steam generated domestically by EME is 
sold principally under long-term contracts to electric utilities, 
through a centralized power pool, or under a power-purchase 
agreement with a term of up to 5 years. Projects in the United 
Kingdom and a project in Australia sell their energy through a 
centralized power pool (in the respective countries). Other 
electric power generated overseas is sold primarily under long
term contracts to electric utilities located in the country where 
the power is generated. All electric power generated by SCE is 

sold through the PX.  

Edison International's foreign and domestic revenue and 
assets information was:

Year ended December 3 1, 

In millions 1999 1998 1997 

Revenue 
United States $ 8,631 $ 8,154 $8,452 

Foreign countries: 
United Kingdom 748 449 428 

Australia 209 199 296 

Other 82 58 59 

$ 9,670 $ 8,860 $9,235 

December 31, 

In millions 1999 1998 

Assets 
United States $28,122 $20,739 

Foreign countries: 
United Kingdom 4,163 1,787 
Australia 1,398 1,326 
Other 2,546 846

$36,229 $24,698
S L +
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1999 
In millions, except per share amounts Total Fourth Third Second First 

Operating revenue $9,670 $2,509 $2,957 $2,116 $2,088 
Operating income 1,744 324 642 378 399 
Net income 623 96 255 128 143 

Per share: 

Basic earnings $ 1.79 $ .28 $ .74 $ .37 $ .41 
Diluted earnings 1.79 .28 .73 .37 .41 
Dividends declared 1.08 .27 .27 .27 .27 

Common stock prices: 
High $ 29/4 $ 29V6 $ 27% $ 29/ $ 28'Y6 
Low 21 s% 23Yi6  22% 223A 21 / 
Close 26M6 263/6 24Y6 26Y4 221/ 

1998 

In millions, except per share amounts Total Fourth Third Second First 

Operating revenue $8,860 $2,258 $2,754 $1,939 $1,910 
Operating income 1,784 389 535 398 462 
Net income 668 163 216 145 144 
Per share: 

Basic earnings $ 1.86 $ .46 $ .61 $ .40 $ .39 
Diluted earnings 1.84 .46 .60 .40 .39 
Dividends declared 1.04 .26 .26 .26 .26 

Common stock prices: 
High $31 $ 28%6 $ 29'16 $ 31 $ 30'1t 6 
Low 25 V 25 % 253Y 271Y6 25 X6 
Close 277/ 27 / 25"16 29Y16 29Y
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Edison International and Subsidiaries

SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OPERATING DATA: 1995-1999 

Dollars in millions, except per share amounts 1999 1998 1997 j996 1995

EDISON INTERNATIONAL 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Operating revenue $ 9,670 $ 8,860 $ 9,235 $ 8,545 $ 8,405 
Operating expenses S 7,926 S 7,076 $ 7,200 S 6,503 S 6,500 
Net income S 623 $ 668 S 700 S 717 $ 739 
Weighted-average shares of common stock 

outstanding (in millions) 348 359 400 437 446 
Per share data: 

Basic earnings S 1.79 $ 1.86 $ 1.75 $ 1.64 $ 1.66 
Diluted earnings S 1.79 S 1.84 $ 1.73 $ 1.63 S 1.65 
Dividends paid $ 1.07 $ 1.03 $ 1.00 $ 1.00 $ 1.00 
Dividends declared $ 1.08 S 1.04 $ 1.00 $ 1.00 $ 1.00 
Book value at year-end S 15.01 $ 14.55 S 14.71 S 15.07 $ 14.41 

Market value at year-end S 26Y6 $ 27'!s S 27Yt, $ 19yo 5 17'!A 
Dividend payout ratio (paid) 59.8% 55.4% 57.1% 61.0% 60.2% 
Rate of return on common equity 12.2% 12.8% 11.7% 11.1% 11.8% 
Price/earnings ratio 14.6 15.0 15.5 12.1 10.6 
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.85 2.33 2.41 2.42 2.58 
Assets $36,229 $24,698 $25,101 $24,559 $23,946 
Long-term debt $13,391 $ 8,008 S 8,871 $ 7,475, $ 7,195 
Common shareholders'equity S 5,211 $ 5,099 $ 5,527 $ 6,397 S 6,393 
Preferred stock subject to mandatory 

redemption $ 256 $ 256 $ 275 $ 275 S 275 
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable 

securities of subsidiaries holding solely 
parent company debentures $ 948 $ 150 $ 150 $ 150 $ 150 

Retained earnings $ 3,079 $ 2,906 $ 3,176 $ 3,753 $ 3,700 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 
EDISON COMPANY 
Operating revenue $ 7,522 $ 7,500 $ 7,953 $ 7,583 $ 7,873 
Earnings $ 484 $ 490 $ 576 $ 621 $ 643 
Basic earnings per Edison International 

common share $ 1.39 $ 1.37 $ 1.44 5 1.42 S 1.44 
Rate of return on common equity 15.2% 13.3% 11.6% 12.1% 12.6% 
Peak demand in megawatts (MW) 19,122 19,935 19,118 - 18,207 17,548 
Generation capacity at peak (MW) 10,474 10,546 21,511 21,602 21,603 
Kilowatt-hour sales (in millions) 78,602 76,595 77,234 75,572 74,296 
Customers (in millions) 4.36 4.27 4.25 4.22 4.18 
Full-time employees 13,040 13,177 12,642 12,057 14,886 

EDISON MISSION ENERGY 

Revenue $ 1,642 $ 894 $ 975 $ 844 $ 467 
Net income $ 130 $ 132 $ 115 $ 92 $ 64 
Assets $15,534 $ 5,158 $ 4,985 $ 5,153 $ 4,374 
Rate of return on common equity 8.1% 14.8% 12.2% 8.8% 9.5% 
Ownership in operating projects (MW) 22,037 5,153 5,180 4,706 4,212 
Full-time employees 3,245 1,180 1,140 940 902 

EDISON CAPITAL 
Revenue $ 282 $ 235 $ 138 $ 49 $ 49 
Net income $ 129 $ 105 $ 61 $ 41 $ 39 
Assets $ 2,712 $ 2,276 $ 1,783 $ 1,423 $ 1,063 
Rate of return on common equity 27.0% 30.2% 23.2% 17.7% 18.5% 
Full-time employees 115 85 85 70 42
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL MEETING 

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held on Thursday, 

April 20,2000, at 9 a.m., at the Chicago Public Library, Harold 

Washington Library Center, 400 South State Street, Chicago, 

Illinois.

STOCK LISTING AND TRADING INFORMATION 

Edison International Common Stock 
The NewYork and Pacific stock exchanges use the ticker 
symbol EIX daily newspapers list the stock as EdisonInt.  

Preferred Stock 
Edison International's preferred securities are listed on the 
NewYork Stock Exchange under the ticker symbols EIX prA 
for the 7.875% QUIPS Series A and EIX prB for the 8.60% 
Series B. Previous day's dosing prices, when traded, are listed 
in the daily newspapers in the NewYork Stock Exchange 
composite table under the symbols EIX QUIPS A and EIX 
QUIPS B. Southern California Edison's preferred stocks are 
listed on the American and Pacific stock exchanges under the 
ticker symbol SCE. Previous day's closing prices, when traded, 
are listed in the daily newspapers in the American Stock 
Exchange composite table under the symbol SoCalEd. The 
6.05%, 6.45% and 7.23% series are not listed. The preferred 
securities of Mission Capital, an affiliate of Edison Mission 
Energy, are listed on the NewYork Stock Exchange under the 
ticker symbol MEPrA for the 9.875% series and MEPrB for the 
8.50% series.  

ý)Portons of this annuat nport umprinted on mycydd paper.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR 

Norwest Bank Minnesota, N.A., maintains shareholder records 

and is transfer agent and registrar for Edison International 
common stock and Southern California Edison preferred 

stocks. Shareholders may call Norwest Shareowner Services, 

800.347.8625, between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. (Central Time) every 

business day regarding:

- stock transfer and name-change requirements; 
- address changes, including dividend addresses; 
- electronic deposit of dividends; 
- taxpayer identification number submission or changes; 
- duplicate 1099 and W-9 forms; 
- notices of, and replacement of, lost or destroyed stock 

certificates and dividend checks; 
- direct debit of optional cash for dividend reinvestment; 
- requests to eliminate multiple annual report mailings; 
- Edison International's Dividend Reinvestment Plan, 

including enrollments, withdrawals, terminations, transfers, 
sales, duplicate statements; and 

- requests for access to online account information, which 
can be obtained by calling Norwest Shareowner Services 
at 800.347.8625.

Inquiries should be directed to: 
Mail 
Norwest Bank Minnesota, N.A.  
Shareowner Services Department 
PO. Box 64854 
St. Paul, MN 55164-0854 

Fax 
651.450.4033 

E-mail 
stocktransfer@norwest.com 

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND 

ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER 

Shareholders can purchase additional common shares by 
reinvesting their quarterly dividends. A prospectus on Edison 
International's Dividend Reinvestment Plan is available from 
Norwest Shareowner Services.  

Dividend checks can be electronically deposited directly to 
your financial institution. Enrollment forms are available upon 
request.  
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 

/X/ Annual report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

For the fiscal year ended December31. 1999 

Commission File Number 1-9936 

EDISON INTERNATIONAL 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 
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PART I

Item 1. Business 

Business of Edison International 

Edison International was incorporated on April 20, 1987, under the laws of the State of California for the 
purpose of becoming the parent holding company of Southern California Edison Company (SCE), a 
California public utility corporation. As of December 31, 1999, Edison International owned all of the issued 
and outstanding common stock of SCE and of other subsidiaries engaged in nonutility businesses 
(Nonutility Companies). These Nonutility Companies are: Edison Mission Energy (EME), which is 
engaged in developing, acquiring, owning, and operating electric power generation facilities worldwide; 
Edison Capital, a provider of capital and financial services for energy and infrastructure projects; Mission 
Land Company (Mission Land), which is in the business of managing and selling real estate projects; and 
Edison Enterprises, which provides integrated energy services, utility outsourcing, and consumer products 
and services.  

Edison International is engaged in the business of holding, for investment, the stock of its subsidiaries. At 
year-end 1999, Edison International had 25 full-time employees, SCE had 13,040 full-time employees, 
Edison Mission Energy had 3,245 full-time employees, Edison Capital had 115 full-time employees, and 
Edison Enterprises had 3,145 full-time employees.  

The principal executive offices of Edison International are located at 2244 Walnut Grove Avenue, 

Rosemead, California 91770, and its telephone number is (626) 302-2222.  

Forward-Looking Statements 

This annual report contains forward-looking statements that reflect Edison International's current 
expectations and projections about future events based on Edison International's knowledge of present 
facts and circumstances and assumptions about future events. Other information distributed by Edison 
International that is incorporated herein or refers to or incorporates this annual report may also contain 
forward-looking statements. In this annual report and elsewhere, the words "expects," "believes," 
"anticipates," "estimates," "intends," "plans," and variations of such words and similar expressions are 
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements necessarily involve risks and 
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated. Some of the risks, 
uncertainties and other important factors that could cause results to differ are: 

Actions of regulatory bodies setting rates and implementing the restructuring of the electric utility 
industry, including, for example, regulatory actions in California that could affect SCE's ability to 
recover its past investments in utility plant and earn competitive returns, and regulatory actions in 
various jurisdictions, including other countries, that could affect the business prospects of EME 
and Edison Capital because of their investments in electric generating and transmission assets 
and contracts with electric utility companies.  

The effects of new laws and regulations relating to restructuring and other matters, such as 
pending legislation that would repeal or amend key United States statutes governing the electric 
industry, and new laws and rules governing electricity trading in the United Kingdom.  

The effects of increased competition in the electric utility business and other energy-related 
businesses, including among other things the ability of customers to purchase energy and 
metering and billing services from nonutility energy service providers.  

Changes in the supply, demand and price for electric capacity and energy in relevant markets and 
the cost and availability of fuel and fuel transportation.



* Unpredictable weather conditions that may affect seasonable patterns of revenue collection, 
cause changes in demand (and prices) for electricity for heating and cooling purposes, and result 
in higher costs for repair or maintenance of assets.  

* The values and other terms under which SCE is able either to sell or retain electric generation 
assets, and the associated ratemaking treatment.  

0 Financial market conditions such as inflation and changes in interest rates and currency exchange 
rates, which could affect the availability and cost of external financing.  

* Risks of doing business in foreign countries, particularly as to EME and Edison Capital, including 
such things as political instability, expropriation, currency devaluation, currency repatriation, and 
uncertainties as to legal rights and remedies.  

0 Power plant construction and operation risks, including cost overruns, strikes, equipment failures 
and other issues.  

0 The ability of EME to assimilate substantial generating assets acquired during 1999 and to 
successfully operate such assets as merchant plants.  

0 The effects of changes in tax laws or unfavorable interpretation and application of the laws by tax 
authorities.  

* New or increased environmental liabilities associated with power plants and other facilities or 
operations, resulting from changes in laws, accidents or other events.  

0 The ability of Edison International and its subsidiaries to create and expand new businesses, such 
as telecommunications and other energy-related consumer products and services, and to operate 
such businesses profitably.  

0 Legal proceedings arising out of commercial disputes, property rights, personal injuries, and other 
circumstances.  

Additional information about the risk factors listed above is contained throughout this annual report.  
Readers are urged to read this entire report and carefully consider the risks, uncertainties and other 
factors that affect Edison International's business. The information contained in this report is subject to 
change without notice. Readers should review future reports filed by Edison International with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  

Competitive Environment 

SCE currently operates in a highly regulated environment in which it has an obligation to deliver electric 
service to customers in return for an exclusive franchise within its service territory. This regulatory 
environment is changing. In the generation sector, SCE has experienced competition from nonutility 
power producers and regulators are restructuring California's electric utility industry to facilitate additional 
competition. (See "Business of SCE - Changing Regulatory Environment" below for a description of 
these changes.) 

Edison International's Nonutility Companies face competitive conditions as well. EME competes with 
many other companies (including independent power producers that are affiliates of utilities) in selling 
electric power and steam as well as with electric utilities and others in installing new generating capacity.  
Edison Capital competes with other investors, including money center banks, major finance and lease 
companies, and affiliates of public utilities and other Fortune 500 companies, in the market for highly
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structured transactions. Edison Enterprises, through its various businesses, is engaged in a variety of 
competitive retail products and services (See "Business of the Nonutility Companies").  

Regulation of Edison International 

Edison International and its subsidiaries are exempt from all provisions, except Section 9(a)(2), of the 
Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 (Holding Company Act) on the basis that Edison International 
and SCE are incorporated in the same state and their business is predominately intrastate in character 
and carried on substantially in the state of incorporation. It is necessary for Edison International to file an 
annual exemption statement with the SEC, and the exemption may be revoked by the SEC upon a finding 
that the exemption may be detrimental to the public interest or the interest of investors or consumers.  
Edison International has no present intention of becoming a registered holding company under the Holding 
Company Act.  

Edison International is not a public utility under the laws of the State of California and is not subject to 
regulation as such by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). (See "Business of SCE 
Regulation of SCE" below for a description of the regulation of SCE by the CPUC.) The CPUC decision 
authorizing SCE to reorganize into a holding company structure, however, contains certain conditions, 
which, among other things: (1) ensure the CPUC access to books and records of Edison International and 
its affiliates which relate to transactions with SCE; (2) require Edison International and its subsidiaries to 
employ accounting and other procedures and controls to ensure full review by the CPUC and to protect 
against subsidization of nonutility activities by SCE's customers; (3) require that all transfers of market, 
technological, or similar data from SCE to Edison International or its affiliates, be made at market value; 
(4) preclude SCE from guaranteeing any obligations of Edison International without prior written consent 
from the CPUC; (5) provide for royalty payments to be paid by Edison International or its subsidiaries in 
connection with the transfer of product rights, patents, copyrights, or similar legal rights from SCE; and 
(6) prevent Edison International and its subsidiaries from providing certain facilities and equipment to SCE 
except through competitive bidding. In addition, the decision provides that SCE shall maintain a balanced 
capital structure in accordance with prior CPUC decisions, that SCE's dividend policy shall continue to be 
established by SCE's board of directors as though SCE were a stand-alone utility company, and that the 
capital requirements of SCE, as determined to be necessary to meet SCE's service obligations, shall be 
given first priority by the boards of directors of Edison International and SCE.  

On December 16, 1997, the CPUC adopted a decision which established new rules governing the 
relationship between California's natural gas local distribution companies, electric utilities, and certain of 
their affiliates. While SCE and its affiliates have been subject to affiliate transaction rules since the 
establishment of its holding company structure in 1988, these new rules are more detailed and restrictive.  
On December 31, 1997, SCE filed a preliminary compliance plan which set forth SCE's implementation of 
the new affiliate transaction rules. This preliminary compliance plan was supplemented by an additional 
filing made on January 30, 1998. In September 1998, the CPUC issued a resolution accepting certain 
portions of SCE's compliance plan and rejecting others. SCE filed a revised compliance plan in 
October 1998 as ordered. No party protested that revised plan.  

The new affiliate transaction rules apply to all transactions by SCE with affiliates engaging in the 
production of products that use electricity or the providing of services that relate to the use of electricity.  
Edison International is not subject to these new affiliate transaction rules and continues to be subject to 
the prior rules. The new affiliate transaction rules are structured to address CPUC concerns regarding 
market power and cross-subsidization arising out of the new competitive electricity market in California.  
The new rules are categorized into nondiscrimination standards, disclosure and information standards, 
and separation standards. The new rules also set forth requirements and restrictions on the utility's 
offering of certain products and services.  

The CPUC has modified certain of the rules in response to petitions from various parties. SCE is still 
awaiting CPUC decisions on its compliance plan (which includes SCE's interpretation of the rule governing
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affiliate use of the utility's name and logo). The CPUC decision concerning the name and logo rule may 
affect the disposition of a pending complaint against SCE filed by the CPUC's Office of Ratepayer 
Advocates (ORA) and The Utility Reform Network (TURN) with the CPUC, which complaint alleges a 
violation of that rule by Edison Source in a bulk mailing in 1998.  

Additional information about the applicability of certain regulatory requirements to EME is provided below 

under "Business of the Nonutility Companies." 

Environmental Matters 

Legislative and regulatory activities by federal, state, and local authorities in the United States and 
regulatory authorities with jurisdiction over Edison International's projects located outside the United 
States continue to result in the imposition of numerous restrictions on Edison International's operation of 
existing facilities, on the timing, cost, location, design, construction, and operation by Edison International 
of new facilities, and on the cost of mitigating the effect of past operations on the environment. These 
laws and regulations, relating to air and water pollution, waste management, hazardous chemical use, 
noise abatement, land use, aesthetics, and nuclear control, substantially affect future planning and will 
continue to require modifications of Edison International's existing facilities and operating procedures.  
Edison International is unable to predict the extent to which additional regulations may affect its operations 
and capital expenditure requirements.  

The Clean Air Act provides the statutory framework to implement a program for achieving national ambient 
air quality standards in areas exceeding such standards and provides for maintenance of air quality in 
areas already meeting such standards. Among other requirements, it also restricts the emission of toxic 
air contaminants and provides for the reduction of sulfur dioxide emissions to address acid deposition.  
EME spent $77 million in 1999 and expects to spend approximately $139 million for 2000 and $42 million 
in 2001 to install upgrades to the environmental controls at the Homer City plant in Pennsylvania to control 
sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxide emissions. Similarly, EME plans to upgrade the environmental controls 
at its Illinois plants to control nitrogen oxide emissions and expects to spend approximately $54 million in 
2000, $45 million in 2001 and $80 million in for 2002. Additionally, provisions related to nonattainment, air 
toxins, permitting of new and existing units, enforcement, and acid rain may affect EME's domestic plants; 
however, final details of all these programs have not been issued by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) and state agencies. In addition, at the Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry plants in 
the United Kingdom, EME expects to incur environmental costs arising from plant modification, totaling 
approximately $222 million for the 2000 to 2004 period.  

In California, pursuant to federal, state and regional Clean Air Act programs, SCE generating stations 
were required to reduce emissions of oxides of nitrogen and certain other pollutants. During 1998, SCE 
sold all of its oil- and gas-fueled generating stations within the Mohave Desert Air Quality Management 
District, Ventura County Air Pollution Control District, and in the Santa Barbara County Air Pollution 
Control District. SCE has sold all but one of its oil- and gas-fired generating stations within the South 
Coast Air Quality Management District. The remaining plant, the small diesel-fired Pebbly Beach 
Generating Station, supplies power to Santa Catalina Island. After the sale of its oil- and gas-fueled 
generating stations, SCE commenced operation of the facilities under operation and maintenance 
contracts with the individual owners except for two plants that ceased operation during 1998. SCE will 
continue to operate those divested facilities as active generating stations for the required two-year period 
specified by California's electric utility restructuring legislation. SCE's operation of the stations under 
these operation and maintenance contracts is at the direction and expense of the new owners. SCE is 
responsible for maintaining the environmental permits for the plants. Among other responsibilities, the 
new owners, not SCE, are responsible for the purchase and installation of emissions control equipment, 
and for obtaining trading credits required for the plants under the Regional Clean Air Incentives Market 
within the South Coast Air Quality Management District.
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SCE also owns a 56% undivided interest in the Mohave Generating Station (Mohave Station) located in 
Laughlin, Nevada, which is subject to certain air quality programs. Several recent developments affect the 
emission reduction requirements for this facility. Probably the most significant development is the entry of 
a consent decree voluntarily entered into among certain environmental organizations and the owners of 
the Mohave facility. This decree resolved a litigation filed on February 19, 1998, by the Sierra Club and 
the Grand Canyon Trust in the U.S. District Court in Nevada against the facility owners alleging violations 
of the Nevada State Implementation Plan and applicable air quality permits related to opacity and sulfur 
dioxide emission limits. (See, "Mohave Generating Station Environmental Litigation," under Item 3 below 
for additional discussion.) The decree, which was approved by the Court in December 1999, was 
designed also to address concerns raised by two EPA programs regarding visibility and regional haze.  
The EPA issued its final rulemaking regarding regional haze regulations on July 1, 1999. The final rule is 
not expected to impose any additional emissions control requirements on the Mohave Station beyond 
meeting the provisions of the consent decree. The EPA and SCE also participated in a study to determine 
the specific impact of air contaminant emissions from the Mohave Station on visibility in Grand Canyon 
National Park. The final report on this study, which was issued in March 1999, found negligible correlation 
between measured Mohave Station tracer concentrations and visibility impairment. The absence of any 
obvious relationship cannot rule out Mohave Station contributions to haze in Grand Canyon National Park, 
but strongly suggests that other sources were primarily responsible for the haze. Finally, in June 1999, 
the EPA issued an advanced notice of proposed rulemaking regarding assessment of visibility impairment 
at the Grand Canyon. SCE filed comments on the proposed rulemaking in November 1999. In a letter to 
SCE, the EPA has expressed its belief that the controls provided in the consent decree will likely resolve 
the potential Clean Air Act visibility concerns. The Agency is considering incorporating the decree into the 
visibility provisions of its Federal Implementation Plan for Nevada.  

The Clean Air Act also requires the EPA to carry out a three-year study of risk to public health from the 
emissions of toxic air contaminants from electric utility steam generating plants, and to regulate such 
emissions if the Administrator makes certain findings. The study's final report to Congress concluded that 
mercury from coal-fired utilities is the hazardous air pollutant of greatest potential concern and merits 
additional research and monitoring to better understand the risks of mercury exposure. Other pollutants 
that may potentially need further study are dioxins and arsenic from coal-fired plants, and nickel from oil
fired plants. The EPA concluded that the impacts from emissions from gas-fired utilities are negligible and 
that there is no need for further evaluation of the risks of hazardous air pollutants emitted from such 
plants.  

Regulations under the Clean Water Act require permits for the discharge of certain pollutants into U.S.  
waters. Under this act, the EPA issues effluent limitation guidelines, pretreatment standards, and new 
source performance standards for the control of certain pollutants. Individual states may impose more 
stringent limitations. SCE incurs additional expenses and capital expenditures in order to comply with 
guidelines and standards applicable to steam electric power plants. SCE presently has discharge permits 
for all applicable facilities.  

The Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act prohibits the exposure to individuals of chemicals 
known to the State of California to cause cancer or reproductive harm and the discharge of such listed 
chemicals into potential sources of drinking water. Additional chemicals are continuously being put on the 
state's list, requiring constant monitoring.  

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act provides the statutory authority for the EPA to implement a 
regulatory program for the safe treatment, recycling, storage, and disposal of solid and hazardous waste.  
An unresolved issue remains regarding the degree to which coal waste should be regulated under the act.  
Increased regulation may result in increased expenses relating to the operation of the Mohave Station.  

The Toxic Substances Control Act and accompanying regulations govern the manufacturing, processing, 
distribution in commerce, use, and disposal of listed compounds, such as polychlorinated biphenyls, a
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toxic substance used in certain electrical equipment. Current costs for disposal of this substance are 
immaterial.  

Edison international records its environmental liabilities when site assessments and/or remedial actions 
are probable and a range of reasonably likely cleanup costs can be estimated. Edison International 
reviews its sites and measures the liability quarterly, by assessing a range of reasonably likely costs for 
each identified site using currently available information, including existing technology, presently enacted 
laws and regulations, experience gained at similar sites, and the probable level of involvement and 
financial condition of other potentially responsible parties. These estimates include costs for site 
investigations, remediation, operations and maintenance, monitoring, and site closure. Unless there is a 
probable amount, Edison International records the lower end of this reasonably likely range of costs 
(classified as other long-term liabilities at discounted amounts).  

Edison International's recorded estimated minimum liability to remediate its 45 identified sites is 
$163 million. The ultimate costs to clean up Edison International's identified sites may vary from its 
recorded liability due to numerous uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, such as: (1) the extent 
and nature of contamination; (2) the scarcity of reliable data for identified sites; (3) the varying costs of 
alternative cleanup methods; (4) developments resulting from investigatory studies; (5) the possibility of 
identifying additional sites; and (6) the time periods over which site remediation is expected to occur.  
Edison International believes that, due to these uncertainties, it is reasonably possible that cleanup costs 
could exceed its recorded liability by up to $284 million. The upper limit of this range of costs was 
estimated using assumptions least favorable to Edison International among a range of reasonably 
possible outcomes. SCE has sold all of its gas- and oil-fueled generation plants (except the Pebbly Beach 
Generating Station) and has retained some liability associated with the divested properties.  

The CPUC allows SCE to recover environmental-cleanup costs at 42 of its sites, representing $90 million 
of its recorded liability, through an incentive mechanism (SCE may seek to include additional sites).  
Under this mechanism, SCE will recover 90% of cleanup costs through customer rates; shareholders fund 
the remaining 10%, with the opportunity to recover these costs from insurance carriers and other third 
parties. SCE has successfully settled insurance claims with all responsible carriers. Costs incurred at 
SCE's remaining sites are expected to be recovered through customer rates. SCE has recorded a 
regulatory asset of $126 million for its estimated minimum environmental-cleanup costs expected to be 
recovered through customer rates.  

Edison International's identified sites include several sites for which there is a lack of currently available 
information, including the nature and magnitude of contamination, and the extent, if any, that Edison 
International may be held responsible for contributing to any costs incurred for remediating these sites.  
Thus, no reasonable estimate of cleanup costs can be made for these sites.  

Edison International expects to clean up its identified sites over a period of up to 30 years. Remediation 
costs in each of the next several years are expected to range from $5 million to $15 million. Recorded 
costs for 1999 were $14 million.  

Based on currently available information, Edison International believes that it is unlikely that it will incur 
amounts in excess of the upper limit of the estimated range and, based upon the CPUC's regulatory 
treatment of environmental-cleanup costs, Edison International believes that costs ultimately recorded will 
not materially affect its results of operations or its financial position. There is no assurance, however, that 
future developments, including additional information about existing sites or the identification of new sites, 
will not require material revisions to such estimates.  

Edison International's projected environmental capital expenditures are $1.5 billion for the 2000-2004 
period, mainly for undergrounding certain transmission and distribution lines at SCE and for air pollution 
control measures at EME.
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Year 2000 Issue

Edison International implemented a comprehensive program to address potential Year 2000 computer 
system impacts, consisting of five phases: inventory, impact assessment, remediation, testing and 
implementation. Edison International met its goal to have 100% of its critical systems Year 2000-ready by 
July 1, 1999. A critical system was defined as those applications and systems, including embedded 
processor technology, which if not appropriately remediated, may have had a significant impact on 
customers, the health and safety of the public and/or personnel, the revenue stream, or regulatory 
compliance. Edison International developed Year 2000-related contingency plans, which were in place at 
year-end 1999.  

None of Edison International's critical applications or assets encountered significant problems on or since 
January 1, 2000, including on and over February 29, 2000, and they continue to operate as expected.  
Edison International expects business as usual in 2000 as it relates to its Year 2000 computer system 
issues.  

Edison International's Year 2000 costs through December 31, 1999, were $68 million, of which 35% was 
for capital costs. SCE's current rate levels for providing electric service were sufficient to provide funding 
for utility-related modifications.  

Business of SCE 

SCE was incorporated in 1909 under the laws of the State of California. SCE is a public utility primarily 
engaged in the business of supplying electric energy to a 50,000 square-mile area of Central and 
Southern California, excluding the City of Los Angeles and certain other cities. This SCE service territory 
includes approximately 800 cities and communities and a population of more than 11 million people.  
Beginning in April 1998, pursuant to the restructuring of the California electric utility industry mandated by 
a 1996 state law, other entities have had the ability to sell electricity in SCE's service territory, utilizing 
SCE's transmission and distribution lines at tariffed rates. As a part of this utility industry restructuring, 
SCE sold some of its electric generating plants in 1998. SCE currently retains other electric generating 
plants, however, and it retains its transmission and distribution lines over which it transmits and distributes 
the electricity generated by SCE and other generators to the customers in SCE's service territory. As a 
further part of the industry restructuring, SCE is required for an interim transition period (ending no later 
than year-end 2001) to sell all SCE-generated electricity to the California Power Exchange (PX) at prices 
determined by periodic public auctions, and SCE is required to buy any electricity needed to serve SCE's 
retail customers from the PX at similarly determined prices. In 1999, SCE's total operating revenue was 
derived from: 37.1%, residential customers; 38.5%, commercial customers; 9.8%, industrial customers; 
7.1%, public authorities; 1.5%, agricultural and other customers; and 6.0%, other electric revenue. SCE 
had 13,040 full-time employees at year-end 1999. SCE comprises the largest portion of the assets and 
revenue of its parent holding company, Edison International.  

Regulation of SCE 

SCE's retail operations are subject to regulation by the CPUC. The CPUC has the authority to regulate, 
among other things, retail rates, issuance of securities, and accounting practices. SCE's wholesale 
operations are subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). The FERC 
has the authority to regulate wholesale rates as well as other matters, including transmission service 
pricing, accounting practices, and licensing of hydroelectric projects.  

SCE's transmission operations, including other generators' rights of access to SCE's transmission lines, 
also are subject to regulation by the California Independent System Operator (ISO), an entity that was 
created by the California restructuring legislation in 1996 and went into operation in 1998. The 1996 
restructuring legislation also created the PX, a non-profit entity that conducts frequent electronic auctions 
of electricity. During an interim transitional period (ending no later than year-end 2001), SCE is required
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by CPUC order to sell all SCE-generated electricity to the PX and to purchase power needed for retail 
customers from the PX.  

SCE is subject to the jurisdiction of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) with respect to its nuclear 
power plants. NRC regulations govern the granting of licenses for the construction and operation of 
nuclear power plants and subject those power plants to continuing review and regulation.  

The construction, planning, and siting of SCE's power plants within California are subject to the jurisdiction 
of the California Energy Commission and the CPUC. SCE is subject to the rules and regulations of the 
California Air Resources Board and local air pollution control districts with respect to the emission of 
pollutants into the atmosphere; the regulatory requirements of the California State Water Resources 
Control Board and regional boards with respect to the discharge of pollutants into waters of the state; and 
the requirements of the California Department of Toxic Substances Control with respect to handling and 
disposal of hazardous materials and wastes. SCE is also subject to regulation by the EPA, which 
administers certain federal statutes relating to environmental matters. Other federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations relating to environmental protection, land use, and water rights also affect SCE.  

The California Coastal Commission has continuing jurisdiction over the coastal permit for San Onofre 
Nuclear Generating Station Units 2 and 3. Although the units are operating, the permit's mitigation 
requirements have not yet been completed. California Coastal Commission jurisdiction may continue for 
several years due to implementation and oversight of permit mitigation conditions, including restoration of 
wetlands and construction of an artificial reef for kelp.  

The Department of Energy has regulatory authority over certain aspects of SCE's operations and business 
relating to energy conservation, power plant fuel use and disposal, electric sales for export, public utility 
regulatory policy, and natural gas pricing.  

On December 16, 1997, the CPUC adopted a decision which established new rules governing the 
relationship between California's natural gas local distribution companies, electric utilities, and certain of 
their affiliates. While SCE and its affiliates have been subject to affiliate transaction rules since the 
establishment of its holding company structure in 1988, these new rules are more detailed and restrictive.  
On December 31, 1997, SCE filed a preliminary compliance plan which set forth SCE's implementation of 
the new affiliate transaction rules. This preliminary compliance plan was supplemented by an additional 
filing made on January 30, 1998. In September 1998, the CPUC issued a resolution accepting certain 
portions of SCE's compliance plan and rejecting others. SCE filed a revised compliance plan in 
October 1998 as ordered. No party protested that revised plan.  

The new affiliate transaction rules apply to all utility transactions, including electric utilities, with affiliates 
engaging in the production of products that use electricity or the providing of services that relate to the use 
of electricity. Edison International is not subject to these new affiliate transaction rules and continues to be 
subject to the prior rules. The new affiliate transaction rules are structured to address CPUC concerns 
regarding market power and cross-subsidization arising out of the new competitive electricity market in 
California. The new rules are categorized into nondiscrimination standards, disclosure and information 
standards, and separation standards. The new rules also set forth requirements and restrictions on the 
utility's offering of certain products and services.  

The CPUC has modified certain of the rules in response to petitions from various parties. SCE is still 
awaiting CPUC decisions on its compliance plan (which includes SCE's interpretation of the rule governing 
affiliate use of the utility's name and logo). The CPUC decision concerning the name and logo rule may 
affect the disposition of a pending complaint against SCE filed by the ORA and TURN with the CPUC, 
which alleges a violation of that rule by Edison Source in a bulk mailing in 1998.  

SCE has not yet been materially affected by the new affiliate transaction rules, and it expects that the 
rules will not materially affect its results of operation or its financial position in the future.
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Changing Regulatory Environment

SCE's regulatory environment is changing as a result of a 1995 CPUC decision on restructuring and state 
legislation enacted in 1996. The state legislation, California Assembly Bill 1890 as amended by California 
Senate Bill 477 (restructuring legislation) substantially adopted the CPUC's restructuring decision by 
addressing stranded-cost recovery for utilities and providing a certain cost-recovery time period for the 
transition costs associated with generation-related assets. The restructuring legislation also included 
provisions to finance a portion of the stranded costs that residential and small commercial customers 
would have paid between 1998 and 2001, which allowed SCE to reduce rates by at least 10% to these 
customers, effective January 1, 1998. The restructuring legislation mandated other rates to remain frozen 
at June 1996 levels (system average of 10.1 ¢ per kilowatt-hour), including those for large commercial and 
industrial customers, and included provisions for continued funding for energy conservation, low-income 
programs and renewable resources. Despite the rate freeze, SCE expects to be able to recover its 
revenue requirement during the 1998-2001 transition period. In addition, the restructuring legislation 
mandated the implementation of the competition transition charge (CTC) (see the detailed discussion in 
"Revenue and Cost-Recovery Mechanisms" below) that provides utilities the opportunity to recover costs 
made uneconomic by electric utility restructuring.  

Rate Reduction Notes 

In December 1997, after receiving approval from the CPUC and the California Infrastructure and 
Economic Development Bank, a limited liability company created by SCE issued approximately $2.5 billion 
of rate reduction notes. Residential and small commercial customers, whose 10% rate reduction began 
January 1, 1998, are repaying the notes over the expected ten-year term through non-bypassable charges 
based on electricity consumption. There were originally seven classes of notes. The first class, in the 
amount of $246.3 million, matured in December 1998. The remaining notes consist of six classes with 
scheduled maturities ranging from less than one year to eight years, with interest rates ranging from 
6.14% to 6.42%.  

Revenue and Cost-Recovery Mechanisms 

Revenue is determined by various mechanisms depending on the utility operation. Revenue related to 
distribution operations is being determined through a performance-based rate-making mechanism (PBR) 
and the distribution assets have the opportunity to earn a CPUC-authorized 9.49% return. The distribution 
PBR will extend through December 2001. Key elements of the distribution PBR include: distribution rates 
indexed for inflation based on the Consumer Price Index less a productivity factor; adjustments for cost 
changes that are not within SCE's control; a cost-of-capital trigger mechanism based on changes in a 
bond index; standards for customer satisfaction; service reliability and safety; and a net revenue-sharing 
mechanism that determines how customers and shareholders will share gains and losses from distribution 
operations. Transmission revenue is being determined through FERC-authorized rates that are subject to 
refund.  

SCE's transition costs are being recovered through a non-bypassable CTC. This charge applies to all 
customers who were using or began using utility services on or after the CPUC's December 1995 
restructuring decision date. At the beginning of the transition period, SCE estimated its transition costs to 
be approximately $10.6 billion (1998 net present value) from 1998 through 2030. This estimate was 
based on incurred costs, forecasts of future costs and assumed market prices. However, changes in the 
assumed market prices could materially affect these estimates. Transition costs related to power
purchase contracts are being recovered through the terms of their contracts while most of the remaining 
transition costs will be recovered through 2001. The potential transition costs are comprised of $6.4 billion 
from SCE's Qualifying Facilities (QF) contracts, which are the direct result of prior legislative and 
regulatory mandates, and $4.2 billion from costs pertaining to certain generating assets (including the 
1998 sale of SCE's generating plants) and regulatory commitments consisting of costs incurred (whose 
recovery has been deferred by the CPUC) to provide service to customers. Such commitments include 
the recovery of income tax benefits previously flowed through to customers, post-retirement benefit
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transition costs, accelerated recovery of San Onofre Units 2 and 3 and the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating 
Station units, and certain other costs. During 1998, SCE sold all of its gas- and oil-fueled generation 
plants (except the Pebbly Beach Generation Station) for $1.2 billion, over $500 million more than the 
combined book value. Net proceeds of the sales were used to reduce stranded costs, which otherwise 
were expected to be collected through the CTC mechanism. If events occur during the restructuring 
process that result in all or a portion of the transition costs being improbable of recovery, SCE could have 
write-offs associated with these costs if they are not recovered through another regulatory mechanism.  

Effective with the commencement of the ISO and PX operations on March 31, 1998, generation costs are 
subject to recovery through the competitive market and the CTC mechanism, which now includes the 
nuclear rate-making agreements. Transition cost recovery for most utility generation assets will terminate 
on the earlier of December 31, 2001, or when these costs are fully collected. The portion of revenue 
related to fossil and hydroelectric generation operations that are economic is recovered through the 
market. SCE's operational costs associated with its fossil and hydroelectric plants are being recovered 
through market revenue. The power sales revenue from fossil and hydroelectric facilities in excess of 
fossil operational costs and the hydroelectric revenue requirement are credited against transition costs. In 
1999, fossil and hydroelectric generation assets had the opportunity to earn a 7.22% return. SCE has filed 
an application with the CPUC regarding the market valuation of its hydroelectric facilities. (See further 
discussion below).  

The portion of revenue related to fossil and hydroelectric generation operations that are made uneconomic 
by electric industry restructuring is recovered through the CTC mechanism. The revenue available to 
recover such uneconomic generation costs will be determined residually by subtracting the other rate 
components from the total rates. This residual revenue will first be allocated to recovery of FERC
authorized ISO charges for transmission support and for purchases from the PX, and then to recovery of 
transition costs. Transition costs associated with Qualifying Facilities (QF) and interutility contracts and 
the acceleration of sunk cost recovery will be subject to annual reasonableness review by the CPUC.  

SCE is recovering its investment in its nuclear facilities on an accelerated basis in exchange for a lower 
authorized rate of return. SCE's nuclear assets are earning an annual rate of return of 7.35%. In addition, 
the San Onofre's plant's operating costs, including operations and maintenance costs, administrative and 
general costs, nuclear fuel and nuclear fuel financing costs, and incremental capital costs, are recovered 
through an incremental cost incentive pricing plan which allows SCE to receive about 40 per kilowatt hour 
through 2003. The San Onofre plan commenced in April 1996, and ends in December 2001 for the 
accelerated recovery portion, and in December 2003 for the incentive-pricing portion. The Palo Verde 
plant's operating costs, including incremental capital costs, and nuclear fuel and nuclear fuel financing 
costs, are subject to balancing account treatment. The Palo Verde plan for accelerated plant recovery, as 
well as operating cost recovery through balancing account treatment, commenced in January 1997 and 
ends in December 2001. Beginning January 1, 1998, both the San Onofre and Palo Verde rate-making 
plans became part of the CTC mechanism.  

In March 1997, SCE filed a transmission owners tariff with the FERC, in conjunction with tariffs filed by the 
ISO and PX with the FERC in March 1997. Together, these tariffs set forth the rate design and terms and 
conditions for transmission service provided over SCE's facilities over which the ISO will have operational 
control. The transmission owners tariff also sets forth SCE's proposed transmission access charge.  
Additionally, in March 1997, SCE filed a wholesale distribution access tariff. The FERC accepted the 
tariffs for filing, subject to refund, effective April 1, 1998.  

With the commencement of the ISO and PX, transmission cost recovery is now under FERC authority.  
An Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) decision was issued in March 1999 recommending a 9.68% return on 
equity (ROE) for transmission assets, compared to the current CPUC return on equity for distribution 
facilities of 11.6%. In addition, the AU proposed a $23 million reduction in the proposed transmission 
revenue requirement relating to overhead costs, despite the fact that before implementation of the ISO, 
SCE had been authorized full recovery of these overhead costs in rates at the CPUC. In total, the ALJ 
decision would result in about a $50 million reduction annually in transmission revenue from the level 
proposed by SCE of $211 million. Transmission rates have reflected SCE's proposed $211 million
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transmission revenue requirement since they were implemented in April 1998. As a result of the retail rate 
freeze contained in the restructuring legislation, instead of being ordered to refund excess payments back 
to retail customers, SCE expects to be able to credit the amount of these payments against remaining 
transition costs.  

SCE has opposed the AU decision and expects that the final FERC decision, expected in early to mid
2000, will be more favorable. In the event that SCE does not prevail on the overhead cost issue at the 
FERC, SCE does have the opportunity to seek recovery in distribution rates at the CPUC of any overhead 
costs not allowed in rates by the FERC.  

As a part of compliance with the restructuring legislation, in October 1999, SCE filed an application with 
the CPUC to approve an auction process for its 56% interest in the Mohave Station. A CPUC decision on 
the auction process is expected in early to mid-2000.  

In order to comply with the restructuring legislation, on December 15, 1999, SCE filed an application with 
the CPUC establishing a market value for its hydroelectric generation-related assets at approximately 
$1.0 billion (almost twice the assets' book value) and proposing to retain and operate the hydroelectric 
assets under a performance-based and revenue-sharing mechanism. The application had broad-based 
support from labor, ratepayer and environmental groups. If approved by the CPUC, SCE would be 
allowed to recover an authorized, inflation-index operations and maintenance allowance, as well as a 
reasonable return on capital investment. A revenue-sharing arrangement would be activated if revenue 
from the sale of hydroelectricity exceeds or falls short of the authorized revenue requirement. SCE would 
then refund 90% of the excess revenue to ratepayers or recover 90% of any shortfalls from ratepayers. A 
final CPUC decision is expected by the end of 2000.  

On January 7, 2000, SCE filed an application with the CPUC proposing rates that would go into effect 
when the current rate freeze ends on March 31, 2002, or earlier, depending on the pace of CTC recovery.  
The proposal seeks CPUC approval of a rate redesign that will result in reduced rates for most customers 
when SCE completes the first phase of recovery of its transition costs. The proposed new rates are 
expected to reduce SCE's system average rates by about 17% from current frozen rate levels, based on 
certain assumptions about competitive energy prices. In addition, SCE's filing proposes to redesign and 
establish separate transmission and distribution rates to better reflect the actual costs to deliver electricity 
and serve customers. This pricing approach is consistent with CPUC policies requiring California's major 
utilities to move toward cost-based transmission and distribution rates.  

Restructuring Implementation Costs 

In May 1998, SCE filed an application with the CPUC to identify the categories of restructuring 
implementation costs (including costs related to the start-up and development of both the PX and ISO, 
and related to the implementation of direct access) and to establish the reasonableness of those costs 
incurred in 1997. In September 1999, the CPUC approved a settlement agreement between SCE, the 
ORA and several other parties allowing SCE to recover substantially all (approximately $300 million) of its 
restructuring implementation costs (incurred and estimated) for the period 1997-2001. In addition, the 
settlement provides that up to $210 million of generation-related costs (transition costs) that are displaced 
by recovery of the restructuring implementation costs during the rate freeze may be recovered after 
December 31, 2001, the date SCE would cease to recover these transition costs under restructuring 
legislation.  

Market Risk Exposures 

In July 1999, the PX introduced a block forward energy product. Participants can purchase power up to 
12 months in advance in monthly blocks for six days a week and 16 hours a day. Purchasing these 
blocks hedges against the risk of price spikes in the spot energy markets. SCE has been using the PX's 
block forward market since it received approval from the CPUC to do so in July 1999. The CPUC set 
purchasing limits on utility purchases of approximately 2,000 MW. In March 2000, the PX introduced
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additional forward block products covering different hours. The CPUC granted SCE authority to purchase 
these new products on March 16, 2000. Furthermore, the CPUC allowed SCE to purchase up to 
significantly increased limits, reaching 5,200 MW during summer when SCE's demand is at its peak. SCE 
thus has an increased ability to hedge against high price spikes in the energy markets. Purchases within 
these authorized limits will be deemed reasonable by the CPUC. The CPUC granted this authority for the 
duration of the rate freeze.  

The PX recently requested authority from the FERC to offer additional products including block forward 
ancillary services. SCE has filed an Advice Letter to the CPUC requesting authority to participate in these 
new markets to hedge against price spikes in the ISO's ancillary service spot market. SCE expects a 
CPUC Decision in the first or second quarter of 2000.  

Accounting for Generation-Related Assets 

If the CPUC's electric industry restructuring plan continues as described above, SCE will be allowed to 
recover its transition costs through non-bypassable charges to its distribution customers (although its 
investment in certain generation assets is subject to a lower authorized rate of return). In 1997, SCE 
discontinued application of accounting principles for rate-regulated enterprises for its generation assets 
based on new accounting guidance. The new guidance did not require SCE to write off any of its 
generation-related assets, including related regulatory assets. SCE has retained these assets on its 
balance sheet because the restructuring legislation and restructuring plan referred to above make 
probable their recovery through a non-bypassable charge to distribution customers. The regulatory assets 
relate primarily to the recovery of accelerated income tax benefits previously flowed through to customers, 
purchased power contract termination payments and unamortized losses on reacquired debt. The new 
accounting guidance also permits the recording of new generation-related regulatory assets during the 
transition period that are probable of recovery through the CTC mechanism.  

During the second quarter of 1998, additional guidance was developed related to the application of asset 
impairment standards to these assets. Using this guidance, SCE reduced its remaining nuclear plant 
investment by $2.6 billion (as of June 30, 1998) and recorded a regulatory asset on its balance sheet for 
the same amount. For this impairment assessment, the fair value of the investment was calculated by 
discounting future net cash flows. This reclassification had no effect on SCE's results of operations.  

If during the transition period events were to occur that made the recovery of these generation-related 
regulatory assets no longer probable, SCE would be required to write off the remaining balance of such 
assets (approximately $2.6 billion, after tax, at December 31, 1999) as a one-time, non-cash charge 
against earnings. At this time, SCE cannot predict what other revisions will ultimately be made during the 
restructuring process in subsequent proceedings or the effect, after the transition period, that competition 
will have on its results of operations or financial position.  

Other Rate Matters 

CPUC Retail Ratemaking 

The CPUC regulates the charges for services provided by SCE to its retail customers. As discussed 
above in the section on "Changing Regulatory Environment," the nature in which the CPUC regulates SCE 
is changing. The CPUC has issued final decisions regarding direct access, transition cost recovery, and 
rate unbundling in the restructuring of the electric industry. These decisions affected cost recovery and 
rate regulation, and authorized new ratemaking mechanisms which were implemented, replacing the 
Electric Revenue Adjustment Mechanism, Energy Cost Adjustment Clause (ECAC) and base rates 
mechanism (pre-restructuring ratemaking mechanisms).  

Total rates for all customers are frozen at June 10, 1996, levels, although residential and small 
commercial customers have received a 10% reduction from the June 10, 1996, rate levels beginning on 
January 1, 1998. These rate levels will remain in effect for the remainder of the transition period. Under
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these frozen rates, individual rate components (distribution, transmission, nuclear decommissioning, and 
public purpose programs) are determined according to CPUC- or FERC- authorized mechanisms, with the 
generation rate determined residually by subtracting these other components from the total rate.  
Beginning for rates effective in 1999, the consolidation of the individual rate component changes and the 
calculation of the residual generation rate are set forth for CPUC approval as part of the Revenue 
Adjustment Proceeding (RAP). On June 1, 1998, SCE filed its first annual RAP Report in compliance with 
CPUC directives to: (1) consolidate authorized rates and revenue requirements associated with various 
proceedings and mechanisms; (2) verify the residual CTC revenue calculation in the Transition Revenue 
Account (TRA); (3) verify the regulatory account balances which were transferred to the Transition Cost 
Balancing Account (TCBA) on January 1, 1998 (See "Annual Transition Cost Proceedings" below for 
further discussion of the TCBA); (4) streamline certain balancing and memorandum accounts; and 
(5) review the PX charge/credit calculation. On June 6, 1999, the CPUC issued its final 1998 RAP 
decision. In compliance with that decision, SCE updated its non-generation rate components in October 
1999. To maintain overall frozen rate levels, to the extent non-generation rate components are authorized 
to change, the generation rate component changes equal and opposite from the non-generation rate 
component changes. The decision also instructed SCE to include in the 1999 RAP Report a PX credit 
calculation that reflects the long run marginal costs of customer account managers, customer service 
representatives, self-provision of ancillary services, and financing costs for purchasing power from the PX.  

In June 1999, the CPUC issued a decision regarding unbundling SCE's cost of capital based on major 
utility functions. The decision was in response to SCE's May 1998 application on this issue. The CPUC 
found no unbundling adjustment was required in setting 1999 cost of capital for the California electric 
utilities. Furthermore, the CPUC ruled that SCE's rate of return should continue to be governed by the 
cost of capital trigger mechanism authorized as part of SCE's performance based ratemaking mechanism.  
(See discussion under "Revenue and Cost-Recovery Mechanisms.") As a result, SCE's return on equity 
for 1999 was unchanged at 11.6%.  

On August 9,1999, SCE filed its 1999 RAP Report requesting CPUC approval of the following: 
(1) consolidation of the 2000 non-generation revenue requirements; (2) rate levels for 2000, including the 
residually determined generation rates; (3) 2000 kWh sales forecast; (4) entries to the TRA for the period 
June 1, 1998, through May 31, 1999; (5) proposed retention, elimination, and modification of balancing 
and memorandum accounts; (6) implementation and costs of electric vehicle programs during the record 
period; (7) administration of SCE's self-generation deferral rate contracts during the record period; and 
(8) the proposed additional 2 cents/MWh credit to direct access customers associated with SCE's 
procurement of PX energy for bundled service customers. SCE anticipates a final 1999 RAP decision in 
the third quarter of 2000.  

Nuclear Decommissioning and Public Purpose Program Rates 

Recovery of SCE's nuclear decommissioning costs and legislatively mandated public purpose program 
funding is made through rates set to recover 100% of these costs. Public purpose programs include cost 
effective energy efficiency, research, renewable technology development, and low income programs.  

Annual Transition Cost Proceeding (ATCP) 

In 1997, the CPUC established the ATCP as the proceeding to determine whether SCE's TCBA entries 
are recorded pursuant to applicable CPUC decisions and the restructuring legislation, and that certain 
expenses are justified. The purpose of the TCBA is to provide and account for the recovery by SCE of 
certain costs associated with the transition to a restructured electric industry in California.  

1998 A TCP 

On September 1, 1998, SCE filed its first ATCP Report with the CPUC and requested, among other 
things, that entries made to the TCBA and applicable generation-related memorandum accounts during 
the record period of January 1, 1998, through June 30, 1998, be found to be justified and in compliance
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with applicable CPUC decisions and the restructuring legislation. On March 31, 1999, the ORA submitted 
its Report and made the following recommendations adverse to SCE: (1) $2.37 million in QF shareholder 
incentive amounts should be disallowed; (2) $3.2 million in employee-related transition costs should be 
disallowed; and (3) $9.67 million in post-retirement benefits other than pensions (PBOPs) and 
$5.76 million in long-term disability regulatory assets should be rejected. On June 14, 1999, the AL 
granted SCE's motion to strike the ORA's testimony and recommendations on the third item. Prior to 
hearings, the ORA and SCE recommended that the CPUC adopt a stipulation and joint recommendation 
whereby SCE would not recover $895,000 in retention bonuses, and $1.19 million of the total QF 
shareholder incentive amounts. On October 8, 1999, the matter was submitted to the CPUC.  

On January 6, 2000, an ALJ issued a proposed decision adopting the stipulation and joint 
recommendation as specified above. In addition, the proposed decision provided clarification on the 
following four accounting issues that impact the operation of the TCBA: (1) It directs SCE and the other 
utilities to review their estimates of market value for each divested generating plant and recalculate the 
interest accrued on undercollections of the TCBA during the record period. SCE believes it used the 
market value accounting directed by the proposed decision; (2) It clarifies the accounting methodology 
used to estimate the market value of retained generating assets. At this time, SCE believes there will be 
no materially negative impact on earnings associated with this issue. (3) It directs SCE to apply the TCBA 
overcollection of $350.7 million as of June 30, 1998, to further accelerate the depreciation of those 
transition cost assets with the highest rate of return, and in a manner which provides the greater tax 
benefits (i.e., to accelerate the recovery of nuclear sunk costs). It also directs SCE to net a $238 million 
undercollection in the ISO/PX implementation delay memorandum account against the TCBA 
overcollection in the calculation. SCE estimates a $10 million impact over the entire transition period 
ending December 31, 2001, if this accounting change is adopted by the CPUC. (4) It disallows the 
recovery through the TCBA for the Record Period, of certain telecommunications, training, mechanical 
service shop and warehouse equipment that related to SCE's divested generating plants but was not 
purchased by the new owners. The net book value of these retained assets is in the $8 million to 
$10 million range. Comments to the proposed decision were filed in January and a supplemental brief 
was filed on February 1, 2000.  

On February 17, 2000, the AU prepared a revised proposed decision that addressed these four matters 
and left intact other provisions of the proposed decision. The revised proposed decision was approved by 
the CPUC on the same day. The decision found that SCE's calculation of the TCBA for the Record Period 
was correct and that SCE appropriately applied the overcollection as of June 30, 1998, to the subsequent 
undercollection. Therefore, the decision does not require SCE to accelerate recovery of its nuclear 
assets. The decision changes the accounting methodology used to estimate the market value of retained 
generating assets and requires that SCE credit the TCBA for the aggregate net book value of SCE's non
nuclear assets, including the land surrounding such assets. SCE's share of the Mohave Station and Four 
Corners Generating Station (Four Corners) are excluded from this requirement. Ongoing depreciation, 
taxes, and return will be recovered through market revenue. The decision disallows the recovery through 
the TCBA for the record period of the retained assets but does not preclude SCE from seeking recovery in 
future record periods. The disallowance for the 1998 record period was $55,000.  

On February 29, 2000, SCE made a request to the CPUC's Executive Director for an extension of time to 
file the compliance advice letter so that the CPUC could review SCE's soon-to-be filed petition for a stay of 
the decision, application for rehearing and/or petition for modification of the decision. In a letter dated 
March 3, 2000, the Executive Director granted SCE an extension of time until May 31, 2000 to file its 
advice letter compliance filing. At this time, SCE believes there will be no materially negative impact on 
earnings.  

1999 A TCP 

On September 1, 1999, SCE filed its 1999 ATCP setting forth entries made to the TCBA and other 
generation-related accounts for the months of July 1998 through June 1999. The purpose of the ATCP is
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to ensure the recovery of generation-related transition costs through the TCBA that complies with the 
guidelines established by the CPUC. The TCBA tracks the recovery of transition costs, including the 
accelerated recovery of plant balances, QF and purchased power costs, and regulatory assets and 
obligations. On February 23, 2000, the ORA issued its report and made the following recommendations 
adverse to SCE: (1) approximately $5 million in post record period adjustments booked after the date of 
divestiture for capital additions made in 1996 to divested fossil generating plants; (2) $17.2 million related 
to the termination contract with the Sacramento Municipal Utility District; (3) $147,000 in employee-related 
transition costs; and (4) an $136,000 adjustment to the QF subaccount of the TCBA. SCE will serve 
rebuttal testimony on March 29, 2000, and supplemental testimony on April 3, 2000.  

Annual Energy Cost Adjustment Clause Proceedings 

Through 1998, SCE filed ECAC applications each year with the CPUC regarding its fuel and purchased 
power expenses, seeking the CPUC's determination that SCE's fuel and purchased power costs, including 
payments to QFs, were reasonable. These matters are respectively referred to herein as "non-QF 
matters" and "OF matters." 

QF MA TIERS 

The ORA issued its report on the 1998 ECAC period on February 19, 1999. The ORA did not identify any 
reasonableness issues associated with SCE's QF activities during the 1998 period. On November 4, 
1999, the CPUC issued its decision approving all of SCE's OF administrative matters in the 1998 ECAC.  
The 1998 ECAC is SCE's last ECAC application.  

NON-QF MATTERS 

1997 Annual ECAC Record Period 

On May 30, 1997, SCE filed its annual reasonableness report requesting that the CPUC find reasonable 
its fuel and purchased-power costs recorded during the period of April 1, 1996, through March 31, 1997.  

The ORA's review of the non-QF operations and costs was consolidated with its review of the non-OF 
operations and costs for the 1996 ECAC record period. The ORA filed its report on August 18, 1997. In 
its report, the ORA recommended, among other things: (1) a disallowance of $360,000 associated with an 
outage at the coal-fired Four Corners; (2) a $200,000 adjustment to the costs recorded in SCE's 
catastrophic events memorandum account, and (3) a determination that SCE's execution of its natural gas 
transportation contract with Southwest Gas Corporation be found unreasonable for purposes of CTC 
eligibility. The January 1998 hearings resulted in a CPUC decision issued on October 22, 1998, adopting 
the proposed disallowances. The decision found the execution of the Southwest Gas contract reasonable 
and therefore, any uneconomic costs associated with the contract are to be subject to CTC recovery. The 
remainder of SCE's non-QF costs and expenses were also found reasonable.  

On December 21, 1998, SCE filed a petition for modification of the above decision alleging that it 
erroneously stated that SCE may seek recovery of its Nuclear Unit Incentive Procedure (NUIP) rewards in 
the RAP. The CPUC found that SCE's calculation of the NUIP reward was reasonable and it was an error 
for the CPUC to order another reasonableness review of these rewards which totaled $15.2 million plus 
interest. The February 18, 1999, CPUC decision granted SCE's petition to modify the 1998 decision and 
authorized the booking of the NUIP rewards into the TCBA.  

1998 Annual ECAC Record Period 

On February 19, 1999, the ORA issued its Reasonableness Report on the 1998 ECAC period and made 
the following recommendations. The ORA found that SCE's costs ($239.1 million) recorded in the ISO/PX 
Implementation Delay Memorandum Account (IPDMA) properly reflected the ISO/PX expenses that
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accrued during the three month delay in the commencement of ISO/PX operations. The ORA also 
required SCE to include a showing that it undertook all practicable steps to minimize the delay with its 
request for the recovery of IPDMA costs. The ORA found no evidence to show that SCE caused a delay 
in the ISO/PX implementation. The ORA recommended two coal generation related disallowances 
seeking replacement fuel costs based on December 1997 outages of the Mohave Station Units 1 and 2 in 
the amount of $2.4 million, and a $15.7 million disallowance related to an outage at Four Corners Unit 5.  
The ORA also recommended disallowances totaling $5.6 million plus interest, to correct for audit errors.  
Hearings were held in June 1999 and on September 20,1999, a CPUC AL issued a proposed decision 
that rejected the ORA's recommended disallowances for the outages at Four Corners and the Mohave 
Station, but adopted the ORA's recommended balancing account adjustment. A CPUC decision issued on 
November 4, 1999, adopted the ALJ's proposed decision without change.  

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station 

In January 1997, the CPUC authorized a further acceleration of the recovery of SCE's remaining 
investment of $1.2 billion in Palo Verde Units 1, 2, and 3. The accelerated recovery will continue through 
December 2001, earning a 7.35% fixed rate of return. The future operating costs, including nuclear fuel 
and nuclear fuel financing costs, and incremental capital expenditures, are subject to balancing account 
treatment through 2001. Beginning January 1, 1998, the balancing account became part of the CTC 
mechanism. The existing NUIP will continue only for purposes of calculating a reward for performance of 
any unit above an 80% capacity factor for a fuel cycle. Beginning in 2002, SCE will be required to share 
the net benefits received from the operation of Palo Verde equally with ratepayers.  

San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station Units 2 and 3 

In April 1996, the CPUC authorized a further acceleration of the recovery of SCE's remaining investment 
of $2.6 billion in San Onofre Units 2 and 3. The accelerated recovery will continue through 
December 2001, earning a 7.35% fixed rate of return. San Onofre's operating costs, including nuclear 
fuel, nuclear fuel financing costs, and incremental capital expenditures, are recovered through an 
incentive pricing plan which allows SCE to receive about 40 per kWh through December 31, 2003.  
Beginning January 1, 1998, the accelerated plant recovery and incremental cost incentive pricing became 
part of the CTC mechanism. Beginning in 2004, SCE will be required to share the benefits received from 
operation of San Onofre Units 2 and 3 equally with ratepayers.  

New Accounting Rules 

An accounting rule which requires that costs related to start-up activities be expensed as incurred, 
became effective January 1, 1999. Although this new accounting rule did not materially affect Edison 
International's results of operations or its financial position, EME wrote off approximately $14 million in 
previously capitalized start-up costs in first quarter 1999.  

In June 1998, a new accounting standard for derivative instruments and hedging activities was issued.  
The new standard, which as amended will be effective for Edison International beginning January 1, 2001, 
requires all derivatives to be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Gains or losses from changes 
in fair value will be recognized in earnings in the period of change unless the derivative is designated as a 
hedging instrument. Gains or losses from hedges of a forecasted transaction or foreign currency 
exposure will be reflected in other comprehensive income. Gains or losses from hedges of a recognized 
asset or liability, or a firm commitment will be reflected in earnings for the ineffective portion of the hedge.  
SCE anticipates that most of its derivatives under the new standard will qualify for hedge accounting. SCE 
expects to recover in rates any market price changes from its derivatives that could potentially affect 
earnings. Edison International is studying the impact of the new standard on its nonutility subsidiaries, 
and is unable to predict at this time the impact on its financial statements.
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Fuel Supply and Purchased Power Costs

Since April 1, 1998, SCE has been required to purchase all power for distribution to retail customers from 
the PX. In 1999, fuel and purchased-power costs, including net PX purchases, were approximately 
$3.4 billion, which was a 5% decrease from the costs in 1998.  

SCE's sources of energy during 1999 were as follows: 58.9% purchased power; 22.0% nuclear; 13.5% 
coal; and 5.6% hydro.  

Average fuel costs, expressed in o per kWh, for the year ended December 31, 1999, were: oil, 7.510; 

nuclear, 0.410; and coal, 1.230.  

Natural Gas Supply 

As a result of the sale of all of its gas-fired generating stations, SCE has terminated four long-term natural 
gas supply and three long-term gas transportation contracts which had been used to import gas from 
Canada. In addition, SCE has exercised an option under its 15-year gas transportation commitment with 
El Paso Natural Gas Company to reduce its capacity obligation from 200 million to 130 million cubic feet 
per day.  

Nuclear Fuel Supply 

SCE has contractual arrangements covering 100% of the projected nuclear fuel requirements for San 
Onofre through the years indicated below: 

U ranium concentrates(*) ......................................................................................... 2003 
C onversion ....................................................................................................... 2003 
Enrichm ent ....................................................................................................... 2003 
Fabrication ....................................................................................................... 2005 

(*) Assumes the San Onofre participants meet their supply obligations in a timely manner.  

Assuming normal operation and full utilization of existing on-site storage capacity, San Onofre Units 2 and 
3 will maintain full-core offload reserve through 2005. The Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 requires that 
the United States Department of Energy provide for the disposal of utility spent nuclear fuel beginning 
January 31, 1998. The Department of Energy has defaulted on its obligation to begin acceptance of spent 
nuclear fuel from the commercial nuclear industry by that date. Additional spent fuel storage either on-site 
or at another location will be required to permit continued operations beyond 2005.  

Participants at Palo Verde have contractual agreements for uranium concentrates to meet projected 
requirements through 2000. Independent of arrangements made by other participants, SCE will furnish its 
share of uranium concentrates requirement through at least 2000 from existing contracts. Contracts 
covering 100% requirements are in place for conversion through 2000, enrichment through 2002, and 
fabrication through 2016.  

Assuming normal operation and regulatory approval for more condensed on-site spent fuel storage, Palo 
Verde will maintain full-core off load reserve until the fall of 2003 for Unit 2 and spring and fall of 2004 for 
Units 1 and 3, respectively. Arizona Public Service, operating agent for Palo Verde, has commenced 
construction of an interim fuel storage facility that it projects will be completed in 2002.
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Business of the Nonutility Companies

The activities of the Nonutility Companies are described below. For Edison International's business 
segment information for each of the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997, see Note 13 of 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Edison International's 1999 Annual Report to 
Shareholders incorporated by reference, in part, in this report.  

Edison Mission Energy. EME, primarily through its subsidiary corporations, is engaged in the business of 
developing, acquiring, owning, and operating electric power generation facilities worldwide. As of 
December 31, 1999, EME subsidiaries held interests in more than 75 projects worldwide, either operating 
or under construction with an aggregate power production capability of 28,446 MW, of which 22,770 MW 
are attributable to EME's interests. These facilities are located in California, Florida, Illinois, Nevada, New 
Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Puerto Rico, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia, Australia, Indonesia, 
Italy, Spain, Thailand, Turkey, United Kingdom, and New Zealand. EME owns interests in oil and gas 
producing operations and related facilities in various U.S. locations.  

EME's activity in the Asia Pacific region commenced in December 1992 with the acquisition of a 51% 
interest of the 1,000 MW Loy Yang B Power Station (Loy Yang B) from the State Government of Victoria 
(State), Australia's first electric privatization effort. In May 1997, a subsidiary of EME acquired the State's 
49% interest in Loy Yang B. The first of two 500 MW units at Loy Yang B began commercial operations in 
October 1993. Unit 2 commenced commercial operations in October 1996. An EME affiliate provides 
operations and maintenance services for both units.  

In April 1995, EME and its partners, Mitsui & Co. Ltd., General Electric Corporation and P.T. Batu Hitam 
Perkasa, an Indonesian limited liability company, commenced construction of the $2.5 billion Paiton 
project, a 1,230 MW coal-fired power plant in East Java, Indonesia. The project consists of two units, 
each of which has a capacity of 615 MW. In January 1996, EME purchased an additional 7.5% from 
General Electric Corporation, thereby increasing its ownership interest to 40% in P.T. Paiton Energy 
(Paiton Energy), the Indonesian limited liability company through which EME and its partners own the 
project.  

In May 1999 and July 1999, Units 7 and 8, respectively, achieved commercial operation under the terms 

of the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) between Paiton Energy and the state-owned electricity 
company, PT Perusahaan Listrik Negara (PLN). Under the PPA, the project's output is fully contracted 
with PLN. Payments are in Indonesian Rupiah, with the portion of such payments intended to cover non
Rupiah project costs (including returns to investors) indexed to the Indonesian Rupiah/U.S. dollar 
exchange rate established at the time the PPA was executed in February 1994. PLN's payment 
obligations are supported by the Government of Indonesia. The projected rate of growth of the Indonesian 
economy and the exchange rate of Indonesian Rupiah into U.S. dollars have deteriorated significantly 

since the Paiton project was contracted, approved and financed, thus significantly increasing the cost of 
power in Rupiah terms to PLN. The project received substantial finance and insurance support from the 
Export-Import Bank of the United States, the Export-Import Bank of Japan, the U.S. Overseas Private 
Investment Corporation and the Ministry of International Trade and Industry of Japan. The Paiton 
project's senior debt ratings have been reduced from investment grade to speculative grade based on the 
rating agencies' determination that there is increased risk that PLN might not be able to honor its PPA with 
Paiton Energy. On February 21, 2000, Paiton Energy and PLN executed an interim agreement pursuant 
to which the PPA will be administered pending a long-term restructure of the PPA. Among other things, 
the interim agreement provides for dispatch of the project, fixed monthly payments to Paiton Energy by 
PLN, the first of which was received on March 24, 2000, and the standstill of any further legal proceedings 
by either party during the term of the interim agreement which runs through December 31, 2000, and may 
be extended by mutual agreement. (See, "Edison Mission Energy - P.T. Perusahaan Listsrik Negara," 
under Item 3 below for additional discussion of the legal proceedings.) PLN has also asked that 
negotiations on a long-term restructuring of the tariff begin in April 2000. Any material modifications of the 
PPA could also require a renegotiation of the Paiton project's debt agreement. The impact of any such
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renegotiations with PLN, the Government of Indonesia or the project's creditors on EME's expected return 
on its investment in the Paiton project is uncertain at this time. However, management believes that EME 
will ultimately recover its investment in the project.  

Kwinana is a 116 MW gas-fired cogeneration project located at the British Petroleum Kwinana refinery 
near Perth, Australia. The project, which is 100% owned by EME, began commercial operations in 
December 1996. The project supplies electricity to Western Power (formerly the State Electricity 
Commission of Western Australia) and both electricity and steam to the British Petroleum Kwinana 
refinery.  

In July 1998, EME, through an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary, purchased a 25% interest in Tri-Energy, 
a 700 MW gas-fired power plant under construction in the Ratchaburi Province, Thailand. The project will 
sell its capacity and energy to the Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand under a 20-year power 
purchase agreement. Commercial operation is expected in mid 2000.  

In May 1999, EME, through its indirect, wholly owned affiliate, acquired 40% of Contact Energy from the 
government of New Zealand for $635 million. As of December 31, 1999, Contact Energy owns and 
operates hydroelectric, geothermal and natural gas-fired power generating plants in New Zealand, with a 
total aggregate capacity of 2,371 MW, of which EME's share is 948 MW. Contact Energy also supplies 
gas and electricity to customers in New Zealand and also has a minority interest in one power project in 
Australia.  

In the early 1990's, EME acquired the Iberian Hy-Power projects, which consist of 18 small hydroelectric 
facilities located in Spain (minority interests are owned in three of the projects by third parties), an 80% 
interest in the 220 MW Roosecote project located in northwest England, and a 33% interest in the 214 MW 
Derwent project located in Derby, England.  

In December 1995, EME purchased all of the outstanding shares of First Hydro Company (First Hydro) for 
approximately $1 billion (653 million pounds sterling). First Hydro's principal assets are two pumped
storage electric power stations located in North Wales at Dinorwig and Ffestiniog, which have a combined 
capacity of 2,088 MW. The Dinorwig station, which was commissioned in 1983, comprises six units 
totaling 1,728 MW. The Ffestiniog station was commissioned in 1963 and comprises four units totaling 
360 MW. First Hydro is an independent generating company with three main sources of revenue: (1) 
selling power into the electricity trading market in England and Wales; (2) providing system support 
services to The National Grid Company Plc; and (3) selling its installed capacity on a forward basis by 
entering into contracts for differences, which are electricity rate swap agreements, with large electricity 
suppliers.  

In June 1995, EME (49% ownership) and its partner, ISAB S.p.a. (51% ownership), signed a 20-year 
power purchase contract with ENEL S.p.a., Italy's state electricity corporation, pursuant to which ENEL 
S.p.a. will purchase 507 MW of output from the 512 MW ISAB power project, which is located near 
Siracusa in Sicily, Italy. The project will employ gasification technology to convert heavy oil residues from 
the ISAB refinery in Priolo Gargallo into clean-burning synthetic fuel gas that will be used to generate 
electricity in a combustion turbine. The approximately two trillion Italian lira (U.S. $1.3 billion) project 
financial closing was completed in April 1996, with construction commencing in July 1996. The project is 
near completion, with commercial operation expected to begin in the first quarter of 2000.  

In February 1995, EME (80% ownership) signed a shareholders agreement to develop the $180 million 
Doga Enerji A.S. project in Esenyurt, near Istanbul, Turkey. In April 1997, EME completed financing and 
commenced construction of the Doga project. The 180 MW combined cycle, gas-fired cogeneration 
facility commenced commercial operations in May 1999.  

In July 1999, EME acquired 100% of the Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry coal-fired power plants in the 
United Kingdom with a total generating capacity of 3,886 MW from PowerGen UK plc for approximately
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$2.0 billion. These plants, which are in the middle of the order in w.plants are called upon to dispatch 
electric power, complement the pumped-storage hydroelectri owe plants EME already owns in the 
United Kingdom and sell power into the electricity trading market there.  

During October 1999, EME acquired the remaining 20% of the 220 MW natural gas-fired Roosecote 
project located in England.  

In March 2000, EME entered into a purchase agreement with a third party to acquire a 50% interest in a 
series of power projects that are in operation or under development in Italy. All of the projects use wind to 
generate electricity from turbines which is sold under fixed-price long-term tariffs. The initial purchase 
price is $22 million with equity contribution obligations of up to $40 million, depending on the number of 
projects that are ultimately developed.  

In December 1998, EME del Caribe, an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of EME, acquired 50% of the 
540 MW EcoEl6ctrica liquefied natural gas (LNG) cogeneration facility under construction in Pehuelas, 
Puerto Rico for approximately $243 million. The project also includes a desalination plant and LNG 
storage and vaporization facilities and is expected to commence commercial operation by the first quarter 
of 2000.  

In March 1999, EME, through an indirect, wholly owned affiliate, acquired 100% of the 1,884 MW Homer 
City Generating Station for approximately $1.8 billion. This facility is a coal-fired plant in the mid-Atlantic 
region of the United States and has direct, high voltage interconnections to both the New York 
Independent System Operator, which controls the transmission grid and energy and capacity markets for 
the State of New York and is commonly known as the NYISO and the Pennsylvania-New Jersey-Maryland 
Power Pool, which is commonly known as the PJM. EME operates the plant, which it believes is one of 
the lowest-cost generation facilities in the region.  

In December 1999, EME, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Midwest Generation LLC, acquired the 
fossil-fuel generating assets of Commonwealth Edison, which are commonly referred to as the Illinois 
plants, totaling 6,812 MW of generating capacity. EME operates these plants, which provide access to the 
Mid-America Interconnected Network and the East Central Area Reliability Council. In connection with this 
transaction, EME entered into power purchase agreements with Commonwealth Edison with a term of up 
to five years. Concurrently with this acquisition, EME assigned its right to purchase the Collins Station, a 
2,698 MW gas and oil-fired generating station located in Illinois, to a third party. After this assignment, 
EME entered into a lease of the Collins Station with a term of 33.75 years. The aggregate MW purchased 
or leased as a result of these transactions is 9,510 MW. The $4.9 billion transaction included amounts 
paid by a third party lessor in connection with the lease transaction.  

On December 31, 1999, EME had total consolidated assets of over $15 billion, consolidated operating 
revenue of $1.64 billion, and consolidated net income of $130 million.  

Currently, a number of EME's domestic operating power production facilities have OF status under the 
Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder. OF status exempts the 
projects from the application of the Holding Company Act, many provisions of the Federal Power Act, and 
state laws and regulations respecting rates, and financial or organizational regulation of electric utilities.  
EME, through wholly owned subsidiaries, also has ownership interests in operating power projects that 
have received exempt wholesale generator status or foreign utility company status as defined in the 
Holding Company Act and are therefore exempt from regulation under the Holding Company Act. Despite 
these exemptions, each EME project must still comply with other applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
including those regarding siting, construction, operation, licensing, and pollution abatement. Some EME 
subsidiaries have made fuel-related investments and a limited number of non-energy related investments.  

EME competes with many other companies, including multinational development groups, equipment 
suppliers, and other independent power producers (including affiliates of utilities), in selling electric power
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and steam. EME also competes with electric utilities in obtaining the right to install new generating 
capacity. Over the past decade, obtaining a power sales contract with a utility has generally become a 
progressively more difficult, expensive, and competitive process. Many power sales contracts are now 
awarded by competitive bidding, which both increases the costs of obtaining such contracts and 
decreases the chances of obtaining such contracts. EME evaluates each potential project in an effort to 
determine when the probability of success is high enough to justify expenditures in developing a proposal 
or bid for the project.  

Amendments to the Holding Company Act made by the Energy Policy Act have increased the number of 
competitors in the domestic independent power industry by reducing restrictions applicable to projects that 
are not QFs under the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act. Retail wheeling of power, which is the 
offering by utilities of unbundled retail distribution service, could also lead to increased competition in the 
independent power market.  

Recent developments in foreign regulatory matters affect EME's competitive environment in certain 
countries.  

In July 1998, the United Kingdom (UK) Director General of Electricity Supply proposed to the Minister for 
Science, Energy and Industry that the current structure of contracts for differences and compulsory trading 
via the pool at half-hourly clearing prices bid a day ahead be abolished. The UK Government accepted 
the proposals in October 1998 subject to certain reservations. Following this, further proposals were 
published by the Regulator in July and October 1999. The proposals include, among other things, the 
establishment of voluntary long-term forwards and futures markets, organized by independent market 
operators and evolving in response to demand; voluntary short-term power exchanges operating from 24 
to 4-hours before a trading period; a balancing mechanism to enable the system operator to balance 
generation and demand and resolve any transmission constraints; a mandatory settlement process for 
recovering imbalances between contracted and metered volumes with stronger incentives for being in 
balance; and a Balancing and Settlement Code Panel to oversee governance of the balancing 
mechanism. The Minister for Science, Energy and Industry has recommended that the proposal be 
implemented by the end of October 2000. It is difficult at this stage to evaluate the future impact of the 
proposals. However, a key feature of the new trading arrangements is to move to firm physical delivery 
which means that a generator must deliver, and a consumer take delivery, against their contracted 
positions or face the uncertain consequences of the system operator buying or selling in the balancing 
market, on their behalf, and passing the costs back to them. A consequence of this will be to increase 
greatly the motivation of parties to contract in advance. Recent experience has been that this has placed 
a significant downward pressure on forward contract prices. Legislation in the form of a Utilities Bill, 
published on January 20, 2000, is being introduced to allow for the implementation of new trading 
arrangements and the necessary amendments to generators' licenses. The introduction of the new 
electricity trading arrangements coupled with uncertainties surrounding the new Utilities Bill and a 
proposed 'good behavior' clause, discussed below, and an unseasonably warm winter have contributed to 
a drop in electricity market prices in the first quarter of 2000 and a drop of approximately 20% in the 
forward electricity price curve for the remainder of the year. As a result of these events, EME expects 
lower than anticipated revenue from its Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry plants.  

The Utilities Bill is scheduled to become law by July 2000. The core of the proposals is a fair deal for 
consumers through the provision of proper incentives to innovate and improve efficiency, growth of 
competition, protection for consumers and contribution of the utilities to a better environment. While the 
UK Government recognizes the need to strike a balance between consumer and shareholder interest, the 
proposals have far reaching implications for the utilities sector. In December 1999, the UK Director 
General of Electricity Supply gave notice of an intention to introduce a new condition into the licenses of a 
number of generators to curb the perceived exercise of market power in the determination of wholesale 
electricity prices. The majority of the major generators have accepted the new clauses, including Edison
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Mission Energy, which has sought and received specific assurances from the Regulator on the definition 
of market abuse and the way the clauses will be interpreted in the future.  

The New Zealand Government has been undergoing a steady process of electric industry deregulation 
since 1987. Reform in the distribution and retail supply sector began in 1992 with legislation that 
deregulated electricity distribution and provided for competition in the retail electric supply function. The 
New Zealand Energy Market, established in 1996, is a voluntary competitive wholesale market which 
allows for the trading of physical electricity on a half-hourly basis. The Electricity Industry Reform Act, 
which was passed in July 1998, was designed to increase competition at the wholesale generation level 
by splitting up Electricity Company of New Zealand Limited, the large state-owned generator, into three 
separate generation companies. The Electricity Industry Reform Act also prohibits the ownership of both 
generation and distribution assets by the same entity.  

The New Zealand Government announced in February 2000, an Inquiry into the electricity industry. This 
Inquiry is aimed at assessing present regulatory policy of the government to ensure price competition to 
the retail customers. The Inquiry panel is expected to report its findings in mid-June 2000, and the 
Government will then determine whether new legislation is required. The main focus of the Inquiry has 
been on the monopoly segments of the industry --transmission and distribution.  

Over the past two years, EME has shifted its primary focus to the acquisition and operation of competitive 
generation, both domestically and internationally. It has recently acquired a number of merchant plants, 
which sell capacity, energy and, in some cases, other services on a competitive basis under bilateral 
arrangements or through centralized power pools that provide an institutional framework for price setting, 
dispatch and settlement procedures.  

Electric power generated at the Homer City plant is sold under bilateral arrangements with domestic 
utilities and power marketers under short-term contracts with terms of two years or less, or to the PJM or 
the NYISO. These pools have short-term markets, which establish an hourly clearing price. The Homer 
City plant is situated in the PJM control area and is physically connected to high-voltage transmission lines 
serving both the PJM and NYISO markets. The Homer City plant can also transmit power to the 
midwestern United States.  

Electric power generated at the Illinois plants is sold under a power purchase agreement with Commonwealth 
Edison, in which Commonwealth Edison will purchase capacity and have the right to purchase energy 
generated by the Illinois plants. The agreements, which began on December 15, 1999, and have a term of 
up to five years, provide for capacity and energy payments. Commonwealth Edison will be obligated to make 
a capacity payment for the plants under contract and an energy payment for the electricity produced by these 
plants. The capacity payment will provide the Illinois plants revenue for fixed charges, and the energy 
payment will compensate the Illinois plants for variable costs of production. If Commonwealth Edison does 
not fully dispatch the plants under contract, the Illinois plants may sell, subject to specified conditions, the 
excess energy at market prices to neighboring utilities, municipalities, third party electric retailers, large 
consumers and power marketers on a spot basis. A bilateral trading infrastructure already exists with access 
to the Mid-America Interconnected Network and the East Central Area Reliability Council.  

EME's projects in the United Kingdom sell their electrical energy and capacity through a centralized 
electricity pool, which establishes a half-hourly clearing price, also referred to as the pool price, for 
electrical energy. The pool price is extremely volatile and can vary by as much as a factor of ten or more 
over the course of a few hours, due to the large differentials in demand according to the time of day. First 
Hydro and Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry mitigate a portion of the market risk of the pool by entering into 
contracts for differences, which are electricity rate swap agreements related to either the selling or 
purchasing price of power. These contracts specify a price at which the electricity will be traded, and the 
parties to the agreement make payments calculated based on the difference between the price in the 
contract and the pool price for the element of power under contract. These contracts are sold in various
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structures and act to stabilize revenues or purchasing costs by removing an element of their net exposure 
to pool price volatility.  

The Loy Yang B plant sells its electrical energy through a centralized electricity pool, which provides for a 

system of generator bidding, central dispatch and a settlements system based on a clearing market for 

each half-hour of every day. The National Electricity Market Management Company, operator and 

administrator of the pool, determines a system marginal price each half-hour. To mitigate exposure to 

price volatility of the electricity traded into the pool, the Loy Yang B plant has entered into a number of 

financial hedges. From May 8, 1997, to December 31, 2000, approximately 53% to 64% of the plant 
output sold is hedged under vesting contracts with the remainder of the plant capacity hedged under the 

State Hedge described below. Vesting contracts were put into place by the State Government of Victoria, 

Australia, between each generator and each distributor, prior to the privatization of electric power 

distributors in order to provide more predictable pricing for those electricity customers that were unable to 

choose their electricity retailer. Vesting contracts set base strike prices at which the electricity will be 

traded. The parties to the vesting contracts make payments, which are calculated based on the difference 

between the price in the contract and the half-hourly pool clearing price for the element of power under 

contract. Vesting contracts are sold in various structures and are accounted for as electricity rate swap 

agreements. In addition, the Loy Yang B plant has entered into a State Hedge agreement with the State 

Electricity Commission of Victoria. The State Hedge is a long-term contractual arrangement based upon a 
fixed price commencing May 8,1997, and terminating October 31, 2016. The State Government of 
Victoria, Australia guarantees the State Electricity Commission of Victoria's obligations under the State 
Hedge.  

Edison CapitaP. Edison Capital is a provider of capital and financial services in energy and infrastructure 
projects, including power generation, electric transmission and distribution, transportation, 
telecommunications, and affordable housing. Since its formation in 1987, Edison Capital has participated 
in approximately $20 billion in transactions. On December 31, 1999, Edison Capital had total consolidated 

assets of $2.7 billion and, for the year then ended, consolidated revenue of $282 million and net income of 
$129.4 million. Edison Capital invested $270 million in energy and infrastructure projects and $132 million 
in affordable housing in 1999, and started 2000 with a number of projects in development.  

Europe - Continuing its participation in the infrastructure leasing market, Edison Capital invested 
$116 million in a telecommunications duct network with Swisscom, Switzerland's partially privatized, 

government majority-owned national telecommunications company. Located in northeast Switzerland, the 

duct network carries all voice and data traffic. In its first participation in an EME project, Edison Capital 
provided $243 million of mezzanine financing for the acquisition of the Ferrybridge and Fiddler's Ferry 
generating stations in northern England. This financing was committed in 1999 and closed in January 
2000. Edison Capital has committed $125 million to co-sponsor a new $525 million Emerging Europe 
Infrastructure Fund L.P., which will invest in electricity and infrastructure projects in Central and Eastern 

Europe. American International Group Inc. (AIG) and ABN-AMRO are the other co-sponsors of the fund.  

During 1999, Edison Capital closed its second United Kingdom Private Finance Initiative transaction with 
an $8 million mezzanine investment in King's Hospital.  

United States - Four wind-energy projects were placed into service in which Edison Capital has an 
aggregate investment of $108 million. All of the projects are located in the Midwest, including Edison 
Capital's most recent investment in Enron Wind Corp.'s Storm Lake I. The newly constructed 112.5-MW 

project, located along the Buffalo Ridge in Iowa, ranks as the largest wind project in the country.  

Latin America - Edison Capital continued to develop its Latin American presence through its active 
participation in the $1 billion AIG-GE Latin American Infrastructure Fund (LAIF). This fund is in the latter 
stages of its investment cycle, with approved investments totaling 60 percent of Edison Capital's original 

$80 million commitment. Through the fund in 1999, Edison Capital invested $13.6 million in seven 
projects. Together with LAIF and AIG, Edison Capital committed $20 million to Mandeville, a $100 million 

cable television joint venture in Mexico. Mandeville was formed to acquire existing cable television
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systems and fund the expansion of Mexico's communications infrastructure. During the year, Mandeville 
closed the acquisition of two existing cable television systems in Cancun and Merida.  

Asia - Edison Capital entered the Asian market in 1998 through its $100 million commitment and active 
participation in the $1.7 billion AIG Asian Infrastructure Fund I1. Through its participation in the fund in 
1999, Edison Capital closed investments of $25 million in five projects.  

Affordable Housing - Over the past 12 years, Edison Capital has invested more than $1 billion in more 
than 330 affordable housing projects representing 26,000 housing units in 35 states. During 1999, the 
company closed $132 million in investments, and committed $161 million. Edison Capital completed five 
syndications of affordable housing properties during the year. The John Stewart Company, the housing 
management subsidiary of Edison Capital, increased its units under management by 61 percent. The 
company also signed a lease with the Treasure Island Development Authority (City of San Francisco) for 
the rehabilitation, marketing and management of 766 housing units in conjunction with the closure of the 
Treasure Island Naval Station and conversion to public use.  

Edison Capital has entered into investments that rely in part on specific federal and state tax benefits and 
incentives available under existing laws and regulations. There is no assurance against changes in those 
laws, or unfavorable interpretation and application of the laws by tax authorities, which could adversely 
affect Edison Capital's business prospects or, if applied retrospectively, its return on existing investments.  

Edison Capital competes with other equity investors in the energy/infrastructure finance market. These 
firms include money center banks, major finance and lease companies, affiliates of various public utilities, 
and other Fortune 500 firms. In addition, competition exists for long-term equity and convertible debt 
investments in global energy/infrastructure projects. This competition comes from multinational investors 
in addition to those firms mentioned above.  

Since low-income housing tax credits were permanently extended by Congress in 1993, competition for 
affordable housing projects with tax credits has increased significantly. Edison Capital maintains market 
share in the affordable housing market by providing property management and other value added services 
to sponsors, working closely with sponsors and lenders to facilitate the financing of projects providing 
development loans to sponsors, and developing projects on a limited basis.  

Mission Land Company - Mission Land was formed to develop, own and manage industrial parks and 
other real property investments. Mission Land plans to exit the real estate business in an orderly manner 
and to recover a substantial amount of the outstanding investment. Real estate assets have been 
reduced substantially from peak levels in 1992. At December 31, 1999, Mission Land had total 
consolidated assets of $112 million and, for the year then ended, consolidated operating revenue of 
$10 million and net income of $0.3 million.  

Edison Enterprises: Edison Enterprises was organized to own the stock and coordinate the activities of 
Edison International's retail products and services business. The current Edison Enterprises businesses 
include Edison Select, Edison Source, and Edison Utility Services.  

Edison Select Edison Select is engaged in the business of providing home services to consumers, 
and currently provides electrical repair services under the Edison OnCall name, as well as providing 
security services through Edison Security. In 1998, Edison Enterprises acquired Westec Residential 
Security, Inc. and Valley Burglar and Fire Alarm Company, Inc., which significantly expanded Edison 
Select's residential security business.  

Edison Source: Edison Source is engaged in the business of integrated energy outsourcing.  
Integrated energy outsourcing services include the energy efficient retrofit, operation, and maintenance of 
refrigeration, heating, ventilating, air conditioning, lighting, and other electrical systems equipment.
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Edison Utility Services: Edison Utility Services offers a diverse range of services to electric utilities in 
the U.S. and Canada, including billing, outage management, and transmission and distribution 
outsourcing.  

Item 2. Properties of SCE 

The principal properties of SCE are described below. Properties of EME and Edison Capital are 
discussed above under "Business of the Nonutility Companies." 

Existing Utility Generating Facilities 

SCE owns and operates one diesel-fueled generating plant located on Santa Catalina island, 37 
hydroelectric plants, and an undivided 75.05% interest (1,614 MW net) in San Onofre Units 2 and 3.  
These plants are located in Central and Southern California.  

SCE also owns a 15.8% (590 MW net) share of Palo Verde which is located near Phoenix, Arizona. SCE 
owns a 48% undivided interest (754 MW net) in Units 4 and 5 at Four Corners, which is a coal-fueled 
steam electric generating plant located in New Mexico. Palo Verde and Four Corners are operated by 
other utilities. SCE operates and owns a 56% undivided interest (885 MW) in the Mohave Station, which 
consists of two coal-fueled steam electric generating units in Clark County, Nevada. At year-end 1999, 
the existing SCE-owned generating capacity (summer effective rating) was divided approximately as 
follows: 44.2% nuclear, 32.4% coal, 23.2% hydroelectric, and 0.2% diesel. Pursuant to California's 
restructuring legislation, SCE filed an application with the CPUC on October 14, 1999, seeking authority to 
hold an auction to sell SCE's ownership interest in the Mohave Station. A CPUC decision on the auction 
process is expected in early to mid-2000.  

San Onofre, Four Corners, certain of SCE's substations and portions of its transmission, distribution and 
communication systems are located on lands of the U.S. or others under (with minor exceptions) licenses, 
permits, easements or leases, or on public streets or highways pursuant to franchises. Certain of such 
documents obligate SCE, under specified circumstances and at its expense, to relocate transmission, 
distribution, and communication facilities located on lands owned or controlled by federal, state, or local 
governments.  

The 37 hydroelectric plants (some with related reservoirs) have an effective operating capacity of 1,156 
MW, and are, with five exceptions, located in whole or in part on lands of the U.S. pursuant to 30- to 50
year governmental licenses that expire at various times between 1999 and 2029. Such licenses impose 
numerous restrictions and obligations on SCE, including the right of the United States to acquire projects 
upon payment of specified compensation. When existing licenses expire, FERC has the authority to issue 
new licenses to third parties, but only if their license application is superior to SCE's and then only upon 
payment of specified compensation to SCE. Any new licenses issued to SCE are expected to be issued 
under terms and conditions less favorable than those of the expired licenses. SCE's applications for the 
relicensing of certain hydroelectric projects with an aggregate effective operating capacity of 113.32 MW 
are pending. Annual licenses have been issued to SCE hydroelectric projects that are undergoing 
relicensing and whose long-term licenses have expired. The annual licenses will be renewed until the 
long-term licenses are issued. SCE filed an application with the CPUC on December 15, 1999, seeking 
authorization to market value and retain the ownership and operation of the hydroelectric plants pursuant 
to the state's electric utility industry restructuring legislation.  

The capacity factors in 1999 for SCE's principal generation resources were: 43.3% for SCE's hydroelectric 
plants (lower than average due to below-normal water conditions); 88.4% for San Onofre; 70.8% for the 
Mohave Station; 79.4% for Four Corners Units 4 and 5; and 93% for Palo Verde.  

Substantially all of SCE's properties are subject to the lien of a trust indenture securing First and 
Refunding Mortgage Bonds (Trust Indenture), of which approximately $2.2 billion in principal amount was
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outstanding on December 31, 1999. Such lien and SCE's title to its properties are subject to the terms of 
franchises, licenses, easements, leases, permits, contracts, and other instruments under which properties 
are held or operated, certain statutes and governmental regulations, liens for taxes and assessments, and 
liens of the trustees under the Trust Indenture. In addition, such lien and SCE's title to its properties are 
subject to certain other liens, prior rights and other encumbrances, none of which, with minor or 
unsubstantial exceptions, affect SCE's right to use such properties in its business, unless the matters with 
respect to SCE's interest in Four Corners and the related easement and lease referred to below may be 
so considered.  

SCE's rights in Four Corners, which is located on land of The Navajo Nation of Indians under an easement 
from the U.S. and a lease from The Navajo Nation, may be subject to possible defects. These defects 
include possible conflicting grants or encumbrances not ascertainable because of the absence of, or 
inadequacies in, the applicable recording law and the record systems of the Bureau of Indian Affairs and 
The Navajo Nation, the possible inability of SCE to resort to legal process to enforce its rights against The 
Navajo Nation without Congressional consent, possible impairment or termination under certain 
circumstances of the easement and lease by The Navajo Nation, Congress, or the Secretary of the 
Interior, and the possible invalidity of the Trust Indenture lien against SCE's interest in the easement, 
lease, and improvements on Four Corners.  

SCE Construction Program and Capital Expenditures 

Cash required by SCE for its capital expenditures totaled $984 million in 1999, $861 million in 1998 and 
$685 million in 1997. Construction expenditures for the 2000-2004 period are forecasted at $4.8 billion.  

In addition to cash required for construction expenditures for the next five years as discussed above, 
$2.4 billion is needed to meet requirements for long-term debt maturities and sinking fund redemption 
requirements.  

SCE's estimates of cash available for operations for the five years through 2004 assume, among other 
things, the receipt of adequate and timely rate relief and the realization of its assumptions regarding cost 
increases, including the cost of capital. SCE's estimates and underlying assumptions are subject to 
continuous review and periodic revision.  

The timing, type, and amount of all additional long-term financing are also influenced by market conditions, 
rate relief, and other factors, including limitations imposed by SCE's Articles of Incorporation and Trust 
Indenture.  

Nuclear Power Matters 

SCE's nuclear facilities have been reliable sources of inexpensive, non-polluting power for SCE's 
customers for more than a decade. Throughout the operating life of these facilities, SCE's customers 
have supported the revenue requirements of SCE's capital investment in these facilities and for their 
incremental costs through traditional cost-of-service ratemaking.  

In 1996, the CPUC adopted SCE's San Onofre Unit 2 and 3 proposal under which SCE would have 
recovered its remaining investment in the San Onofre Units at a reduced rate of return of 7.35%, but on an 
accelerated basis during the eight-year period from the effective date in 1996 through December 31, 2003.  
California's restructuring legislation, however, requires the recovery of the San Onofre investment to be 
completed by December 31, 2001. In addition, the traditional cost-of-service ratemaking for San Onofre 
Units 2 and 3 was superseded by an incentive pricing plan in which SCE's customers pay a preset price 
for each kWh of energy generated at San Onofre during the eight-year period. The restructuring 
legislation allows for the continuation of the incentive pricing plan through December 31, 2003. SCE was 
compensated for the incremental costs required for the continued operation of San Onofre Units 2 and 3 
with revenue earned through the incentive pricing plan. SCE also retained the ability to request recovery
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of the cost of fuel consumed for generation of replacement energy for periods in which San Onofre will not 
generate power through ECAC filings and, beginning in 1998, as part of ATCP. The restructuring 
legislation also allows SCE to continue to collect funds for decommissioning expenses through traditional 
ratemaking treatment.  

On July 16, 1997, the CPUC approved SCE's request to transfer the recorded net investment in San Onofre 
Units 2 and 3 step-up transformers to San Onofre Units 2 and 3 sunk costs for recovery by 
December 31, 2001, at a reduced rate of return of 7.35%.  

On August 21, 1997, the CPUC approved San Diego Gas & Electric's (SDG&E) and SCE's Joint Petition 
to Modify, requesting continued recovery of certain corporate administrative and general costs allocable to 
San Onofre Units 2 and 3, at rates of 0.280 and 0.210 per kWh, respectively, for the period 
January 1, 1998, through December 31, 2003.  

In 1996, SCE filed its Palo Verde Proposal Application requesting adoption of a new rate mechanism for 
Palo Verde consistent with that of San Onofre Units 2 and 3. On November 15, 1996, SCE, the ORA, and 
TURN entered into a settlement agreement, which was approved by the CPUC on December 20, 1996.  
The agreement allows SCE to recover its remaining investment in the Palo Verde units by December 31, 
2001, at a reduced rate of return of 7.35% consistent with the restructuring legislation. The settling parties 
agreed that SCE would recover its share of Palo Verde incremental operating costs, except if those costs 
exceed 95% of the levels forecast by SCE in its application by more than 30% in any given year. In such 
cases, SCE must demonstrate that the aggregate amount of the costs exceeding the forecast in that year 
is reasonable. If the annual-Palo Verde site gross capacity factor is less than 55% in a calendar year, 
SCE will bear the burden of proof to demonstrate that the site's operations causing the gross capacity 
factor to fall below 55% were reasonable in that year. If operations are determined to be unreasonable by 
the CPUC, SCE's replacement power purchases associated with that period of Palo Verde operations 
below 55% gross capacity factor may be disallowed.  

Beginning in 2002, the net benefits of future operation of Palo Verde Units 1, 2, and 3 will be shared 
equally between shareholders and customers. Likewise, beginning in 2004, the benefits of future 
operation of San Onofre Units 2 and 3 will be shared equally between shareholders and customers.  

San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station 

In 1992, the CPUC approved a settlement agreement between SCE and the ORA to discontinue operation 
of Unit 1 at the end of its then-current fuel cycle. In November 1992, SCE discontinued operation of 
Unit 1. As part of the agreement, SCE recovered its remaining investment over a four-year period ending 
August 1996. On December 21, 1998, SCE filed an application with the CPUC requesting authorization to 
access its nuclear decommissioning trust funds for Unit 1 for the purpose of commencing 
decommissioning of Unit 1 in 2000. On March 8, 1999, SCE, SDG&E, the ORA and TURN entered into a 
settlement agreement that provided for SCE to access its nuclear decommissioning trust funds for Unit 1 
decommissioning. On June 3, 1999, the CPUC adopted the settlement agreement. On December 6, 
1999, SCE applied for a coastal permit to demolish and remove San Onofre Unit 1 buildings and other 
structures and to construct a temporary used fuel storage facility (also referred to as an independent spent 
fuel storage installation) as part of the San Onofre Unit I decommissioning project. On February 15, 
2000, the California Coastal Commission approved SCE's application. Decommissioning of Unit 1 is now 
underway and it is anticipated that decommissioning will continue through 2008. At that time, San Onofre 
Unit 1 will be completely dismantled and only the spent nuclear fuel will remain on-site in an independent 
spent fuel storage installation. All of SCE's reasonable San Onofre Unit 1 decommissioning costs will be 
paid from its nuclear decommissioning trust funds.  

The San Onofre Units 2 and 3 steam generators have performed relatively well through the first 15 years 
of operation, with low rates of ongoing steam generator tube degradation. The steam generator design 
allows for the removal of up to 10% of the tubes before the rated capacity of the unit must be reduced. As 
a result of the increased degradation found during a 1997 inspection, a mid-cycle inspection outage was
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conducted in early 1998 for Unit 2. Continued degradation was found during this inspection. A favorable 
or decreasing trend in degradation was observed during inspection in the scheduled refueling outage in 
January 1999 and as a result, a mid-cycle inspection outage in 2000 is expected to be unnecessary. With 
the results from the January 1999 outage, 7.5% of the tubes have now been removed from service.  

During Unit 3's refueling outage, which was completed in May 1999, a complete inspection of the steam 
generator tubes was performed. Results obtained were within expectations. To date, 5.4% of Unit 3's 
tubes have been removed from service.  

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station 

Based on the latest available data, Arizona Public Service (APS), the operator of Palo Verde, estimates 
that the Unit 1 and Unit 3 steam generators should operate for the 40-year licensed operating life of those 
units, although APS continues to monitor the situation. Installation of new steam generators in Unit 2 has 
been approved by the participants and is planned in 2003. APS has indicated to the participants that it 
believes that replacement of the Unit 2 steam generators would cost between $100 million and 
$150 million. SCE estimates that this cost could be higher, such that its share of this cost would be 
between $16 million and $30 million plus replacement power costs.  

Nuclear Facility Decommissioning 

Decommissioning of San Onofre Unit 1 commenced in 1999 (See "San Onofre Nuclear Generating 
Station" above for additional discussion). On March 9, 2000, the NRC amended the operating licenses for 
San Onofre Units 2 and 3 to allow both units to operate through 2022. Prior to this amendment, the NRC 
operating licenses for San Onofre allowed both units to operate through 2013. SCE plans to 
decommission San Onofre Units 2 and 3 in 2013 and Palo Verde at the end of each unit's operating 
license by a removal method authorized by the NRC. The San Onofre Units 2 and 3 and Palo Verde 
operating licenses currently expire in 2022 and 2028, respectively. Decommissioning is estimated to cost 
$2.0 billion in current-year dollars based on site-specific studies performed in 1998 for San Onofre and 
Palo Verde. This estimate considers the total cost of decommissioning and dismantling the plant, 
including labor, material, burial, and other costs. The site-specific studies are updated approximately 
every three years. Changes in the estimated costs, timing of decommissioning, or the assumptions 
underlying these estimates could cause material revisions to the estimated total cost to decommission.  

Decommissioning expense was $124 million in 1999 and $164 million in 1998. The accumulated provision 
for decommissioning was $1.3 billion at December 31, 1999, and $ 1.2 billion at December 31, 1998. The 
estimated costs to decommission San Onofre Unit 1 ($360 million in 1998 dollars) are recorded as a 
liability.  

Decommissioning funds collected in rates are placed in independent trusts which, together with 
accumulated earnings, will be utilized solely for decommissioning.  

Nuclear Insurance 

Federal law limits public liability claims from a nuclear incident to $9.5 billion. SCE and other owners of 
San Onofre and Palo Verde have purchased the maximum private primary insurance available 
($200 million). The balance is covered by the industry's retrospective rating plan that uses deferred 
premium charges to every reactor licensee if a nuclear incident at any licensed reactor in the U.S. results 
in claims and/or costs which exceed the primary insurance at that plant site. Federal regulations require 
this secondary level of financial protection. The NRC exempted San Onofre Unit 1 from this secondary 
level, effective June 1994. The maximum deferred premium for each nuclear incident is $88 million per 
reactor, but not more than $10 million per reactor may be charged in any one year for each incident.  
Based on its ownership interests, SCE could be required to pay a maximum of $175 million per nuclear 
incident. It would have to pay, however, no more than $20 million per incident in any one year. Such
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amounts include a 5% surcharge if additional funds are needed to satisfy public liability claims and are 
subject to adjustment for inflation. If the public liability limit above is insufficient, federal regulations may 
impose further revenue-raising measures to pay claims, including a possible additional assessment on all 
licensed reactor operators.  

Property damage insurance covers losses up to $500 million, including decontamination costs, at San Onofre 
and Palo Verde. Decontamination liability and property damage coverage exceeding the primary $500 million 
has also been purchased in amounts greater than federal requirements. Additional insurance covers part of 
replacement power expenses during an accident-related nuclear unit outage. These policies are issued by a 
mutual insurance company owned by utilities with nuclear facilities. If losses at any nuclear facility covered 
by the arrangement were to exceed the accumulated funds for these insurance programs, SCE could be 
assessed retrospective premium adjustments of up to $19 million per year. Insurance premiums are 
charged to operating expense.  

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

Edison International 

Geothermal Generators' Litigation 

Edison International and two of its nonutility subsidiaries, The Mission Group, and Mission Power 
Engineering Company, have been named as defendants in a lawsuit more fully described under "Southern 
California Edison Company - Geothermal Generators' Litigation." 

Edison Mission Energy 

PMNC Litigation 

In February 1997, a civil action was commenced in the Superior Court of the State of California, Orange 
County, entitled The Parsons Corporation and PMNC v. Brooklyn Navy Yard Cogeneration Partners, L.P.  
(Brooklyn Navy Yard), Mission Energy New York, Inc. and B-41 Associates, L.P., in which plaintiffs assert 
general monetary claims under the construction turnkey agreement in the amount of $136.8 million. In 
addition to defending this action, Brooklyn Navy Yard has also filed an action in the Supreme Court of the 
State of New York, Kings County entitled Brooklyn Navy Yard Cogeneration Partners, L.P. v. PMNC, 
Parsons Main of New York, Inc., Nab Construction Corporation, L.K. Comstock & Co., Inc. and The 
Parsons Corporation, asserting general monetary claims in excess of $13 million under the construction 
turnkey agreement. On March 26, 1998, the Superior Court in the California action granted PMNC's 
motion for attachment against Brooklyn Navy Yard in the amount of $43 million and PMNC subsequently 
attached three checking accounts in the amount of $0.5 million. Brooklyn Navy Yard has appealed the 
attachment order. On the same day, the Court stayed all proceedings in the California action pending the 
New York action. That appeal was denied following a hearing on September 29, 1998. On March 9, 
1999, Brooklyn Navy Yard filed a partial Motion for Summary Judgment in the New York action which was 
ultimately denied. In December 1999, Brooklyn Navy Yard appealed the orders denying partial Summary 
Judgment. The appeal and the commencement of discovery were suspended until June 2000, to allow for 
voluntary mediation between the parties. The mediation ended unsuccessfully on March 23, 2000. EME 
has agreed to indemnity Brooklyn Navy Yard and its partner in the venture from all claims and costs 
arising from or in connection with the contractor litigation.  

P. T. Perusahaan Listrik Negara 

As discussed in Item 1 above under "Business of the Nonutility Companies," EME owns a 40% interest in 
Paiton Energy, which constructed the Paiton project in East Java, Indonesia. The Paiton project has 
achieved commercial operation. Pursuant to the power purchase agreement with PLN, Indonesia's state
owned electricity company, PLN is obligated to purchase the capacity and energy of the Paiton project.
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On October 7, 1999, PLN announced that it had filed a lawsuit in the Central Jakarta District Court against 
Paiton Energy seeking to annul the power purchase agreement, notwithstanding that Paiton Energy 
continued to seek a negotiated basis on which to operate the plant for an interim period during which the 
parties could discuss longer term remedies for the effect on the project of the current financial crisis 
affecting Indonesia. In its complaint, PLN generally alleged that the contract was the result of corruption, 
cronyism and nepotism, was one-sided and against the public interest. The terms of the power purchase 
agreement provide that any disputes with respect thereto must be submitted to arbitration in Stockholm, 
Sweden, and cannot be brought in the courts of any country. Accordingly, immediately following the filing 
of PLN's lawsuit, Paiton Energy commenced an arbitration in accordance with the terms of the power 
purchase agreement in order to confirm the validity of the agreement and to protect the interests of Paiton 
Energy's shareholders, lenders and other credit support providers.  

On January 20, 2000, pursuant to an understanding between PLN and Paiton Energy committing to 
negotiate an agreement on an interim arrangement, PLN withdrew its lawsuit and Paiton Energy withdrew 
the arbitration proceedings against PLN and the Government of Indonesia.  

On February 21, 2000, PLN and Paiton Energy executed an interim agreement pursuant to which the 
power purchase agreement will be administered pending a long term restructuring of the power purchase 
agreement. Among other things, the interim agreement provides for dispatch of the Paiton project, fixed 
monthly payments to Paiton Energy by PLN and the standstill of any further legal proceedings by either 
party during the term of the interim agreement, which continues through December 31, 2000 and may be 
extended by mutual agreement.  

Southern California Edison Company 

Geothermal Generators' Litigation 

On June 9,1997, SCE filed a complaint in Los Angeles County Superior Court against an independent 
power producer of geothermal generation and six of its affiliated entities (Coso parties). SCE alleges that 
in order to avoid power production plant shutdowns caused by excessive noncondensable gas in the 
geothermal field brine, the Coso parties routinely vented highly toxic hydrogen sulfide gas from 
unmonitored release points beginning in 1990 and continuing through at least 1994, in violation of 
applicable federal, state, and local environmental law. According to SCE, these violations constituted 
material breaches by the Coso parties of their obligations under their contracts with SCE and applicable 
law. SCE seeks damages for excess power purchase payments made to the Coso parties and other 
relief. The Coso parties' motion to transfer venue to Inyo County Superior court was granted on 
August 31, 1997.  

The Coso parties filed a cross-complaint against SCE, The Mission Group, and Mission Power 
Engineering Company (Mission parties), which contains claims for breach of contract, unfair competition, 
interference with contract, defamation, breach of an earlier settlement agreement between the Mission 
parties and the Coso parties, and other claims. As against SCE, the cross-complaint seeks restitution, 
compensatory damages in excess of $115 million, punitive damages in an amount not less than 
$400 million, interest, attorney's fees, declaratory relief, and injunctive relief. As against the Mission 
parties, the cross-complaint seeks damages for breach of warranty of authority with respect to the 
settlement agreement, and for equitable indemnity. Edison International was named as a cross
defendant, allegedly as an alter ego of SCE and the Mission parties. The Coso parties voluntarily 
dismissed the claims against Edison International.  

Three of the Coso Parties also filed a separate action in the Inyo County Superior Court against SCE and 
Edison International, alleging claims for unfair competition, false advertising and for violations of Public 
Utilities Code § 2106, and seeking injunctive relief, restitution, and punitive damages. The Court ordered this 
action consolidated with the SCE action.
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Effective February 8, 2000, the parties entered into confidential agreements resolving all claims in the 
consolidated action and calling for dismissals with prejudice and releases. The settlement is subject to 
the approval of the CPUC. On February 10, 2000, the Court approved a stipulation staying all 
proceedings during the period required to obtain CPUC approval. SCE is in the process of preparing an 
application to obtain such approval. The settlement is not expected to have a material financial effect on 
SCE.  

San Onofre Personal Injury Litigation 

SCE is actively involved in three lawsuits claiming personal injuries allegedly resulting from exposure to 
radiation at San Onofre. On August 31, 1995, the wife and daughter of a former San Onofre security 
supervisor sued SCE and SDG&E in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California.  
Plaintiffs also named Combustion Engineering and the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations as 
defendants. All trial court proceedings were stayed pending ruling of the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeal, on 
an appeal of a lower court's judgment in favor of SCE in two earlier cases raising similar allegations. On 
May 28, 1998, the Court of Appeal affirmed these judgments. Pursuant to an agreement of the parties as 
described below, all proceedings in this matter have been stayed.  

On November 17, 1995, an SCE employee and his wife sued SCE in the U.S. District Court for the 
Southern District of California. Plaintiffs also named Combustion Engineering. The trial in this case 
resulted in a jury verdict for both defendants. The plaintiffs' motion for a new trial was denied. Plaintiffs 
filed an appeal of the trial court's judgment to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeal. Briefing on the appeal was 
completed in January 1999, oral argument took place on February 10, 2000, and the matter was taken 
under submission. A decision is not expected until spring or early summer of 2000.  

On November 28, 1995, a former contract worker at San Onofre, her husband, and her son, sued SCE in 
the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California. Plaintiffs also named Combustion 
Engineering. On August 12, 1996, the Court dismissed the claims of the former worker and her husband 
with prejudice, leaving only the son as plaintiff. Pursuant to an agreement of the parties as described 
below, all proceedings in the matter have been stayed.  

In March of 1999, SCE reached an agreement with the plaintiffs in both of the cases at the U.S. District 
Court level to stay all proceedings including trial, pending the results of the case currently before the Ninth 
Circuit Court of Appeal. The parties agreed that if the plaintiffs do not receive a favorable determination 
on appeal then the two cases at the District Court level will be dismissed. If, however, those plaintiffs 
receive a favorable determination on their appeal, then the two District Court cases will be set for trial. On 
March 23, 1999, the District Court approved the parties' stay agreement in both cases.  

SCE was previously involved, along with other defendants, in two earlier cases raising allegations similar 
to those described above. Although SCE is no longer actively involved in these actions, the impact on 
SCE, if any, from further proceedings in those cases against the remaining defendants cannot be 
determined at this time.  

Mohave Generating Station Environmental Litigation 

On February 19, 1997, the Sierra Club and the Grand Canyon Trust filed suit in the U.S. District Court of 
Nevada against SCE and the other three co-owners of the Mohave Station. The lawsuit alleged that the 
Mohave Station has been violating various provisions of the Clean Air Act, the Nevada State 
Implementation Plan, certain EPA orders, and applicable pollution permits relating to opacity and sulfur 
dioxide emission limits over the last five years. The plaintiffs sought declaratory and injunctive relief as 
well as civil penalties. The Clean Air Act calls for a maximum civil penalty of $25,000 per day per 
violation. SCE and the co-owners obtained an extension to respond to the complaint pending the court's 
ruling on a motion to dismiss filed by the defendants. The plaintiffs filed an opposition to the defendants' 
motion to dismiss as well as a separate motion for partial summary judgment on May 8, 1998.

31



On June 4, 1998, the plaintiffs served SCE and the other Mohave Station co-owners with a 60-day 
supplemental notice of intent to sue. This supplemental notice identified additional causes of action as 
well as an additional plaintiff (National Parks and Conservation Association) to be added to the 
proceedings. On November 12, 1998, the court bifurcated the liability and damage phases of the case 
and granted plaintiffs' motion to amend the complaint to add the National Parks and Conservation 
Association as a plaintiff.  

On December 8, 1998, defendants filed a supplemental memorandum in support of defendants' 
opposition to plaintiffs' motion for partial summary judgment. On February 4, 1999, plaintiffs filed their first 
amended complaint to add the National Parks and Conservation Association as a plaintiff in the action.  
On March 10, 1999, defendants filed a motion for partial summary judgment. On March 11, 1999, 
plaintiffs filed a motion for partial summary judgment to establish emission limit violations as alleged in 
certain of the causes of action in their first amended complaint.  

On March 8, 1999, the parties filed a stipulated request for a 60-day stay which was granted and ordered 
by the Court on March 9, 1999. A subsequent stay was granted, which was to expire on July 6, 1999, 
before being extended to July 20, 1999. On July 6, 1999, each party filed an opposition to the other 
parties' motion for summary judgment. On August 2, 1999, defendants filed a reply to plaintiff's 
opposition. On August 5, 1999, plaintiffs filed a reply to defendant's opposition.  

On October 6, 1999, the parties filed a consent decree with the Federal District Court in Las Vegas, 
requesting the judge to approve the decree, and simultaneously dismiss the lawsuit. The decree provides 
that certain environmental control hardware (lime spray dryers, fabric filter baghouses and low NOx 
burners) should be installed on the facility by December 31, 2005, or else the Mohave Station will not be 
able to operate as a coal-fired facility after such date. The consent decree was signed by the court on 
December 15, 1999.  

Navajo Nation Litigation 

On June 18, 1999, SCE was served with a complaint filed by the Navajo Nation in the United States 
District Court for the District of Columbia against Peabody Holding Company and certain of its affiliates 
(Peabody), Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District, and SCE. The complaint 
asserts claims against the defendants for, among other things, violations of the federal RICO statute, 
interference with fiduciary duties and contractual relations, fraudulent misrepresentation by nondisclosure, 
and various contract-related claims. Peabody supplies coal from mines on Navajo Nation lands to the 
Mohave Station. The complaint claims that the defendants' actions prevented the Navajo Nation from 
obtaining the full value in royalty rates for the coal. The complaint seeks damages of not less than 
$600 million, trebling of that amount, and punitive damages of not less than $1 billion, as well as a 
declaration that Peabody's lease and contract rights to mine coal on Navajo Nation lands should be 
terminated. SCE joined Peabody's motion to strike the Navajo Nation's complaint. In addition, SCE and 
the other defendants have filed motions to dismiss.  

The Navajo Nation had previously filed suit in the Court of Claims against the United States Department of 
Interior, alleging that the Government had breached its fiduciary duty concerning the above-referenced 
contract negotiations. On February 4, 2000, the Court of Claims issued a decision in the Government's 
favor, finding that while there had been a breach, there was no available redress from the Government. In 
its decision, the Court indicated that it was making no statements regarding, or findings in, the above 
federal civil court action. On February 28, 2000, the Hopi Tribe filed a motion to intervene in the pending 
litigation, alleging that the royalty payments set for their interest in the coal leases with Peabody had been 
impacted by the events at issue in the Navajo case. The defendants filed an opposition to the motion, 
which has not been calendared for hearing.  

Claims Arising From Oil Spill Incidents 

In mid 1999, the San Bernardino County Fire Department and the Santa Ana branch of the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board initiated an investigation into an incident occurring on December 9, 1998,
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involving an oil spill at SCE's Kimberly Pole Top Station caused by severe windstorms. During the course 
of this investigation, the agencies discovered that barrels of mislabeled waste had remained for several 
days on the site of a separate oil spill and clean-up caused by an oil release from a padmount transformer.  

In February 2000, SCE entered into a settlement agreement with the agencies for claims arising out of 
both of these incidents. SCE paid $300,000 to San Bernardino County and $100,000 to the Regional 
Board in civil penalties. The County also recovered its costs of $5,400 and SCE agreed to provide all 
elementary and middle schools in the County with an environmental education program. The estimated 
cost of this program is $140,000.  

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 

Inapplicable 

Pursuant to Form 10-K's General Instruction (General Instruction) G(3), the following information is 
included as an additional item in Part I: 

Executive Officers (') of the Registrant

Age at 
Executive Officer December 31, 1999 Company Position 

John E. Bryson 56 Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive 
Officer and Director 

Bryant C. Danner 62 Executive Vice President and General Counsel 

Theodore F. Craver, Jr. 48 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and 
Treasurer 

Robert G. Foster 52 Senior Vice President 

Thomas J. Higgins 54 Vice President, Corporate Relations 

Thomas M. Noonan 48 Vice President and Controller 

Anthony L. Smith 51 Vice President, Tax

(1) Executive Officers are defined by Rule 3b-7 of the General Rules and Regulations under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Pursuant to this rule, the Executive Officers of Edison 
International include certain elected officers of Edison International and its subsidiaries SCE, Edison 
Mission Energy, Edison Capital, and Edison Enterprises, all of whom may be deemed significant 
policy makers of Edison International. None of Edison International's elected executive officers are 
related to each other by blood or marriage.  

As set forth in Article IV of Edison International's Bylaws, the elected officers of Edison International 
are chosen annually by and serve at the pleasure of Edison International's Board of Directors and hold 
their respective offices until their resignation, removal, other disqualification from service, or until their
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respective successors are elected. Each of the above officers of Edison International has been 
actively engaged in the business of Edison International for more than five years except Theodore F.  
Craver, Jr., and Thomas J. Higgins. Those officers who have not held their present position with 
Edison International and/or SCE for the past five years had the following business experience during 
that period: 

Edison International 

Executive Officer Company Position Effective Dates 

John E. Bryson Chairman of the Board, President and Chief January 2000 to present 
Executive Officer, Edison International 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive October 1990 to December 1999 
Officer, Edison International and SCE 

Bryant C. Danner Executive Vice President and General Counsel, June 1995 to present 
Edison International 
Executive Vice President and General Counsel, June 1995 to December 1999 
SCE 
Senior Vice President and General Counsel, June 1992 to May 1995 
Edison International and SCE 

Theodore F. Craver, Jr. Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer January 2000 to present 
and Treasurer, Edison International 
Senior Vice President and Treasurer, Edison February 1998 to January 2000 
International 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive September 1999 to present 
Officer, Edison Enterprises 
Senior Vice President and Treasurer, SCE February 1998 to September 1999 
Vice President and Treasurer, Edison September 1996 to February 1998 
International and SCE 
Executive Vice President and Corporate September 1990 to April 1996 
Treasurer, First Interstate Bancorpc') 

Robert G. Foster Senior Vice President, Public Affairs, Edison November 1996 to present 
International and SCE 
Vice President, Public Affairs, Edison January 1996 to October 1996 
International 
Vice President, Public Affairs, SCE November 1993 to October 1996 

Thomas J. Higgins President, Edison Enterprises September 1999 to present 
Vice President, Corporate Relations February 2000 to present 
Vice President, Edison International September 1999 to February 2000 
Vice President, Corporate Communications, January 1996 to September 1999 
Edison International and SCE 
Vice President, Corporate Communications, April 1995 to January 1996 
SCE 

Thomas M. Noonan Vice President and Controller, Edison March 1999 to present 
International and SCE 
Assistant Controller, Edison International and September 1993 to February 1999 
SCE 

Anthony L. Smith Vice President, Tax, Edison International and March 1999 to present 
SCE 
Assistant Controller, Edison International and July 1988 to January 1999 
SCE 

(1) This entity is not a parent, subsidiary or other affiliate of SCE.
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Southern California Edison Company 

Age at 
Executive Officer December 31, 1999 Company Position 

Stephen E. Frank 58 Chairman of the Board, President, Chief 
Executive Officer and Director 

Harold B. Ray 59 Executive Vice President, Generation Business 
Unit 

Pamela A. Bass 52 Senior Vice President, Customer Service 
Business Unit 

John R. Fielder 54 Senior Vice President, Regulatory Policy and 
Affairs 

Richard M. Rosenblum 49 Senior Vice President, Transmission & 
Distribution (T&D) Business Unit 

Bruce C. Foster 47 Vice President, Regulatory Affairs 

As set forth in Article IV of SCE's Bylaws, the elected officers of SCE are chosen annually by and serve at 
the pleasure of SCE's Board of Directors and hold their respective offices until their resignation, removal, 
other disqualification from service, or until their respective successors are elected. All of the above 
officers have been actively engaged in the business of SCE for more than five years except for Stephen E.  
Frank. Those officers who have not held their present position for the past five years had the following 
business experience:

(1) This entity is not a parent, subsidiary or other affiliate of SCE.
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Executive Officer Company Position Effective Dates 

Stephen E. Frank Chairman of the Board, President, Chief January 2000 to present 
Executive Officer and Director 
President, Chief Operating Officer and June 1995 to December 1999 
Director 
President and Chief Operating Officer, August 1990 to January 1995 
Florida Power and Light Company"'; 

Harold B. Ray Executive Vice President, Generation June 1995 to present 
Business Unit 
Senior Vice President, Power Systems June 1990 to May 1995 

Pamela A. Bass Senior Vice President, Customer Service March 1999 to present 
Business Unit 
Vice President, Customer Solutions June 1996 to February 1999 
Business Unit 
Vice President, Shared Services January 1996 to May 1996 
Division Vice President, ENvest August 1993 to December 1995 

John R. Fielder Senior Vice President, Regulatory Policy and February 1998 to present 
Affairs 
Vice President, Regulatory Policy and Affairs February 1992 to February 1998 

Richard M. Rosenblum Senior Vice President, T&D Business Unit February 1998 to present 
Vice President, Distribution Business Unit January 1996 to February 1998 
Vice President, Nuclear Engineering and June 1993 to December 1995 

I Technical Services



The Nonutility Companies

"('1 Messrs. Craver and Higgins are also deemed executive officers due to their positions at Edison 
International. Information concerning their ages, Company position, and business experience is set forth 
under Edison International. Edison International is the parent holding company of the Nonutility 
Companies.  

As set forth in Article IV of their respective Bylaws, the elected officers of the Nonutility Companies are 
chosen annually by and serve at the pleasure of the respective Boards of Directors and hold their 
respective offices until their resignation, removal, other disqualification from service, or until their 
respective successors are elected. All of the above officers have been actively engaged in the business 
of the respective Nonutility Companies and/or Edison International or SCE for more than five years except 
for Alan J. Fohrer, Theodore F. Craver, Jr., and Thomas J. Higgins. Those officers who have not held 
their present position for the past five years had the following business experience:
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Age at 
Executive Officer December 31, 1999 Company Position 

Alan J. Fohrer 49 President and Chief Executive Officer, 
Edison Mission Energy 

Robert M. Edgell 52 Executive Vice President, 
Edison Mission Energy 

Thomas R. McDaniel 50 President and Chief Executive Officer, 
Edison Capital 

Theodore F. Craver, Jr."') 48 Chief Executive Officer, Edison Enterprises 

Thomas J. Higgins"') 54 President, Edison Enterprises

The Nonutility Companies

Executive Officer Company Position Effective Dates 

Alan J. Fohrer President and Chief Executive Officer, January 2000 to present 
Edison Mission Energy 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial September 1996 to January 2000 
Officer, Edison International 
Chairman of the Board, Edison Enterprises January 1998 to September 1999 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial September 1996 to December 
Officer, SCE 1999 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial February 1996 to August 1996 
Officer and Treasurer, SCE 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial May 1995 to January 1996 
Officer, SCE 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial May 1995 to August 1996 
Officer and Treasurer, Edison International 
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer January 1993 to April 1995 
and Treasurer, Edison International I



PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 

Information responding to Item 5 is included in Edison International's Annual Report to Shareholders for 
the year ended December 31, 1999, (Annual Report) under "Quarterly Financial Data" on page 68 and 
under "Shareholder Information" on page 73, and is incorporated by reference pursuant to General 
Instruction G(2). The number of Common Stock shareholders of record was 89,910 on March 27, 2000.  
Additional information concerning the market for Edison International's Common Stock is set forth on the 
cover page hereof.  

Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

Information responding to Item 6 is included in the Annual Report under "Selected Financial and Operating 
Data: 1995-1999" on page 72, and is incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction 
G(2).  

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition 

Information responding to Item 7 is included in the Annual Report under "Management's Discussion and 
Analysis" on pages 29 through 41 and is incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction 
G(2).  

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

Information responding to Item 7A is included in the Annual Report under "Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition" on pages 33 through 35 incorporated herein by 
reference to General Instruction G(2), and in Part I, Item 1 of this report on page 12 under "Market Risk 
Exposures".  

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

Certain information responding to Item 8 is set forth after Item 14 in Part IV. Other information responding 
to Item 8 is included in the Annual Report on pages 43 through 67 and is incorporated herein by reference 
pursuant to General Instruction G(2).  

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None.  

PART III 

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant 

Information concerning executive officers of Edison International is set forth in Part I in accordance with 
General Instruction G(3), pursuant to Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K. Other information 
responding to Item 10 is included in the Joint Proxy Statement (Proxy Statement) filed with the SEC in 
connection with Edison International's Annual Meeting to be held on April 20, 2000, under the heading, 
"Election of Directors" on pages 6 and 7 and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" 
on page 13, and is incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(3).
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information responding to Item 11 is included in the Proxy Statement beginning with the section under the 
heading "Executive Compensation Summary Compensation Table" beginning on page 15 and continuing 
through page 25, excluding the "Compensation and Executive Personnel Committees' Report on 
Executive Compensation," and is incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(3).  

The Edison International Board of Directors and its Compensation and Executive Personnel Committee 
have been considering an exchange offer for outstanding affiliate options issued by Edison Mission 
Energy and Edison Capital. Such an exchange offer was reviewed and approved by the Edison 
International Board of Directors at its meetings in January and February of 2000, subject to final approval 
by the Edison International Compensation and Executive Personnel Committee of the offer terms and 
documentation. In anticipation of the exchange offer and/or future exercises of the affiliate options, Edison 
International accrued an additional $122 million at the end of the fourth quarter of 1999, which, in 
combination with previously planned accruals, resulted in an accrued balance of $299 million as of 
December 31, 1999.  

Although a final decision has not been made on whether such an offer should be made or on the terms of 
any such offer, management does not believe that an exchange offer will be made on the schedule and 
terms that were reviewed by the Board of Directors and the Compensation and Executive Personnel 
Committee in January - February 2000. There will be an opportunity for exercises of affiliate options in an 
exercise window at some time in 2000, if affiliate options then remain outstanding. The determination of 
the values that eligible optionees could obtain by exercising their options in 2000 has not been completed.  
There can be no assurance that these values would be the same as the values that have been considered 
for an exchange offer; but management believes that the amounts previously accrued for an exchange 
offer and/or future exercises of the affiliate options would be adequate to cover amounts that may be paid 
out in 2000 under an exchange offer (if one is made) and/or affiliate option exercises.  

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 

Information responding to Item 12 is included in the Proxy Statement under the headings "Stock 
Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers of Edison International and SCE" on pages 12 and 13 and 
"Stock Ownership of Certain Shareholders" on page 14, and is incorporated herein by reference pursuant 
to General Instruction G(3).  

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 

Information responding to Item 13 is included in the Proxy Statement under the heading "Certain 
Relationships and Transactions of Nominees and Executive Officers" on page 30, and is incorporated 
herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(3).  

PART IV 

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a)(1) Financial Statements 

The following items contained in the Annual Report are found on pages 29 through 67, and are 
incorporated by reference in this report.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition 
Responsibility for Financial Reporting 
Report of Independent Public Accountants 
Consolidated Statements of Income -- Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income -- Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998, 

and 1997 
Consolidated Balance Sheets -- December 31, 1999, and 1998 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows -- Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity -- Years Ended December 31, 1999, 

1998 and 1997 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

(2) Report of Independent Public Accountants and Schedules Supplementing Financial 
Statements 

The following documents may be found in this report at the indicated page numbers.  
Page 

Report of Independent Public Accountants on Supplemental 
Schedules 40 

Schedule I--Condensed Financial 
Information of Parent 41 

Schedule II--Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the 
Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 44 

Schedules I through V, inclusive, except those referred to above, are omitted as not required or not 

applicable.  

(3) Exhibits 

See Exhibit Index on page 48 of this report.  

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

October 6, 1999 
Item 5: Other Events Mohave Generating Station Environmental Litigation 

October 29, 1999 
Item 5. Other Events $325M Cumulative Quarterly Income Preferred Securities 

December 15, 1999 
Item 5. Other Events Closing of Commonwealth Edison Acquisition
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
ON SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES 

To Edison International: 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, the 
consolidated financial statements included in the 1999 Annual Report to Shareholders of Edison 
International incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 2, 2000. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements were made for the purpose of 
forming an opinion on those basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The supplemental 
schedules listed in Part IV of this Form 1 0-K, which are the responsibility of Edison International's 
management, are presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange Commission's 
rules and regulations, and are not part of the basic consolidated financial statements. These 
supplemental schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic 
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in all material respects the financial data 
required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.  

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

Los Angeles, California 
February 2, 2000
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Edison International

SCHEDULE I -- CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PARENT 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 

1999 1998 

(In thousands) 

Assets: 
Cash and equivalents $ 5,562 $ 7,101 
Other current assets 109,139 248,317 

Total current assets 114,701 255,418 

Investments in subsidiaries 7,253,922 4,946,607 
Other deferred debits 5,053 295 

Total assets $7,373,676 $5,202,320 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity: 
Accounts payable $ 1,849 $ 195 
Other current liabilities 606,036 185,577 

Total current liabilities 607,885 185,772 
Long-term debt 744,556 
Other long-term liabilities 850,516 
Other deferred credits 1,616 837 
Common shareholders' equity 5,169,103 5,015,711 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $7,373,676 $5,202,320
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Edison International

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
For the Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997

1999 1998 1997 

(In thousands, except per-share amounts) 

Operating revenue and other income. $ 73,892 $ 52,784 $ 44,922 
Operating expenses and interest expense 114,447 67,907 71,536 

Loss before equity in earnings of subsidiaries (40,555) (15,123) (26,614) 

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 663,585 683,286 726,470 

Net income $ 623,030 $668,163 $699,856

Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 
Basic earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share

347,551 
$1.79 
$1.79

359,205 
$ 1.86 
$ 1.84

400,396 
$ 1.75 
$ 1.73

42



Edison International

SCHEDULE I--CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PARENT (Continued) 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Years Ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997

1999 1998 1997 

(In thousands) 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities $ 137,336 $ (131,187) $ (19,894) 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities (113,581) (125,298) 258,920 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities (25,294) (10,017) (112) 

Increase (Decrease) in cash and equivalents (1,539) (266,502) 238,914 
Cash and equivalents at beginning of period 7,101 273,603 34,689 

Cash and Equivalents at the End of Period $ 5,562 $ 7,101 $ 273,603

Cash dividends received from Southern California 
Edison Company $ 663,282 $1,103,574 $1,841,230
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Edison International

SCHEDULE II -- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Balance at 
Beginning of

Additions 
Charged to Charged to 
Costs and Other

Balance 
at End

Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions of period 

(In thousands) 

Group A: 

Uncollectible accounts 
Customers $ 21,638 $ 30,013 $ - $ 20,568 $ 31,083 
All other 2,634 1,288 - 913 3,009 

Total $ 24,272 $ 31,301 $ - $ 21,481(a) $ 34,092 

Group B: 
DOE Decontamination 

and Decommissioning $ 39,419 $ - $ (134)(b) $ 4,695(c) $ 34,590 
Purchased-power settlements 129,697 466,043 - 32,281 (d) 563,459 
Pension and benefits 239,668 48,894 21,674(e) 77,335(f) 232,901 
Maintenance accrual 26,053 37,673 54 38,116 25,664 
Insurance, casualty and 

other 80,493 37,674 - 42,043(g) 76,124 

Total $ 515,330 $590,284 $21,594 $194,470 $932,738

(a) Accounts written off, net.  
(b) Represents revision to estimate based on actual billings.  
(c) Represents amounts paid.  
(d) Represents the amortization of the liability established for purchased-power contract settlement 

agreements.  
(e) Primarily represents transfers from the accrued paid absence allowance account for required 

additions to the comprehensive disability plan accounts.  
(f) Includes pension payments to retired employees, amounts paid to active employees during 

periods of illness and the funding of certain pension benefits.  
(g) Amounts charged to operations that were not covered by insurance.
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Edison International

SCHEDULE II -- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1998

Balance at 
Beginning of

Additions 
Charged to Charged to 
Costs and Other

Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions of period 

(In thousands) 

Group A: 

Uncollectible accounts 
Customers $ 24,525 $ 21,570 - $ 24,457 $ 21,638 
All other 48,098 2,273 - 47,737 2,634 

Total $ 72,623 $ 23,843 $ - $ 72,194(a) $ 24,272 

Group B: 
DOE Decontamination 

and Decommissioning $ 44,336 $ - $ (89)(b) $ 4,828(c) $ 39,419 
Purchased-power settlements 145,640 - - 15,943(d) 129,697 
Pension and benefits 211,200 170,743 18,988 (e) 161,263(f) 239,668 
Maintenance accrual 21,209 10,663 263 6,082 26,053 
Insurance, casualty and 

other 84,253 70,727 - 74,487(g) 80,493 

Total $506,638 $252,133 $19,162 $262,603 $515,330

Accounts written off, net.  
Represents revision to estimate based on actual billings.  
Represents amounts paid.  
Represents the amortization of the liability established for purchased-power contract settlement
agreements.  

(e) Primarily represents transfers from the accrued paid absence allowance account for required 
additions to the comprehensive disability plan accounts.  

(f) Includes pension payments to retired employees, amounts paid to active employees during 
periods of illness and the funding of certain pension benefits.  

(g) Amounts charged to operations that were not covered by insurance.
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Edison International

SCHEDULE II -- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 1997

Balance at 
Beginning of

Additions 
Charged to Charged to 
Costs and Other

Balance 
at End

Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions of period 

(In thousands) 

Group A: 

Uncollectible accounts 
Customers $ 24,466 $ 20,826 - $ 20,767 $ 24,525 
All other 24,189 24,570 - 661 48,098 

Total $ 48,655 $ 45,396 $ - $ 21,428(a) $ 72,623 

Group B: 
DOE Decontamination 

and Decommissioning $ 48,789 $ - $ 1,089(b) $ 5,542(c) $ 44,336 
Purchased-power settlements 107,700 - 67,320(d) 29,380(e) 145,640 
Pension and benefits 180,927 102,193 17,624(f) 89,544(g) 211,200 
Maintenance accrual 17,178 11,149 - 7,118 21,209 
Insurance, casualty and 

other 86,509 63,541 - 65,797(h) 84,253 

Total $441,103 $176,883 $86,033 $197,381 $506,638

(a) Accounts written off, net.  
(b) Represents revision to estimate based on actual billings.  
(c) Represents amounts paid.  
(d) Represents payments to be made under agreement to terminate a purchased-power contract.  
(e) Represents the amortization of the liability established for purchased-power contract settlement 

agreements.  
(f) Primarily represents transfers from the accrued paid absence allowance account for required 

additions to the comprehensive disability plan accounts.  
(g) Includes pension payments to retired employees, amounts paid to active employees during 

periods of illness and the funding of certain pension benefits.  
(h) Amounts charged to operations that were not covered by insurance.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  

Edison International 

By:

Kenneth S. Stewart 
Assistant General Counsel

Date: March 29, 2000 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below 
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

Principal Executive Officer: 
John E. Bryson* 

Principal Financial Officer: 
Theodore F. Craver, Jr.* 

Controller or Principal 
Accounting Officer: 
Thomas M. Noonan* 

Board of Directors: 

Winston H. Chen* 
Warren Christopher* 
Stephen E. Frank* 
Joan C. Hanley* 
Carl F. Huntsinger* 
Charles D. Miller* 
Luis G. Nogales* 
Ronald L. Olson* 
James M. Rosser* 
Robert H. Smith* 
Thomas C. Sutton* 
Daniel M. Tellep* 
Edward Zapanta*

*By-

Chairman of the Board, President, 
Chief Executive Officer 
and Director 

Senior Vice President, Treasurer and 
Chief Financial Officer 

Vice President and 
Controller

Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director

March 29, 2000 

March 29, 2000 

March 29, 2000

March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29, 2000 
March 29. 2000

.,,5 ý4"t
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit 
Number Description 

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation;of Edison International dated May 7, 1996 (File No. 1-9936, 
filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998)* 

3.2 Certificate of Determination of Series A Junior Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock of 
Edison International dated November 21, 1998 (Form 8-A dated November 21, 1996)* 

3.3 Amended Bylaws of Edison International as adopted by the Board of Directors on 
February 17, 2000 

Edison International 
4.1 Subordinated Indenture dated as of July 26,1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to 

Form 8-K dated July 26, 1999)* 
4.2 Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated as of July 26,1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 4.2 

to Form 8-K dated July 26, 1999)* 
4.3 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of July 26, 1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as 

Exhibit 4.3 to Form 8-K dated July 26, 1999)* 
4.4 Senior Indenture dated September 28, 1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10

Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999)* 
4.5 Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated September 28, 1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 4.2 

to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999)* 
4.6 Supplemental Indenture No. 2 dated as of October 29, 1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 

4.1 to Form 8-K dated October 29, 1999)* 
4.7 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of October 29, 1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed 

as Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-K dated October 29, 1999)* 
Southern California Edison Company 
4.8 SCE First Mortgage Bond Trust Indenture, dated as of October 1, 1923 (Registration No.  

2-1369)* 
4.9 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 1,1927 (Registration No. 2-1369)* 
4.10 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 24, 1935 (Registration No. 2-1602)* 
4.11 Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1935 (Registration No. 2-4522)* 
4.12 Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 15, 1939 (Registration No. 2-4522)* 
4.13 Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 1, 1940 (Registration No. 2-4522)* 
4.14 Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 15, 1948 (Registration No. 2-7610)* 
4.15 Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 15, 1964 (Registration No.  

2-22056)* 
4.16 Eighty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 15, 1992 (File No. 1-2313 Form 8-K 

dated July 22, 1992)* 
4.17 Indenture dated as of January 15, 1993 (File No. 1-2313, Form 8-K dated January 28, 1993)* 
Edison Mission Energy (EME) 
4.18 Copy of Global Debenture representing EME's 9-7/8% Junior Subordinated Deferrable 

Interest Debentures, Series A, Due 2024 (File No. 1-13434, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 1994)* 

4.19 Indenture dated as of November 30, 1994 (File No. 1-13434, Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1994)* 

4.20 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 30, 1994 (File No. 1-13434, filed as 
Exhibit 4.2.1 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994)* 

4.21 Indenture dated as of June 28, 1999 (File No. 1-13434, filed as Exhibit 10.63 to Form 10-0 for 
the quarter ended June 30, 1999)* 

4.22 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 28, 1999 (File No. 1-13434, filed as Exhibit 
10.63 to Form 1 0-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999)*
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Exhibit 
Number Description 

10.1 1981 Deferred Compensation Agreement (File No. 1-2313, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 19,81)* 

10.2 1985 Deferred Compensation Agreement for Executives (File No. 1-2313, filed as Exhibit 10.3 
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1985)* 

10.3 1985 Deferred Compensation Agreement for Directors (File No. 1-2313, filed as Exhibit 10.4 
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1986)* 

10.4 Director Deferred Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 1 0-Q for 
the quarter ended June 30, 1998)* 

10.5 Director Grantor Trust Agreement (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.10 to Form 10-K for 
the year ended December 31, 1995)* 

10.6 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q 
for the quarter ended March 31, 1998)* 

10.7 Executive Grantor Trust Agreement (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Form 10-K for 
the year ended December 31, 1995)* 

10.8 Executive Supplemental Benefit Program as amended effective January 20, 1990 (File No.  
1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 1 0-Q for the quarter ended September 20, 1999)* 

10.9 Executive Retirement Plan as amended effective April 1, 1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as 
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1999)* 

10.10 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.12 to Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 1997)* 

10.11 Executive Disability and Survivor Benefit Program (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.22 to 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994)* 

10.12 Retirement Plan for Directors as amended effective February 19, 1998 (File No. 1-9936, filed 
as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998)* 

10.13 Officer Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan as amended effective January 1,1998 (File 
No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1998)* 

10.13.1 Form of Agreement for 1989-1995 Awards under the Officer Long-Term Incentive 
Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.21.1 to Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1995)* 

10.13.2 Form of Agreement for 1996 Awards under the Officer Long-Term Incentive Compensation 
Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.16.2 to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
1996)* 

10.13.3 Form of Agreement for 1997 Awards under the Officer and Management Long-Term Incentive 
Compensation Plans (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.16.3 to Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31,1997)* 

10.14 Equity Compensation Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30, 1998)* 

10.14.1 Form of Agreement for 1998 Employee Awards under the Equity Compensation Plan (File No.  
1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998)* 

10.14.2 Form of Agreement for 1998 Director Awards under the Equity Compensation Plan (File No.  
1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998)* 

10.14.3 Form of Agreement for 1999 Employee Awards (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999)* 

10.14.4 Form of Agreement for 1999 Director Awards under the Equity Compensation Plan (File No.  
1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999)*
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Exhibit 
Number Description 

10.15 Estate and Financial Planning Program as amended April 1, 1999 (File No. 1-9936, filed as 
Exhibit 10.2 to Form 1 0-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999)* 

10.16 Option Gain Deferral Plan (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended March 31, 1998)* 

10.17 Employment Letter Agreement with Bryant C. Danner (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.27 
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992)* 

10.18 Employment Letter Agreement with Stephen E. Frank (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.25 
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995)* 

10.19 Employment Letter Agreement with Edward R. Muller (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.31 
to Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994)* 

10.20 Election Terms for Warren Christopher (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.22 to Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 1997)* 

10.21 Dispute resolution amendment of 1981 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, 1985 
Executive and Director Deferred Compensation Plans and Executive Supplemental Benefit 
Program (File No. 1-9936, filed as Exhibit 10.21 to Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 1998)* 

11. Computation of Primary and Fully Diluted Earnings Per Share 
12. Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges 
13. Selected portions of the Annual Report to Shareholders for year ended December 31, 1999 
21. Subsidiaries of the Registrant 
23. Consent of Independent Public Accountants - Arthur Andersen LLP 
24.1 Power of Attorney 
24.2 Certified copy of Resolution of Board of Directors Authorizing Signature 
27. Financial Data Schedule 

* Incorporated by reference pursuant to Rule 12b-32.
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